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Florida Power & Light Company. P. 0. Box 14000, Juno Beach, FL 33408-0420 
700 Universe Boulevard 

March 27,2000 

Ms. Blanca Bay6, Director 
Division of Records and Reporting 
Florida Public Service Commission 
4075 Esplanade Way, Room 110 
Tallahassee, Florida 32399-0850 

Re: Florida Power & Light C o m p ,  Report of Consummau 

Dear Ms. Bay& 

Enclosed are one signed and three conformed copies of Florida Power & Light Compar$s Repoft of 
Consummation in connection with the Application for Authority to Issue and Sell Securities pursuant to 

Section 366.04 (Docket No. 981242-EI), relating to the issuance and sale of $225,000,000 
of First Mortgage Bonds, 5 7/,0h Series due April 1,2009. 

Treasurer 

RM:md 
Enclosures 

cc: W. G. Walker. I11 ~ ~~ ~~ 

Vice President 
m - y / o  I exhibits) 

an FPL Group company 



DOCKET NO. 98 1242-E1 

AMENDATORY ORDER NO. PSC-98-1608A-FOF-E1 
ORDERNO. PSC-98-1608-FOF-E1 and 

ORIGINAL 
FLORIDA PLTBLIc SERVICE CCMMBSION 

Tallahassee, Florida 

REPORT OF ~NSUMMATION 

IN CONNECTION WITH 

&PLICATION O F  
FLORIDA POWER & LIGHT COMPANY 

FOR AUTHORITY To ISSUE AND SELL SECURITIES 

IN REFERENCE To: 

$225,000,000 l"CPAL AMOUNT O F  FIRST MORTGAGE BONDS, 
5 '/,YO SERIES DUE APRIL 1,2009 

Address communications in connection with this Repon of Consummation to: 

Roben L. McGrath 
Treasurer 
Florida Power & Light Company 
700 Universe Boulevard 
Juno Beach, Florida 33408 
Telephone (561) 691-7630 

Date: March 27,2000 
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BEFORE THE 

FLORIDA PUBLIC SERVICE COMMISSION 

IN APPLICATION OF FLORIDA POWER & LIGHT COMPANY 
FOR AUTHORITY TO ISSUE AND SELL SECUIUTIES 

REPORT OF CONSUMMATION 

In compliance with the requirements of Order No. PSC-98-1608-FOF-E1, issued by the Commission on 
December 2, 1998, and Amendatory Order No. PSC-98-1608A-FOF-E1, issued by the Commission on 
December 30, 1998 in the above-captioned matter (Docket 981242-EI), the Applicant, Florida Power & 
Light Company ("FPL") hereby submits its Report of Consummation regarding a transaction involving the 
issuance and sale of $225,000,000 principal amount of First Mortgage Bonds, 5 '/,"/o Series due April 1, 
2009 (the "5 '/,"/o Offered Bonds"). The 5 '/,"/o Offered Bonds were issued under FpL's registration 
statements filed pursuant to Rule 415 of the Rules and Regulations under the Securities Act of 1933, as 
amended (Regstration No. 33-61390 which became effective A p d  28, 1993) and (Registration No. 333- 
53053 which became effective May 28, 1998). This Report of Consummation relates only to the 5 '/,"/o 

Offered Bonds. It provides the information required for submission by Rule 25-8.009 of the Florida 
Administrative Code as follows: 

(1) On April 23, 1999 (the closing date of the transaction), FPL sold, through a competitive bid 
underwritten sale, $225,000,000 principal amount of First Mortgage Bonds, 5 '/,"/o Series dated April 1, 
1999 and due April 1,2009. The proceeds received by FPL on April 23,1999 were $224,190,000 in cash 
covering principal less discount and underwriting commissions, plus $807,812.50 in cash covering 
interest accrued from April 1,1999 to April 23,1999 for a total of $224,997,812.50. 

For terms and conditions of issues: For the 5 '/,"/o Offered Bonds, see Exhibit (c)-lB, pages S-2 and S-3 of 
the Prospectus Supplement dated April 20,1999 and pages 3 through 6 of the Prospectus. 

For a consolidated statement of capitalization: See Exhibit (c)-2 

For a statement of pretax interest coverage, together with debt interest: See Exhibit (c)-3 

Annual Preferred Stock dividend requirement for the fiscal year ended as of December 31,1999: 
$ 14,762,250. 

The other cost incurred to date (excluding underwriter's discount and commission) by FPL in connection 
with transaction are tabulated as follows: 

5 
Offered Bonds 

Filing Fees for Registration Statement 
Legal, Accounting, Rating Agency and Trustee Fees 
Printing (S-3, Prospectus, etc.) 
Florida Taxes and Recording Fees 

Total Costs 

$ 67,950 
117,594 

2,464 
854,364 

$ 1,042,372 
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List of Exhibits (Corresponds L- seaions of Rule 25-8.009) 

* (a)- 1 Restated Artides of Incorporation of FPL dated March 23, 1992 were filed 
with the Florida Public Service Commission ("SC) in connection with 
Docket No. 910904-E1 as Exhibit (a)-1 of Report of Consummation No. 2. 

* (a)-lA 

* (a)-1B 

* (a)-lC 

* (a)-1D 

* (a)- 1E 

* (a)-1F 

* (a)-2 

Amendment to FPL's Restated Artides of Incorporation dated March 23, 
1992 was fded with the FPSC in connection with Docket No. 910904-E1 as 
Exhibit (a)-1A of Report of Consummation No. 2. 

Amendment to FPL's Restated Artides of Incorporation dated May 11,1992 
was filed with the FPSC in connection with Docket No. 910904-E1 as 
Exhibit (a)-1B of Report of COnsummationNo. 2. 

Amendment to FPL's Restated Artides of Incorporation dated March 12, 
1993 was fded with the FPSC in connection with Docket No. 920955-E1 as 
Exhibit (a)-lC of Report of Consummation No. 1. 

Amendment to FPL's Restated Artides of Incorporation dated June 16,1993 
was fded with the FPSC in connection with the 1994 Application of Florida 
Power & Light Company for authorif/ to issue and sell securities Docket No. 
930855-EI. 

Amendment to FPL's Restated Artides of Incorporation dated August 31, 
1993 was fded with the FPSC in connection with Doc!& No. 920955-E1 as 
Exhibit (a)-1E of Report of Consummation No. 6. 

Amendment to FPL's Restated Artides of Incorporation dated November 
30, 1993 was fded with the FPSC in connection with Docket No. 920955-E1 
as Exbibit (a)-1F of Report of Consummation No. 7. 

Mortgage and Deed of Trust dated as of January 1, 1944, between FPL and 
Bankers Trust Company and The Florida National Bank of Jacksonville 
(now known as First Union National Bank of Florida) as Trustees (as of 
September 2, 1992, the sole Trustee is Bankers Trust Company), and 
Ninety-eight Supplements thereto were filed with the FPSC as follows: 
Exhibit D, Docket No. 3417-EU; Exhibit D-1, Docket No. 3758-EU; 
Exhibit D-lA, Docket No. 4147-EU; Exhibit D-IB, Docket No. 4685-EU; 
Exhibit D-IC, Docket No. 4922-EU; Exhibit D-ID, Docket No. 5057-EU; 
Exhibit D-IE, Docket No. 5315-EU; Exhibit D-IF, Docket No. 5745-EU; 
Exhibit D-lG, Docket No. 5872-EU; Exhibit D-IH, Docket No. 6659-EU; 
Exhibit D-11, Docket No. 7427-EU; Exhibit D-lJ, Docket No. 7831-EU; 
Exhibit D-IK, Docket No. 8308-EU; Exhibit D-IL, Docket No. 8738-EU; 
Exhibit D-IM, Docket No. 9097-EU; Exhibit D-IN, Docket No. 9676-EU; 
Exhibit D-10, Docket No. 9892-EU; Exhibit D-IP, Docket No. 69262-EU; 
Exhibit D-IQ, Docket No. 70255-EU; Exhibit D-IR, Docket No. 
70565-EU; Exhibit D-IS, Docket No. 71363-EU; Exhibit D-IT, Docket 
No. 72281-EU; Exhibit D-IU, Docket No. 72685-EU; Exhibit D-IV 
Docket No. 73428-EU; Exhibit D-IW, Docket No. 73743-EU; Exhibit 
D-lX, Docket No. 74249-EU; Exhibit D-IY, Docket No. 750108-EU; 
Exhibit D-lZ, Docket No. 750201-EU; Exhibit D-2A, Docket No. 
750439-EU; Exhibit D-3A, Docket No. 760335-EU; Exhibit D-3B Docket 
No. 770929-EU (Fl); Exhibit D-3C, Docket No. 770928-EU (FI); Exhibit 
D-3D, Docket No. 790592-EU; Exhibit D-3E, Docket No. 790830-EU; 
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'(C)-lA 

(c)-1B 

m n 
Exhibit D-3F, Docket No. 800082-EU, -2); Exhibit D-3G, Docket No. 
800319-EU; Exhibit D-3H, Docket No. 800591-EU, Exhibits D-31, D-3J, 
D-3K and D-3L, Docket No. 800755-EU(SS), Reports of Consummation 
Nos.1, 3, 5 and 6 respectively; Exhibits (a)-3, (a)-4, Docket No. 
810421-EU (SS), Reports of Consummation Nos. 1, 3 and 5 respectively; 
Exhibits (a)-3, Docket No. 820403-EU, Reports of Consummation Nos. 2 
and 4, respectively; Exhibit (a)-4, Docket No. 830491-EI, Report of 
Consummation No. 3; Exhibits (a)-3, Docket No. 830445-EU, Reports of 
Consummation Nos. 1 and 4, respectively; Exhibits (a)-2A, (a)-2B and 
(a)2A, Docket No. 840353-E1, Reports of Consummation Nos. 1 ,2  and 3, 
respectively; Exhibits (a)-2A and (a)-ZB, Docket No. 850664-E1, Reports 
of Consummation Nos. 1,2,4 and 5, respectively; Exhibits (a)-2A, Docket 
No. 861209-EI, Reports of Consummation Nos. 2 and 3, respectively; 
Exhibits (a)-2A, Docket No. 870952-EI, Reports of Consummation Nos. 1, 
2 and 3, respectively; Exhibit (a)-2A, Docket No. 881158-EI, Report of 
Consummation Nos. 1 and 2, respectively; Exhibit (a)-2A and Exhibit 
(a)-2B, Docket No. 891104-EI, Report of Consummation No. 2; Exhibit 
(a)-2A, Docket No. 891 104-EI, Report of Consummation No. 3; Exhibit 
(a)-ZA, Exhibit (a)-2B, Exhibit (a)-2C and Exhibit (a)-2D, Docket No. 
900736-EI, Report of Consummation No. 2; Exhibit (a)-2A, Docket No. 
900736-El, Report of Consummation No. 3; Exhibit (a)-2A, Docket No. 
910904-EI, Report of Consummation No. 3; Exhibit (a)-2A, Docket No. 
910904-E1, Report of Consummation No. 2; Exhibit (a)-2B, Docket No. 
910904-EI, Report of Consummation No. 3; Exhibit (a)-2A, Docket No. 
910904-E1, Report of Consummation No. 5;  Exhibit (a)-2A, Docket No. 
910904-E1, Report of Consummation No. 7; Exhibit (a)-2A, Docket No. 
920955-EI, Report of Consummation No. I ;  Exhibit (a)-2A, Docket No. 
920955-EI, Report of Consummation No. 3; Exhibit (a)-2B, Docket No. 
920955-E1, Report of Consummation No. 3; Exhibit (a)-ZC, Docket No. 
920955-EI, Report of Consummation No. 3 and Exhibit (a)-2B, Docket 
No. 920955-EI, Report of Consummation No. 3; Exhibit (a)-2A, Docket 
No. 920955-EI, Report of Consummation No. 4; Exhibit (a)-2B, Docket 
No. 920955-EI, Report of Consummation No. 4 and Exhibit (a)-2C, 
Docket No. 920955-EI, Report of Consummation No. 4; Exhibit (a)-2A, 
Docket No. 920955-EI, Report of Consummation No. 6 and Exhibit 
(a)-ZB, Docket No. 920955-EI, Report of Consummation No. 6; Exhibit 
(a)-2A, Docket No. 920955-E1, Report of Consummation No. 7; Exhibit 
(a)-2A, Docket No. 930855-EI, Report of Consummation No. 1 , Exhibit 
(a)-2A, Docket No. 940912-EI, Report of Consummation No. 1, Exhibit 
(a)-2A, Docket No. 971304-EI, Report of Consummation. 

A Ninety-ninth Supplemental Indenture dated 
FPL and Bankers Trust Company, as Trustee, with respect to the 5 7/8% 
Offered Bonds. 

For Prospectus and Prospectus Supplement, see Exhibits (c)-1B. 

Signed opinion of FPL's legal counsel in respect to the legality of the issues. 

Form S-3 Registration Statement (induding Prospectus) with respect to the 
issuance of all series of the 5 7/8% Offered Bonds &$stration No. 33-61390 
fdedwith the Securities and Exchange Commission on April 21,1993). 

Form S-3 Registration Statement (iinduding Prospectus) with respect to the 
issuance of all series of the 5 7/8% Offered Bonds (RegistrationNo. 
333-53053 f d d  with the Securities and Exchange Commission on May 19, 
1998). 

Prospectus Supplement dated April 20,1999 (imduding Prospectus) with 
respect to the 5 ' /E% Offered Bonds. 

of April 1,1999 between 
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(c)-lC 

(c)-1D 

Annual Report on Form 10-K fled for th~ , dar ended December 31,1999. 

Current Report on Form 8-K with the Securities and Exchange Commission 
on March 17,1999. 

Current Report on Form 8-K fled with the Securities and Exchange 
Commission on April 16,1999. 

(c)-lE 

(c)-2 Consolidated Statements of Capitalization. 

(+3 Computation of Ratio of Earnings to Fixed Charges. 

Form of Proposal and attached Undenwihg Agreement dated April 20, 
1999 with respect to the 5 '/s% Offered Bonds. 

(4 Statement as to Underwriters' Fees. 

(1) See Exhibit (c)-lB, Page S-l (as to fee) and Page S-4 (as to 
Underwriter) of Prospectus Supplement. 

NationsBanc Montgomery Lehman Brothers 
Secnrities LLC 
100 Noah Tryon Street 
Charlotte, NC 28255 

3 World Financial Center 
New York, NY 10285 

(2) None. 

(3) No Aftliauon. 

(4) Not applicable 

* Incorporated by reference 

Respectfully submitted this 27" day of March, 2000 

LIGHT COMPANY 

Robert L. McGrath 
Treasurer 
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Flonda Power & Light Company 
700 Universe Boulevard 

This instrument was prepared by: 
K. M. Davis 

EXECUTED IN be COUNTERPARTS OF 
WHICH THIS IS COUNTERPART NO.Sa 

FLORIDA POWER & LIGHT COMPANY 

to 

BANKERS TRUST COMPANY 

As Trustee under Florida Power 8 Light 
Company's Mortgage and Deed of Trust, 

Dated as of January 1, 1944. 

Ninety-nin th Supplemental In denture 

Relating to $225,000,000 Principal Amount 
of First Mortgage Bonds, 5 I/*% Series 

due April 1, 2009. 

Dated as of April 1, 1999 

This Supplemental Indenture has been executed in several counterpar& all 
of which constitute but one and the same instrument. This Supplemental 
Indenture has been recorded in several counties and documentary stamp 
taxes as required by law in the amount of $787,500, and non-recurring 
intangible taxes as required by law in the amount of $63,891, were paid on 
the Supplemental Indenture recorded in the public records of Palm Beach 
County, Florida. 

Note to Examiner: The new bonds ("New Bonds") being issued in 
connection with this Supplemental Indenture are secured by real property 
and personal property located both within Florida and outside of Florida. The 
aggregate fair market value of the collateral exceeds the aggregate principal 
amount of (y) the New Bonds plus (2) the other outstanding bonds secured 
by the mortgage supplemented hereby and all previous supplemental 
indentures thereto. The intangible tax has been computed pursuant to 
Section 199.133 (2), Florida Statutes, by 6) determining the percentage of the 
aggregate fair market value of the collateral constituting real propetty 
situated in Florida and by multiplying that percentage times the principal 
amount of the New Bonds (the result hereinafter defined as the "Tax Basew) 
and (ii) multiplying the tax rate times the Tax Base. 
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YINETY-NINTB SUPPLEMENTAL "DENTURE 

INDENTURE, dated as of the first day of April. 1999, made and entered 
into by ana between FLOIUDA POWER & LIGHT COMPANY, a corporation of the State of 
Florida, whose post office address is 700 Universe Boulevard, J u m  Beach, Florida 33408 
(hereinafter sometimes called FPL), and BANKERS TRUST COMPANY, a corporation of the 
State of New York, whose post office address is Four Albany Street, New York, New 
York lo006 (hereinafter called the Trustee), as the ninety-ninth supplemental iodenture 
(hereinafter called the Ninety-ninth Supplemental Indenture) to the Mortgage and Deed of 
Trust, dated as of January 1,1944 (hereinafter called the Mortgage), made and entered 
into by FPL, the Trustee and The Florida National Bank of Jacksonville, as Co-Trustee 
(now resigned), the Trustee now acting as the sole trustee under the Mortgage, which 
Mortgage was executed and delivered by FPL to secure the payment of bonds issued or to 
be issued under and in accordance with the provisions thereof, reference to which 
Mortgage is hereby made, this Ninety-ninth Supplemental Indenture being supplemental 
thereto; 

WHEREAS, Section 8 of the Mortgage provides that the form of each series 
of bonds (other than the fmt series) issued thereunder shall be established by Resolution 
of the Board of Directors of FPL and that the form of such series, as established by said 
Board of Directors. shall spec* the descriptive title of the bonds and various other terms 
thereof, and may also contain such provisions not inconsistent with the provisions of the 
Mortgage as the Board of Directors may, in its discretion, cause to be inserted therein 
expressing or referring to the terms and conditions upon which such bonds are to be 
issued and/or secured under the Mortgage; and 

WHEREAS, Section 120 of the Mortgage provides, among other thmgs, that 
any power. privilege or right expressly or impliedly reserved to or in any way conferred 
upon FPL by any provision of the Mortgage, whether such power, privilege or right is in 
any way restricted or is unresmcted, may be in whole or in part waived or surrendered or 
subjected to any restriction if at the time unrestricted or to additional restriction if already 
restricted, and FPL may enter into any further covenants, lirnitatiom or restrictions for 
the benefit of any one or more series of bonds issued thereunder, or FPL may cure any 
ambiguity contained therein, or in any supplemental indenture, or may establish the terms 
and provisions of any series of bonds other than said first series, by an instrument in 
writing executed and acknowledged by FPL in such manner as would be necessary to 
entitle a conveyance of real estate to record in all of the states in which any property at 
the time subject to the Lien of the Mortgage shall be situated; and 

WHEREAS, FPL now desires to create the series of bonds described in 
Article I hereof and to add to its covenants and agreements contained in the Mortgage 
certain other covenants and agreements to be observed by it and to alter and amend in 
certain respects the covenants and provisions contained in the Mortgage; and 
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W ~ A S ,  the execution and delivery by FPL of this Nincty-nimh 
Supplemental Indenture, and the tenns of the bonds, hereinafter referred to in Article I, 
have been duly authorized by the Board of Directors of FPL by appropriate resolutions of 
said Board of Directors; 

NOW, THEREFORE, "'HIS I N D m  WITNESSETH: That FPL, in 
consideration of the premises and of One Dollar to it duly paid by the Trustee at or 
before the ensealing and delivery of these presents, the receipt whereof is hereby 
acknowledged, and in further evidence of assurance of the estate, title and rights of the 
Trustee and in order further to secure the payment of both the principal of and interest 
and premium, if any, on the bonds from time to time issued under the Mortgage, 
accordmg to their tenor and effect, and the performance of all the provisions of the 
Mortgage (including any instruments supplemental thereto and any modification made as 
in the Mortgage provided) and of said bonds, hereby grants, bargains, sells, releases, 
conveys, assigns, transfers, mortgages, pledges, sets over and confirms (subject, 
however, to Excepted Encumbrances as defined in Section6 of the Mortgage) unto 
Bankers Trust Company, as Trustee under the Mortgage, and to its "r or 
successors in said trust, and to said Trustee and its successors and assigns forever, a l l  
property, real, personal and mixed, aquired by FPL after the date of the execution and 
delivery of the Mortgage (except any herein or in the Mortgage, as heretofore 
supplemented, expressly excepted), now owned (except any properties heretofore released 
pursuant to any provisions of the Mortgage and in the process of being sold or disposed 
of by FPL) or, subject to the provisions of Section 87 of the Mortgage, hereafter acquired 
by FPL and wheresoever situated, including (without in anywise limiting or impairing by 
the enumeration of the same the scope and intent of the foregoing) all lands, power sites, 
flowage rights, water rights, water locations, water appropriations, ditches, flumes, 
reservoirs, reservoir sites. canals, raceways, dams, dam sites, aqueducts, and all rights or 
means for appropriating, conveying, storing and supplying water; all rights of way and 
roads; all plants for the generation of electricity by steam, water and/or other power; all 
power houses, gas plants, street lighting system, standards and other equipment 
incidental thereto, telephone, radio and television system, air-conditioning systems and 
equipment incidental thereto, water works, water systems, steam heat and hot water 
plants, substations, Lies, service and supply systems, bridges, culverts, tracks, ice or 
refrigeration plants and equipment, offices, buildings and other structures and the 
equipment thereof; all machinery, engines, boilers, dynamos, electric, gas and other 
machines, regulators, meters, transformers, generators, motors, electrical, gas and 
mechanical appliances, conduits, cables, water, steam heat, gas or other pipes, gas mains 
and pipes, service pipes, fittings, valves and connections, pole and transmission lines, 
wires, cables, tools, implements, apparatus, furniture, chattels. and choses in action; all 
municipal and other franchises, consents or permits; all lines for the transmission and 
dismbution of electric current, gas, steam heat or water for any purpose including 
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towers, poles, wires, cables, pipes, conduits, ducts and all apparatus for usc in 
connection therewith, all real estate, lands, easements, servitudes, licenses, permits, 
franchises, privileges, rights of way and other rights in or relating to real estate or thc 
occupancy of the same and (except as herein or in the Mortgage, as heretofore 
supplemented, expressly excepted) all the right, title and interest of FPL in and to all 
other property of any kind or nature appertaining to and/or used and/or occupied and/or 
enjoyed in connecton with any property hereinbefore or in the Mortgage, as heretofore 
supplemented, described. 

TOGE~HER W m  all and singular the t"S, hereditaments and 
appurtenances belonging or in anywise appertaining to the aforesaid property or any part 
thereof, with the reversion and reversions, remainder ami "de ' rs and (subject to the 
provisions of Section57 of the Mortgage) the tolls, rents, revenues, issues, earnings, 
income, products and profits thereof, and all the estate, right, title and interest and claim 
whatsoever, at law as well as in equity, which FPL now has or may hereinafter acquire in 
and to the aforesaid property and franchises and every part and parcel thereof. 

IT Is HEREBY AGREED by FPL that, subject to the provisions of Section 87 
of the Mortgage, all the property, rights, and franchises acquired by FPL after the date 
hereof (except any herein or in the Mortgage, as heretofore supplemented, expressly 
excepted) shall be arsd are as fully granted and conveyed hereby and as fully embraced 
within the Lien of the Mortgage, as if such property, rights and franchises were now 
owned by FPL and were specifidy described herein and conveyed hereby. 

PROVIDED that the following are not and are not intended to be now or 
hereafter granted, bargained, sold, released, conveyed, assigned, transferred. mortgaged, 
pledged. set over or confirmed hereunder and are hereby expressly excepted from the 
Lien and operation of this Ninety-ninth Supplemental Indenture and from the Lien and 
operation of the Mortgage, as heretofore supplemented, vk. (1) cash, shares of stock, 
bonds, notes and other obligations and other securities not hereafter specifically pledged, 
paid, deposited, delivered or held under the Mortgage or covenanted so to be; 
(2) merchandise, equipment, materials or supplies held for the purpose of sale in the 
usual c o m e  of business and fuel (including Nuclear Fuel unless expressly subjected to 
the Lien and operation of the Mortgage by FPL in a future Supplemental Indenture), oil 
and similar materials and supplies consumable in the operation of any properties of FPL; 
rolling stock, buses, motor coaches, automobiles and other vehicles; (3) bills, notes and 
accounts receivable, and all contracts, leases and operating agreements not specifically 
pledged under the Mortgage or covenanted so to be; (4) the last day of the term of any 
lease or leasehold which may hereafter become subject to the Lien of the Mortgage; 
(5 )  elecmc energy, gas, ice, and other materials or products generated. manufactured, 
produced or purchased by FPL for sale. distribution or use in the ordinary course of its 
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business; all timber, minerals, rmneral rights and royalties: (6) FPL's franc!iise to be a 
corporation; and (7) the properties already sold or in the process of being sold by FPL 
and heretofore released from the Mortgage and Deed of Trust, dated as of 
January 1,1926, from Florida Power & Light Company to Bankers Trust Company and 
The Florida National Bank of Jacksonville, mstees, and specifically described in three 
separate releases executed by Bankers Trust Company and The Florida National Bank of 
Jacksonville, dated July 28,1943, October6,1943 and December 11,1943, which 
releases have heretofore been dekvered by the said trustees to FPL and recorded by FPL 
among the Public Records of all Counties in which such properties are located; provided, 
however, that the property and rights expressly excepted from the Lien and operation of 
the Mortgage in the above subdivisions (2) and (3) shall (to the extent permitted by law) 
cease to be so excepted in the event and as of the date that the Trustee or a receiver or 
trustee shall enter upon and take possession of the Mortgaged and Pledged Property in the 
manner provided in Article XIII of the Mortgage by reason of the occurrence of a Default 
as defined in Section 65 thereof. 

To HAVE AND To HOLD all such properties, real, personal and mixed, 
granted, bargained, sold, released, conveyed, assigned, transferred, mortgaged, pledged, 
set over or confirmed by FPL as aforesaid, or intended so to be, unto Bankers Trust 
Compauy, the Trustee, and its successors and assigns forever. 

IN TRUST NEVERTHELESS, for the same purposes and upon the same terms, 
trusts and conditions and subject to and with the same provisos and covenants as are set 
forth in the Mortgage, as heretofore supplemented, this Ninety-ninth Supplemental 
Indenture being supplemental thereto. 

AND IT Is HEREBY COVENANTED by FPL that all terms, conditions, 
provisos, Covenants and provisions contained in the Mortgage shaU affect and apply to 
the property hereinbefore described and conveyed and to the estate, rights, obligations 
and duties of FPL and the Trustee and the beneficiaries of the trust with respect to said 
property, and to the Trustee and its successors as Trustee of said property in the same 
manner and with the same effect as if said property had been owned by FPL at the time 
of the execution of the Mortgage, and bad been specificaily and at length described in and 
conveyed to said Trustee, by the Mortgage as a part of the property therein stated to be 
conveyed. 

FPL further covenants and agrees to and with the Trustee and its 
successors in said trust under the Mortgage, as follows: 
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ARTICLE I 

Nmety-sixtb Series of Bonds 

Section 1. 0 There shall be a series of bonds designated "5 serics 
due April 1, 2009", herein sometimes referred to as the "Ninety-sixth Series", each of 
which shall also bear the descriptive title First Mortgage Bond, and the form tbamf. 
which shall be established by Resolution of the Board of Directors of FPL, shall contain 
suitable provisions with respect to the matters hereinafter in this Section specified. 
Bonds of the Nmty-sixth Series shall mature on April 1, 2009 and shall be issued as 
fully registered bonds in denominations of One Thousand Dollars and, at the option of 
FPL, in any multiple or multiples of One Thousand Dollars (the exercise of such option 
to be evidenced by the execution and delivery thereof); they shall bear interrSt from 
April 1,1999, at the rate of 5 '/,% per annum, payable semi-annually on October 1 and 
April 1 of each year commencing on October 1, 1999; the principal of and interest on 
each said bond to be payable at the office or agency of FPL in the Borough of 
Manbattan, The City of New York, in such coin or currency of the United States of 
America as at the time of payment is legal tender for public and private debts. BoIlds of 
the Ninety-sixth Series shall be dated as in Section 10 of the Mortgage provided. 

(n) Bonds of the Ninety-sixth Series shall be redeemable either at the 
option of FPL or pursuant to the requirements of the Mortgage (including, among other 
requirements, the application of cash delivered to or deposited with the Trustee pursuant 
to the provisions of Section 64 of the Mortgage or with proceeds of Released Property) in 
whole at any time, or in pan from time to time, prior to maturity, upon notice, as 
provided in Section 52 of the Mortgage, mailed at least thury (30) days prior to the date 
fxed for redemption (the "Redemption Date"), at a price (the "Redemption Price") equal 
to 100% of the principal amount thereof plus a m e d  and unpaid interest, if my, to the 
Redemption Date plus a premium, if any (the "Make-Whole Premium"). In no event will 
the Redemption Price be less than 100% of the principal amount of the bonds of the 
Ninety-sixth series being redeemed plus accrued interest to the Redemption Date. 

The amount of the Make-Whole R e "  with respect to any bond of the 
Ninety-sixth Series (or portion thereof) to be redeemed will be equal to the excess, if 
any, of: 

1. the s u m  of the present values, calculated as of the Redemption 
Date. of: 

a. each interest payment that, but for such redemption, would 
have been payable on the bond of the Ninety-sixth Series 
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(or portion thereof) being redeemed on each interest 
payment date occuning after the Redemption Date 
(excludiig any accmed interest for the period prior to the 
Redemption Date); and 

b. the principal amount that, but for such redemption, would 
have been payable at the finai "ity  of the bond of the 
Ninety-sixth Series (or portion thereof) being redeemed, 
over 

2. the principal amount of the b o d  of the Ninety-sixth Series (or 
portion thereof) being redeemed. 

The present values of interest and principal payments referred to in clause 
(1) above will be determined in accordance with generally accepted principles of 
financial analysis. Such present values wdl be calculated by discounting the amount of 
each payment of interest or principal from the date that each such payment would have 
been payable, but for the redemption, to the Redemption Date at a discount rate equal to 
the Treasury Yield (as defined below) plus 10 basis points. 

The Make-Whole Premium will be calculated by an independent 
investment banlang institution of national standug appointed by FPL; provided that if 
FPL fails to make such appointment at least 30 calendar days prior to the Redemption 
Date, or if the institution so appointed is unwilling or unable to make such calculation, 
such calculation will be made by NationsBanc Montgomery Securities LLC or, if such 
firm is unwilling or unable to make such calculation, by an independent investment 
banking institution of ~ t i o n a l  standing appointed by the Trustee (in any such case, an 
"Independent Investment Banker"). 

For purposes of determining the Make-Whole Premium. "Treasury 
Yield" means a rate of interest per annum equal to the weekly average yield to maturity 
of United States Treasury Notes that have a constant maturity that corresponds to the 
remaining term to maturity of the bonds of the Ninety-sixth Series, calculated to the 
nearest 1/12th of a year (the "Remaining Term"). The Treasury Yield will be 
deterrnined as of the third business day immediately preceding the applicable 
Redemption Date. 

The weekly average yields of United States Treasury Notes wdl be 
determined by reference to the most recent statistical release published by the Federal 
Reserve Bank of New York and designated "H.15(519) Selected Interest Rates" or any 
successor release (the "H.15 Statistical Release"). If the H.15 Statistical Release sets 
forth a weekly average yield for the United States Treasury Notes having a constant 
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maturity that is the same as the Remaining Term, then the Treasury Yield will be equal to 
such weekly average yield. In all other cases, the Treasury Yield will I?e calculated by 
interpolation, on a straight-line basis, between the weekly average yields on the United 
States Treasury Notes that have a constant maturity closest to and greater than the 
Remaining Term and the United States Treasury Notes that have a constant maturity 
closest to and less than the Remaining Term (in each case as set forth in the H.15 
Statistical Release). Any weekly average yields so calculated by interpolation will be 
rounded to the nearest lllooth of 1%, with any figure of 1 / 2 W  of 1% or above b e i i  
rounded upward. If weekly average yields for United States Treasury Notes are not 
available in the H.15 Statistical Release or otherwise, then the Treasury Yield will be 
calculated by interpolation of comparable rates selected by the Independent Investment 
Banker. 

(m) At the option of the registered owner. any bonds of the Ninety- 
sixth Series, upon surrender thereof for cancellation at the office or agency of FPL in the 
Borough of Manhattan, The City of New York, together with a written instrumem of 
transfer wherever required by FPL, duly executed by the registered owner or by his duly 
authorized attorney, shall (subject to the provisions of Section 12 of the Mortgage) be 
exchangeable for a like aggregate principal amount of bonds of the same series of other 
authorized denominations. 

Bonds of the Ninety-sixth Series shall be transferable (subject to the 
provisions of Section 12 of the Mortgage) at the office or agency of FPL in the Borough 
of Manhattan, The City of New York. 

Upon any exchange or transfer of bonds of the Ninety-sixth Series, FPL 
may make a charge therefor sufficient to reimburse it for any tax or taxes or other 
govermnental charge, as provided in Section 12 of the Mortgage, but FF'L hereby waives 
any right to make a charge in addition thereto for any exchange or transfer of bonds of 
the Ninety-sixth Series. 

ARTXCLE II 

Dividend Covenant 

SECTION 2. Section 3 of the Third Supplemental Indenture, as heretofore 
amended, is hereby further amended by inserting the words "or Ninety-sixth Series" 
immediately before the words "remain Outstanding". 
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ARTICLE III 

Miscellaneous Provisions 

S m O N  3. Subject to the amendments provided for in this "-ninth 
Supplemental IQdenture, the terms deiimd in the Mortgage, as heretofore supplemnted, 
shall, for all purposes of this Ninety-ninth Supplemental Indenture, have the Manings 
specified in the Mortgage, as heretofore supplemented. 

SECTION 4. The holders of bonds of the Ninety-sixth Series consent that 
FPL may, but shall not be obligated to, fix a record date for the purpose of &"in& 
the holders of bonds of the Nkty-sixth Series entitled to consent to any 7-., 

supplement or waiver. If a record date is fxed, those persons who were hol&rs at such 
record date (or their duly designated proxies), and only those persons, shall be entitled to 
consent to such amendment, supplement or waiver or to revoke any consent previously 
given, whether or not such persons continue to be holders after such record date. No 
such consent shall be valid or effective for more than 90 days after such record date. 

SECTION 5. The Trustee hereby accepts the trust herein declared, 
provided, created or supplemented and agrees to perform the same upon the tenns and 
conditions herein and in the Mortgage, as heretofore supplemented, set forth and upon 
the following terms and conditions: 

The Trustee shall not be responsible in any manner whatsoever for or in 
respect of the validity or sufficiency of this Ninety-ninth Supplemental Indenture or for or 
in respect of the recitals contained herein, all of which recitals are made by FPL solely. 
In general, each and every term and condition contained in Article X W  of the Mortgage, 
as heretofore amended, shall apply to and form part of this Ninety-ninth Supplemntal 
Indenture with the same force and effect as if the same were herein set forth in full with 
such omissions, variations and insertions, if any, as may be appropriate to make the same 
conform to the provisions of this Ninety-ninth SUpphIIen~ Indenture. 

SECTION 6. Whenever in this Ninety-ninth Supplemental Indenture either 
of the parties hereto is named or referred to, this shall, subject to the provisions of 
Articles XVI and XW of the Mortgage, as heretofore amended, be deemed to include 
the successors and assigns of such party, and all the covenants and agreements h this 
Ninety-ninth Supplemental Indenture contained by or on behalf of FPL, or by or on 
behalf of the Trustee, or either of them, shall, subject as aforesaid, bind and inure to the 
respective benefits of the respective successors and assigns of such parties, whether so 
expressed or not. 
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SECTION 7. Nothing in this Ninety-ninth Supplemental Indcnturc. 
expressed or implied, is imended, or shall De construed, to confer upon, or to give to, 
any person, f m  or corporation, other than the parties hereto and the holders of the 
bonds and coupons Outstanding under the Mortgage, any right, remedy or claim under or 
by reason of this Nioety-ninth Supplemental Lodenturc or any covenant, cordition, 
stipulation, promise or agreement hereof, and all the covenants, conditions, stipulations, 
promises and agreements in this Ninety-ninth S u p p l ~  Indemure contained by or on 
behalf of FPL shall be for the sole and exclusive elit of the parties hereto, and of the 
holders of the bonds and coupons Outstanding under the Mortgage. 

SECTION 8. The Mortgage, as heretofore supplemented and amemied and 
as supplemented hereby, is intended by the parties hereto, as to properties now or 
hereafter encumbered thereby and located within the State of Georgia, to operate and is to 
be construed as granting a lien only on such properties and not as a deed passing tide 
thereto. 

SECTION 9. This Nmty-ninth Supplemental Indenture shall be executed in 
several counterparts, each of which shall be an original and a l l  of which shall constitute 
but one and the same instrument. 



IN WITNESS WHEREOF, FPL has caused its corporae name to be hereunto affixed, 
and this instrument to be signed and sealed by its President or one Of its Vice Presidents, and its 
corporate seal to be attested by its Secretary or one of its Assistant secretaries for and in its 
behalf, and BANKERS TRUST COMPANY has caused its corporate name to be hereunto affixed, and 
this instrument to be signed and sealed by one of its Vice Presidents or Assistant Vice Presidents, 
and its corporate seal to be attested by one of its Assistant Vice Presidents or one of its Assistant 
Secretaries, all as of the day and year first above written. 

FLORIDA POWER & LIGHT COMPANY 

Vice President, Accounting, Conaoller 
and Chief Accounting Officer 

700 Universe Blvd. 
Juno Beach, FL 33408 

Attest: 

h\;(ieh & ./ 
Dilek Samil 

Treasurer and Assistant Secretary 
'700 Universe Boulevard 
Juno Beach. FL 33408 

Executed. sealed and delivered by 
FLORIDA POWER & LIGHT COMPANY 
in the presence of: 



Bankers Trust Company 
As Trustee 

By: 

New York, NY 1000 

Assistant Vice President 
4 Albany Street, 4th Floor 
New York, NY 10066 

Executed, sealed and delivered 
by Bankers Trust Company 
in the presence of 

David Be&e 
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STATE OF FLORIDA 
COUNTY OF PALM BEACH 

On the 20th day of April, in the year 1999, before me personally came K. M. DaviL, t ome  
known, who, being by me duly sworn, did depose and say that he resides at 1101 N.W. l lsth Ave., 
Plantation, FL 33323; that he is a Vice President, Accounting, Controller and Chief Accounting Officer of 
FLORIDA POWER & LIGHT COMPANY, one of the corporations described in and which executed the above 
instrument; that he knows the seal of said corporation; that the seal affvred to saidinstrument is such 
corporate s e a t  that it was so affivred by order of the Boardof Directors of said corporation, and that he 
signed his name thereto by like order. 

I HEREBY CERTIFY, that on this 20th day of April, 1999, before me personally appeared K. M. 
Davis and Dilek Samil, respectively, the Vice President, Accounting, Controller and Chief Accounting 
Officer and the Treasurer and Assistant Secretary of FLORIDA POWER & LIGHT COMPANY, a corporation 
under the laws of the State of Florida, to me known to be the persons described in and who executed the 
foregoing instrument and severally acknowledged the execution thereof to be theirfree act and deed as such 
officers, for the uses and purposes therein mentioned; and that they affixed thereto the official seal of said 
corporation, and that said instrument is the act and deed of said corporation. 

K. M. Davis and Dilek Samil produced Florida Driver's License No.Dl20-513-46-467-0 and 
Florida Driver's License No. S540-160-55-827-0 as identification, respectively. 

W m s s  my signature and official seal at Juno Beach, in the County of PalmBeach, and State 
of Florida, the day and year last aforesaid. 

Commission No. CC7683 19 
My Commission Expires Oct. 21,2002 



STATE OF NEW YORK 
COUNTY OF NEW YORK 

On the 20th day of April: in the year 1999, before me personally came James C. McDonough, 
to me know, who. being by me duly swom, did depose and say that he resides at 150 Draper Lane, Dobbs 
Ferry, New York that he is aVice President of BANKERS TRUST COMPANY, one of the corporations 
described in and which execured the above instrument; that he knows the seal ofsaid corporation; that the 
seal affixed to said insttument is such corporate sea1;that it was so affixed by order of the Board of 
Directors of said corporation, and that he signed his name thereto by like order. 

I HEREBY CERTIFY, that on this 20th day of April, 1999, before me personally appeared James 
C. McDonough and William T. Jenkins, respectively, a Vice President and an Assistant Vice President of 
BANKERS TRUST COMPANY, a corporation under the laws of the state of New York, to me known to be the 
persons described in and who executed the foregoing instrument and severally acknowledged the execution 
thereof to be their free act and deed as such officers, for the uses and purposes therein mentioned; and that 
they affixed thereto the official seal of said corporation, and that said instrument is the act and deed of said 
corporation. 

James C. McDonough and William T. Jenkins produced New York Driver's License No. 286 
690 794 and Massachusetts Driver's License No. S711243 as identification. respectively. 

WITNESS my signature and official seal at New York City, in the County of New York, and 
State of New York. the day and year last aforesaid. 

-2 <,-..A I i -=z-------- 
Na-Notary: Richard Buckwalter 

Notary Public. State of New York 
Commission No. 01SH50S7262 
Qualified in Kings County 
Certificate Filed in New York County 
My Commission Expires July 15, 1999 
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S T E E L l  
H E C T O R  
H D A V  I S 

Steel Hector 8. Davis LLP 

200 South Biscayne Boulevard 

Miami, Florida 33131-2398 

305.577.7000 

305.577.7001 Fax 
www.Steelhector.com 

March 23,2000 

Florida Power & Light Company 
700 Universe Boulevard 
Juno Beach, Florida 33408 

Re: Issuance and sale by Florida Power & Light Company (the “Company”) on April 
23,1999 of $225,000,000 Principal Amount of First Mortgage Bonds, 5 7/8% Series 
Due April 1.2009 (Florida Public Service Commission Docket No. 981242-EI) 

Ladies and Gentlemen: 

This opinion relates to: (a) the application which was filed by you with the Florida Public 
Service Commission (the “Commission”) on September 30, 1998; (b) Order No. 
PSC-98-1608-FOF-E1 issued by the Commission on December 2, 1998 (the “First Order”); (c) 
Amendatory Order No. PSC-98-1608A-FOF-E1 issued by the Commission on December 30, 
1998 (the “Amendatoly Order”, and together with the First Order, the “Order”); and (d) the 
issuance and sale of $225,000,000 principal amount of First Mortgage Bonds, 5 718% Series due 
April 1,2009 (the “Bonds”), authorized to be issued by the Order. 

The Bonds have been duly and validly authorized by all necessary corporate action on the 
part of the Board of Directors of the Company, have been duly issued for value and are valid and 
binding obligations of the Company in accordance with their terms, except as limited or affected 
by bankruptcy, insolvency, reorganization, receivership, moratorium or other laws affecting 
mortgagees’ and other creditors’ rights and remedies generally and general principles of equity. 

In rendering the foregoing opinion, we have assumed that the Bonds conform to 
specimens examined by us and have been duly authenticated by Bankers Trust Company, the 
Trustee under the Mortgage and Deed of Trust dated as of January 1, 1944, as the same is 
supplemented by ninety-nine indentures supplemental thereto, and that the signatures on all 
documents examined by us are genuine, assumptions which we have not independently verified. 

We are members of the Florida Bar and do not hold ourselves out as experts on the laws 
of any other state, and accordingly, this opinion is limited to the laws of Florida and the federal 
laws of the United States. As to all matters of New York law, we have relied, with your consent, 
upon an opinion dated as of April 23, 1999 addressed to NationsBanc Montgomery Securities 
LLC and Lehman Brothers Inc. by Thelen Reid & Priest LLP, New York, New York. 

Miami West Palm Beach Tallahassee Key West London Caracas SBO Paul0 RID de Janeiro 



We hereby consent to the delivery of this opinion to the Florida Public Service 
Commission. 

Very truly yours, 

L ~ + L w  
STEEL HECTOR & DAVIS LLP 

WWJMUJEM 

MIA-1998157 1779-1 





You should rely only on the information 
incorporated by reference or providd in this 
Rospeaos Supplement or in the aawnpanying 
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to provide you with different information. FPL is 
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If so indicated in the Prospectus Supplement, FPL will authorize agents, undeMlriters or dealers to 
solicit offers by certain specified institutions to purchase Offered Bonds from FPL at the public offering price 
set forth in the hospecrus Supplement pursuant to delayed delivery contracts providing for payment and 
delivery on a specified date in the future. Such contracts will be subject to those conditions set forth in the 
Prospectus Supplement, and the Prospectus Supplement will set forth the commission payable for solicitation of 
such contracts. 

Agents and underwriters may be entitled under agreements entered into with FPL to indemnification by 
FPL against certain civil liabilities, including liabilities under the Securities Act of 1933, as mended (Securities 
Act). 

EXPERTS 

The consolidated financial statements of FPL and its subsidiaries appearing in FPL’s h u a l  Report on 
Form 10-K incorporated by reference herein have been audited by Deloitte & Touche LLP, independent 
auditors, as stated in their report included in said Annual Report on Form 10-K, which report is incorporated 
herein by reference, and have been so incorporated by reference herein in reliance upon such report given upon 
the authority of that f m  as experts in accounting and auditing. 

Legal conclusions and opinions specifically attributed to counsel in the documents incorporated herein 
by reference have been reviewed by Steel Hector & Davis LLP, West Palm Beach, Florida, counsel to FPL, 
and are set forth on the authority of said fum as experts. 

LEGAL OPINIONS 

The legality of the New Bonds will be passed upon for FPL by Steel Hector & Davis LLP, West Palm 
Beach, Florida, and Thelen Reid & Priest LLP, New York, New York, COCOUDSel to FPL, and for any 
undenvriter or agent by Win-, Sdmson, Putnam & Roberts, New York, New York. Thelen Reid & Priest 
U P  and Wmthrop, Stimson, Put” & Roberts may rely as to all matters of Florida law upon the opinion of 
Steel Hector & Davis LLP. Steel Hector & Davis LLP may rely as to all matters of New York law on the 
opinion of Thelen Reid & Priest U P .  

No dealer, salesman or other person has been authorized to give any information or to make any 
representations other than those contained in thii Prospectus or any Prospectus Supplement in connection 
with an offer made by this Frospectns or any Prospeaus Supplement, and if given or made, such 
information or representations must not he relied upon as having been authorized by FPL or any other 
person, underwriter, dealer or agent. Neither the delivery of this Prospectus or any RospeauS 
Supplement nor any sale made hereunder shall, under any eireumstaa ces, create an imptication that there 
has been no change in the affairs of FPL since the date hereof or therrof. This Prospedus and any 
Prospectus Supplement do not constitute an offer or solicitation by anyone in any jurisdiction in which 
such offer or solicitation is not authorized or in which the person making such offer or solicitation is not 
qualified to do so or to anyone to whom it is unlawful to make such offer or solidtation. 
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Holders of 25% of the Bonds may declare the principal and the interest due on default, but a majority 
may m u l  such declaration if such default has been cured. No holder of Bonds may enforce the lien Of the 
Mortgage unless (1) such holder has given the Mortgage Trustee written notice of a default; (2) 25% of the 
Bonds have requested the Mortgage Trustee to act and offered it reasonable oppormnity to act and indemnity 
satisfactory to the Mortgage Trustee against the costs, expenses and liabilities to be incurred thereby; and (3) the 
Mortgage Trustee has failed to act. The Mortgage Trustee is not required to risk its funds or incur personal 
liability if there is reasonable ground for believing that the repayment is not Ea?OMbly assured. A majority Of 
the Bonds may direct the time, method, and place of conducting any proceedings for any remedy available to 
the Mortgage Trustee, or exercising any tmst or power conferred upon the Mortgage Trustee. 

Satisfaction and Discharge of Mortgage. Upon FPL's making due provision for the payment of all of 
the Bonds and paying all other sums due under the Mortgage, the Mortgage may be satisfied and discharged of 
record. 

Evidence to be Furnished to the Mortgage Trustee. Compliance with Mortgage provisions is 
evidenced by written statements of FPL's officers or persons selected or paid by FPL. In certain major matters 
the accountant, appraiser, engineer or counsel must be independent. Various certificates and other papers are 
required to be filed annually and in certain events, including an annual certificate with reference to compliance 
with the terms of the Mortgage and absence of default. 

Concerning the Mortgage Trustee. In the regular course of business, FPL may obtain short-term 
funds from several banks, including Bankers Trust Company. 

PLAN OF DISTRIBUTION 

FPL may sell the New Bonds in any of three ways: (i) through underwriters or dealers; (ii) directly to 
a l i i t e d  number of purchasers or to a single purchaser; or (iii) through agents. The Prospectus Supplement 
with respect to the Offered Bonds sets forth the t e n  of the offering of the Offered Bonds, including the name 
or names of any underwriters, dealers or agents, the purchase price of such Offered Bonds and the proceeds to 
FPL from such sale, any underwriting discounts and other items constituting underwriters' compensation, any 
initial public offering price and any discounts or concessions allowed or reallowed or paid to dealers. Any 
initial public offering price and any discounts or concessions allowed or reallowed or paid to dealers may be 
changed from time to time. 

If underwriters are used in the sale, the New Bonds will be acquired by the underwriters for their own 
acMunt and may be resold from time to time in one or more uausactions, including negotiated transactions, at a 
fixed public offering price or at varying prices determined at the time of the sale. The New Bonds may be 
offered to the public either through underwriting syndicates represented by one or more managing underwriters 
as may be designated by FPL, or directly by one or more of such firms. The underwriter or underwriters with 
respect to a particular underwritten offering of Offered Bonds are named in the Prospectus Supplement relating 
to such offering and, if an underwriting syndicate is used, the managing underwriter or underwriters are set 
forth on the cover page of such Prospectus Supplement. Unless otherwise set forth in the Prospectus 
Supplement, the obligations of the underwriters to purchase the O f f e d  Bonds will be subject to certain 
conditions precedent, and the underwriters will be obligated to purchase all such Offered Bonds if any are 
purchased. 

New Bonds may be sold directly by FPL or through agents designated by FPL from time to time. The 
Prospectus Supplement sets forth the name of any agent involved in the offer or sale of the Offered Bonds in 
respect of which the Prospectus Supplement is delivered as well as any commissions payable by FPL to such 
agent. Unless otherwise indicated in the Prospectus supplement, any such agent is acting on a best efforts basis 
for the period of its appointment. 
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earnings are computed after provision for retirement and depreciation of property equal to the replacement 
reqnirements of the Mortgage for such period. 

Property Additions generally include plants, lines, pipes, mains, cables, machinery, boilers, 
transmission lines, pipe lines, distribution systems, seMce systems and supply systems, Nuclear Fuel that has 
been expressly subjected to the lien and operation of the Mortgage, railroad cars, barges and other 
transportation equipment (other than trucks) for the transportation of fuel, and other property, or personal, 
and improvements, extensions, additions, renewals or replacements located within the United States of America 
or its coastal waters. Any such property, whether or not in operation, can be used as Property Additions prior 
to the obtaining of permits or licenses. Property Additions may not include securities, fuel (including Nuclear 
Fuel unless expressly subjected to the lien and operation of the Mortgage), automobiles or other vehicles, or 
property used principally for the production or gathering of nahual gas. Under the Mortgage, FPL could issue 
approximately $4.1 billion of additional first mortgage bonds based on unfunded Property Additions and $4.0 
billion of additional first mortgage bonds based on the retirement of Bonds at December 31, 1998. 

The Mortgage contains certain restrictions upon the issuance of Bonds against property subject to liens 
and upon the increase of the amount of such liens. 

Release and Substitution of Property. Property may be released against (1) deposit of cash or, to a 
l i t e d  extent, purchase money mortgages, (2) Property Additions, and (3) waiver of the right to issue Bonds 
without applying any eamings test. Cash so deposited and cash deposited against the issuance of additional 
Bonds may be withdrawn upon the bases stated in (2) and (3) above. when property released is not funded 
propetty, Property Additions used to effect the release may again, in certain cases, become available as credits 
under the Mortgage, and the waiver of the right to issue Bonds to effect the release may, in certain cases, cease 
to be effective as such a waiver. Similar provisions are in effect as to cash proceeds of such property. The 
Mortgage contains special provisions with respect to qualified lien bonds pledged, and disposition of monies 
received on pledged prior lien bonds. FPL may, without any release, consume in its operations Nuclear Fuel 
even if such Nuclear Fuel has been expressly subjected to the lien and operation of the Mortgage. 

Dividend Restrictions. The Mortgage Coatains provisions restricting an amount of retained earnings 
which can be used to pay cash dividends on common stock. The amount restricted is subject to being in- 
or decreased on the basis of variouS factors and any restricted retained earnings can be used for varions 
purposes. No retained earnings were restricted, as a result of these provisions of the Mortgage, as of December 
31, 1998. 

Modification of the Mortgage. Generally the rights of the Bondholders may be modified with the 
consent of 66-2/3% of the Bonds and, if less than all series of Bonds are affected, the consent also of 6643% 
of Bonds of each series affected. FPL has reserved the right to amend the Mortgage without any consent or 
other action by the holders of any series of Bonds created after Apd 30, 1992 (including the New Bonds) so as 
to substitute for the foregoing provisions the following: Generally the rights of the Bondhol&rs may be 
modified with the consent of a majority of the Bonds, but if less than a l l  series of the Bonds are affested, only 
the consent of a majority of the affected Bonds is required. In g e n d ,  no modification of the terms of payment 
of principal and interest, no modification of the obligations of FPL under Section 64 of the Mortgage (until the 
foregoing substitution is made), and no modification affecting the lien or reducing the percentage required for 
modification, are effective against any Bondholder without such Bondholder's consent. 

Default and Notice Tbereof. Defaults are: default in payment of principal; default for 60 days in 
payment of interest or of installments of funds for retirement of Bonds; certain defaults with respect to qualified 
lien bonds; certain events in bankruptcy, insolvency or reorganization: and default for 90 days after notice on 
other covenants. The Mortgage Trustee may withhold notice of default (except in payment of principal, interest 
or any fund for retirement of Bonds), if it thinks it is in the interests of the Bondholders. 
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offered, sold, resold or delivered in the United States or to United States persons in connection with their 
original issmce. Unless otherwise specified in the Prospectus Supplement, the New Bonds will be issuable in 
the form of registered bonds without coupons. New Bonds will be exchangeable without charge for other New 
Bonds of the same series and of the same or different authorized denominations, in each case for a l i e  
aggregate principal amount of New Bonds having the same issue date with identical terms and provisions, unless 
othemise specified in the Prospectus Supplement. New Bonds may be transferred without charge, other than 
for applicable stamp taxes or other govemental charges, unless otherwise specified in the Prospectus 
Supplement. Reference is made to the Prospectus Supplement for additional requirements as to the form and 
method of exchange of the New Bonds. Additionally, New Bonds may be represented in whole or in part by 
global notes, and if so represented, beneficial interests in such global notes will be shown on and transfers 
thereof will be effected only through, records maintained by a designated depository and its participants. 

Interest and Payment. Reference is made to the Prospecrus Supplement for the interest rate or rates 
(which may be either fixed or variable) and/or the method of determination of such rate or rates of the Offered 
Bonds and the date or dates on which such interest is payable. Unless otherwise specified in the Prospectus 
Supplement, principal and interest are payable in U S .  dollars at Bankers TNst Company in New York City. 

Redemption and Purchase of Offered Bonds. See the Prospectus Supplement. 

Special Provisions for Retirement of Bonds. If, during any 12 month period, mortgaged property is 
disposed of by order of or to any Federal, State, county, municipal or other governmental bodies or agencies, 
resulting in the receipt of $10 million or more as proceeds, FPL (subject to certain conditions) must apply such 
proceeds, less certain deductions, to the retirement of Bonds. Any series of Bonds may be redeemable at the 
redemption prices applicable for this purpose. See the Prospectus Supplement. 

Security. The New Bonds together with all other Bonds now or hereafter issued under the Mortgage 
will be secured by the Mortgage, which constitutes, in the opinion of counsel to FPL, a fust mortgage lien on 
all of the present properties and franchises of FPL (except as stated below), subject to (a) lease of minor 
portions of FPL's property to others for uses which, in the opinion of such counsel, do not interfere with FPL's 
business, (b) leases of certain property of FPL not used in its electric business, and (c) excepted encumbrances. 
There are excepted from the lien all cash and securities; certain equipment, materials or supplies and fuel 
(including Nuclear Fuel); automobiles and other vehicles; receivables, contracts, leases and operating 
agreements; and timber, minerals, minexal rights and royalties. 

The Mortgage contains pmvisions subjecting after-acquired property (subject to pre-existing liens) to 
the lien thereof, subject to l i t a t i ons  in the case of consolidation, merger or sale of substantially all of FPL's 
assets. Property acquired since the most recent recording of a supplemental indenture may also be subject to 
possible rights of others which may attach prior to recordation of a supplemental indenture subsequent to the 
acquisition of such property. 

The Mortgage provides that the Mortgage Trustee shall have a lien upon the mortgaged property, prior 
to the Bonds, for the payment of its reasonable compensation and expenses and for indemaity against certain 
liabilities. 

Issuance of Additional Bonds. The maximum principal amount of Bonds which may be issued under 
the Mortgage is unlimited. Bonds of any series may be issued from time to time on the basis of (1) 60% of 
Property Additions after adjustments to offset retirements, (2) retirement of Bonds or qualified lien bonds, and 
(3) deposit of cash. With certain exceptions in the case of (2) above, the issuance of Bonds is subject to 
adjusted net earnings for 12 consecutive months out of the preceding 15 months before income taxes being 
either at least twice the annual interest requirements on, or 10% of the principal amount of, all Bonds at the 
time outstanding, including the additional issue, and all indebtedness of prior or equal rank. Such adjusted net 
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coasts of the State of Florida with a population of approximately 7 million. During 1998, FPL served 
approximately 3.7 million customer accounts. All of the shares of common stock of FPL is owned by FPL 
Group, Inc. (FPL Group). 

USE OF PROCEEDS 

FPL is offering hereby a maximum of $300,000,000 aggregate principal amount of New Bonds. The 
net proceeds to be received from the sale of the New Bonds will be added to FPL's general funds and will be 
used for corporate purposes which may include, but are not limited to. the redemption or purchase of certain of 
its outstanding debt and preferred stock, the qayment of all or a portion of short-term borrowings outstanding, 
the repayment of all or a portion of any maturing long-term debt obligations and the financing of the acquisition 
or construction of additional electric facilities. proceeds not immediately required for the foregoing purposes 
will be temporarily invested in short-term instruments. 

FPL maintains a continuous construction program, principally for electric generation, transmission and 
distribution facilities. FPL anticipates ftnancing this program partially through internally generated funds, 
partially through the sale of additional securities, partially through short-term borrowings and partially through 
equity invesments by FPL Group. See "Item 1. Business - Capital Expenditures" and 'item 7. Management's 
Discussion and Analysis of Financial Condition and Results of Operations - Liquidity and Capital Resources" in 
the Form 10.K incorporated by reference herein. 

RATIO OF EARNINGS TO FIXED CHARGES 

The ratios of earnings to tixed charges for the years ended December 31, 1994 through 1998 are 3.86, 
4.33, 4.58, 4.95 and 5.69, respectively. 

DESCRIPTION OF NEW BONDS 

General. The New Bonds are to be issued under a Mortgage and Deed of Trust dated as of January 1, 
1944, with Bankers Trust Company, as Trustee (Mortgage Trustee), and The Florida National Bank of 
Jacksonville (now resigned) as supplemented and amended, and as to be supplemented by one or more 
supplemental indentures relating to the New Bonds, all of which are collectively referred to as the "Mortgage". 

The following statements are brief summaries of certain provisions of the Mortgage, which is on file 
with the SEC and incorporated by reference herein, and do not purport to be complete. They make use of 
terms defined in the Mortgage. Reference is made to the Mortgage for a d e f ~ t i o n  of these terms and for the 
complete provisions of the Mortgage. The following statements are qualified in their entirety by such reference. 

Reference is made to the Prospectus Supplement for the following terms of the Offered Bonds (among 
others): (i) the designation, series and aggregate principal amount of the Offered Bonds: (u) the percentage or 
percentages of their principal amount at which such Offered Bonds will be ks&, (ui) the date or dates on 
which the Offered Bonds will mature: (iv) the rate or rates (which may be either fixed or variable), and/or the 
method of determination of such rate or rates, per mum at which the Offered Bonds will bear interest; (v) the 
times at which such interest will be payable; (vi) the place where the principal of and interest on the Offered 
Bonds will be payable; (vii) the denominations in which the Offered Bonds are authorized to be issued; (viii) the 
redemption terms, if any: (i) whether the Offered Bonds will be in registered form, in bearer form or both; (x) 
whether all or a portion of the Offered Bonds will be in global form; and (xi) any other terms or provisions 
relating to such Offered Bonds which are not inconsistent with the provisions of the Mortgage. 

Form and Exchanges. The New Bonds may be issued in fully registered form without coupons. in 
bearer form with or without coupons or any combination thereof. New Bonds in bearer form will not be 
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AVAILABLE INFORMATION 

FPL is subject to the informational requirements of the Securities Exchange Act Of 1934, as amended 
(Exchange Act), and in accordance therewith files reports and other information with the Securities and 
Exchange Commission (SEC). Such reports and other hformation can be inspected and copied at the public 
reference facilities maintained by the SEC at Room 1024, 450 Fifth Street, N.W., Washington, D.C. 20549 and 
at the following Regional Offices of the SEC: Chicago Regional Office, 500 West Madison Street, Suite 1400, 
Chicago, Illinois 60661; and New York Regional Office, Seven World Trade Center, Suite 1300, New York, 
New York 10048. Copies of such material can also be obtained from the Public Reference Section of the SEC 
at its principal office at 450 Fifth Street, N.W., Washington, D.C. 20549 at prescribed rates. In addition, the 
SEC maintains a World Wide Web site (http:/lwww.sec.gov) that contains reports and other information filed 
electronically by FPL. 

Security holders of FPL may obtain, upon request, copies of an Annual Report on Form 10-K of FPL 
containing f m c i a l  statements as of the end of the most recent fiscal year audited and reported upon (with an 
opinion expressed) by independent auditors. 

INCORPORATION OF CERTAIN DOCUMENTS BY REFERENCE 

The following FPL documents filed with the SEC are incorporated by reference in this Prospectus: 

1. FPL’s Annual Report on Form 10-K for the year ended December 31, 1998 (Form l@K). 

2. FPL‘s Current Reports on Form 8-K tiled with the SEC on March 17, 1999 and April 16, 
1999. 

All documents filed by FPL with the SEC pursuant to Sections 13(a), 13(c), 14 or 15(d) of the 
Exchange Act subsequent to the date of this Prospectus and prior to the terrninatiOn of the offering of the 
securities covered by this Prospectus shall be deemed to be incorporated by refemce in this Prospectus and to 
be a part hereof from the date of filiig such documents. 

Any statement contained in a document incorporated or deemed to be incorporated by reference herein 
shall be deemed to be modified or superseded for purposes of this Prospecm to the extent that a statement 
contained herein or in any other subsequently filed document which is deemed to be incorporated by reference 
herein or in the Prospectus Supplement modifies or supersedes such statement. Any such statement so modified 
or superseded shall not be deemed, except as so modified or superseded, to constitute a pan of this Prospectus. 

FPL will provide without charge to each person, including any beneficial owner, to whom a copy of 
this Prospectus is delivered, upon written or oral request of any such person, a copy of any and all of the 
documents referred to above that have been incorporated by reference in this Prospectus excluding the exhibits 
thereto (unless such exhibits are specifically incorporated by reference into such documents). Requests for such 
copies should be directed to: Robert J. Reger, Jr., Esq., Thelen Reid & Priest U P ,  40 West 57th Street, New 
York, New York, 10019, (212) 603-2000. 

FTL 

FPL was incorporated under the laws of Florida in 1925 and is engaged in the generation, ” i s s i o n ,  
distribution and sale of electric energy. The principal executive office of FPL is located at 700 Universe 
Boulevard, Juno Beach. Florida 33408, telephone (561) 694-4000, and the mailing address is P.O. Box 14oO0, 
Juno Beach, Florida 33408-0420. FPL supplies electric service throughout most of the east and lower west 
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Prospectus 

Florida Power & Light Company 

First Mortgage Bonds 

Florida Power & Light Company (FPL) intends from time to time to issue up to $ 3 ~ ~ , o o O , ~  
aggregate principal amount of its First Mortgage Bonds (New Bonds) in one or more series at prices and on 
terms to be determined when the agreement to sell is made or at the time of sale. 

For each issue of New Bonds for which this Prospectus is being delivered (Offered Bonds) there is an 
accompanying Prospectus Supplement or Prospectus Supplements (prospectus Supplement) that set fonh, 
without limitation and to the extent applicable, the series designation, aggregate principal amount of the issue, 
purchase price, maturity, interest rate or rates (which may be either fixed or variable) or the method of 
determination of such rate or rates, times of payment of interest, the place where the principal of and interest on 
the Offered Bonds will be payable, the denominations in which the Offered Bonds are authorized to be issued, 
whether the Offered Bonds will be issued in registered form, in bearer form or both, whether all or a portion of 
the Offered Bonds will be issued in global form, redemption terms, if any, and other special tem of the 
Offered Bonds. 

THESE SECURITIES HAVE NOT BEEN APPROVED OR DISAPPROVED BY THE SECURITIES AND 
EXCHANGE COMMISSION OR BY ANY STATE SECURITIES COMMlSSION 

NOR HAS THE SECURITIES AND EXCHANGE COMMISSION OR ANY 
STATE SECURITIES COMMISSION PASSED W O N  THE 
ACCURACY OR ADEQUACY OF THIS PROSPECTUS. 

ANY REPRESENTATION TO THE 
CONTRARY IS A CRJMINAL 

OFFENSE. 

The New Bonds may be sold directly by FPL or through agents designated from time to time or through 
underwriters or dealers or a group of underwriters. If any agents of FPL or any underwriters are involved in 
the sale of the Offered Bonds in respect of which this Prospectus is being delivered, the name of such agents or 
underwriters, the initial price to the public, any applicable commissions or discounts and the proceeds to FPL 
with =pea to such offered Bonds are set forth in the Prospectus Supplement. See "Plan of Distribution" for 
possible indemnification arrangements for underwriters or agents. 

The date of this Prospectus is April 20, 1999. 
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has severally agreed to purchase, the principal amount of Offered Bonds set forth opposite that Underwriter's name 
in the table below: 

Principal Amount 
Underwriter of mered Bonds 
NationsBanc Montgomery Securities LLC . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .  $125,oM),OOO 
Lehman Brothers Inc. . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .  $lOO.ooO.ooO 

Total . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .  $225,000.000 

Under the terms and conditions of the Underwriting Agreement, the Underwriters must buy all of the 
Offered Bonds if they buy any of them. The Underwriters will sell the Offered Bonds to the public when and if 
the Underwriters buy the Offered Bonds from FPL. 

The Underwriters will sell the Offered Bonds in p m  directly to the public at the price to the public set forth 
on the cover page of this Prospectns Supplement, and in part to certain dealers at the price to the public less a 
concession. FPL will compensate the Underwriters by selling the Offered Bonds to them at a price that is less than 
the price to the public by the amount of the "Underwriting Discount" set forth in the table below (expressed as a 
percentage of principal amount). The Underwriters may sell the Offered Bonds to certain dealers at a price that 
is less than the price to the public by no more than the amonnt of the "Initial Dealers' Concession" set forth in the 
table below (expressed as a percentage of principal amount). The Underwriten and such dealers may sell the 
Offered Bonds to certain other dealers at a price that is less than the price to the public by no more than the amount 
of the "Reallowed Dealers' Concession" set forth in the table below (expressed as a percentage of principal amount). 

Underwriting Discount . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .  0.360% 
Initial Dealers' Concession . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .  0.250% 
Reallowed Dealers' Concession . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .  0.125% 

An Underwriter may reject offers for the Offered Bonds. After the initial public offering of the Offered 
Bonds, the Underwriters may change the offering price and other selliig terms of the Offered Bonds. 

FPL estimates that its expenses in connection with the sale of the Offered Bonds, other than underwriting 
discounts, will be $1,4OO,ooO. This estimate includes expenses relating to Florida taxes, printing, rating agency 
fees, uustees' fees and legal fees, among other expenses. 

There is no established trading market for the Offered Bonds. The Underwriters have advised FPL that 
they intend to make a trading market in the Offered Bonds but are not obligated to do so and may discontinue 
market-making at any time without notice. FPL cannot give any assurance as to the maintenance of the trading 
market for, or the liquidity of, the Offered Bonds. 

FPL has agreed to indemnify the Underwriters against certain liabilities, including liabilities under the 
Securities Act of 1933, as amended. 

In order to facilitate the offering of the Offered Bonds, the Underwriters may engage in transactions that 
stabilize, maintain or otherwise affect the price of the Offered Bonds. Specifically, the Underwriters may overallot 
in connection with the offering of the Offered Bonds, creating a short position in the Offered Bonds for their own 
account. In addition, to cover overallotments, the Underwriters may bid for, and purchase, Offered Bonds in the 
open market. Any of these activities may maintain the price of the Offered Bonds above independent market levels. 
The Underwriters are not required to engage in these activities and may end any of these activities at any time. 



@) the principal amount that, but for such redemption, would have been payable at the final 
maturity of the Offered Bonds being redeemed; over 

(2) 

The present values of interest and principal payments referred to in clause (1) above will be determined 
in accordance with generally accepted principles of financial analysis. These present values will be calculated by 
discounting the amount of each payment of interest or principal from the date that each such payment would have 
been payable, but for the redemption, to the Redemption Date at a discount rate equal to the Treasury Yield (as 
defined below) plus 10 basis points. 

the principal amount of the Offered Bonds being redeemed. 

FPL will appoint an independent investment banking institution of national standing to calculate the make- 
whole premium; provided that NationsBanc Montgomery Securities LLC will make such calculation if (1) FPL fails 
to make such appointment at least 30 calendar days prior to the Redemption Date, or (2) the institution so appointed 
is unwilling or unable to make such calculation. If NationsBanc Montgomery Securities LLC is to make such 
calculation but is unwilling or unable to do so, then the Trustee (as defined in the accompanying Prospectus) will 
appoint an intkpendent investment banking institution of national standing to make such calculation. In any case, 
the institution making such calculation is referred to in this Prospectus Supplement as an "Independent Investment 
Banker. " 

For purposes of determining the make-whole premium, "Treasury Yield" means a rate of interest per 
m u m  equal to the weekly average yield to maturity of United States Treasury Notes that have a constant maturity 
that corresponds to the remaining term to maturity of the Offered Bonds, calculated to the nearest 1112th of a year 
(the "Remaining Term"). The Independent Investment Banker will detemine the Treasury Yield as of the third 
business day immediately preceding the applicable Redemption Date. 

The Independent Investment Banker will determine the weekly average yields of United States Treasury 
Notes by reference to the most recent statistical release published by the Federal Reserve Bank of New York and 
designated "H. 15(519) Selected Interest Rates" or any successor release (the "H.15 Statistical Release"). If the H. 15 
Statistical Release sets forth a weekly average yield for United States Treasury Notes having a constant maturity 
that is the same as the Remaining Term, then the Treasury Yield will be equal to such weekly average yield. In 
all other cases, the Independent Investment Banker will calculate the Treasury Yield by interpolation, on a straight- 
h e  basis, between the weekly average yields on the United States Treasury Notes that have a constant maturity 
closest to and greater than the Remaining Term and the United States Treasury Notes that have a constant malurity 
closest to and less than the Remaining Term (in each case as set forth in the H.15 Statistical Release). The 
Independent Investment Banker will round any weekly average yields so calculated to the nearest IllOOth of 156, 
and will round upward for any figure of 1/2OOh of 1% or above. If weekly average yields for United States 
Treasury Notes are not available in the H.15 Statistical Release or otherwise, then the Independent Investment 
Banker will select comparable rates and calculate the Treasury Yield by reference to those rates. 

If at the time notice of redemption is given, the redemption moneys are Mt on deposit with the Mortgage 
Trustee, the redemption shall be subject to their receipt before the date fixed for redemption and such notice shall 
be of no effect unless such moneys are received. 

Cash deposited under any provisions of the Mortgage (with certain exceptions) may be applied to the 
purchase of First Mortgage Bonds of any series. 

UNDERwRlTING 

FPL is selling the Offered Bonds to the Underwriters named in the table below pursuant to an Underwriting 
Agreement dated April 20, 1999. FPL has agreed to sell to each of the Underwriters, and each of the Underwriters 
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USE OF PROCEEDS 

The information in this section adds to the information in the "Use of Proceeds" section on page 3 of the 
accompanying Prospectus. Please read these two sections together. 

The First Mortgage Bonds 5 7/8% Series due April 1,2009 are referred to in this Prospectus Supplement 
as the "Offered Bonds." 

Florida Power & Light Company ("FPL") will add the net proceeds from the sale of the Offered Bonds 
to its general funds. FPL expects to use its general funds to redeem all $215,959,000 principal amount of its First 
Mortgage Bonds, 7 7/8% Series due January 1,2013 and for other corporate purposes. FPL will temporarily invest 
any pmceeds that are not immediately required for these purposes in short-term instruments. 

CERTAIN TERMS OF TIIE OFFERED BONDS 

The information in this section adds to the information in the "Description of New Bonds" section beginning 
on page 3 of the accompanying Prospecm. Please read these two sections together. 

General. FPL will issue the Offered Bonds as a new series of First Mortgage Bonds un&r the Mortgage 
(as defined in the accompanying Prospectus). The Ninety-ninth Supplemental Indenture, dated as of April 1,1999, 
supplements the Mortgage and establishes the specific terms of the Offered Bonds. 

Interest and Payment. FPL will pay interest on the Offered Bonds at 5 7/8% per annum. The Offered 
Bonds will mature on April 1,2009. FPL will pay interest on the Offered Bonds on April 1 and October 1 of each 
year (each an "Interest Payment Date"). The first Interest Payment Date will be October 1, 1999. 

FPL will pay interest on any overdue principal and (to the extent that payment of such interest is 
enforceable under applicable law) on any overdue instaUment of interest on the First Mortgage Bonds of all series 
at the rate of 6% per annum. 

Redemption. FPL may redeem any of the Offered Bonds at its option or if and when required by the 
Mortgage. FPL may redeem any of the Offered Bonds at any time or from time to time, on any date prior to their 
manuity (each a "Redemption Date"). FPL will give notice of its intention to redeem Offered Bonds at least 30 
days prior to a Redemption Date. If FPL redeems all or any part of the Offered Bonds, it will pay a redemption 
price ("Redemption Rice") equal to the sum of (1) 100% of the principal amount of the Offered Bonds being 
redeemed plus (2) accrued and unpaid interest thereon, if any, to the Redemption Date plus (3) any applicable 
"make-whole premium." The Redemption price for Offered Bonds will never be less than 100% of the principal 
amount of those Offered Bonds plus accrued and unpaid interest on those Offered Bonds to the Redemption Date. 

The amount of the make-whole premium with respect to any Offered Bonds to be redeemed will be equal 
to the excess, if any, of: 

(1) the sum of the present values, calculated as of the Redemption Date, o f  

(a) each interest payment that, but for such redemption, would have been payable on the 
Offered Bonds being redeemed on each Interest Payment Date Occurring after the 
Redemption Date (excluding any a c c ~ e d  interest for the period prior to the Redemption 
Date); and 
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PROSPECTUS SUPPLE&NT 
(To Prospectus dated April 20, 1999) 

W 

$225,000,000 
Florida Power & Light Company 

FPL First Mortgage Bonds, 
5 7/8% Series due April 1,2009 

Florida Power & Light Company will pay interest on these securities on April 1 and October 1 of each year, 
commenchg October 1.1999. Florida Power & Light Company may redeem some or all of these securities at any 
time before their maturity date at the redemption prices discussed under the caption "Certain Terms of the Offered 
Bonds - Redemption" beginning on page 5 2  of this Prospectus Supplement. 

Florida Power & Light Company does not plan to list these securities on any Securities exchange. These 
&ties are secured by the lien of Florida Power & Light Company's mortgage and rank equally with all of 
Florida Power & Light Company's fmt mortgage bonds. The lien of the mortgage is discussed under "Description 
of the New Bonds - Security" on page 4 of the accompanying Prospanus. 

Florida Power & Light Company's principal executive ofices are located at 700 Universe Boulevard, Juno 
Beach, Florida 33408, telephone (561) 694-4000, and its mailing address is P.O. Box 14000, Juno Beach, Florida 
33408-0420. 

Neither the sefurities and Exchange Commission nor any state securities " n i s i o n  has approved or 
disapproved of these securities or determined if this Prospectus Supplement and the aaampanying Prospeaus 
are trutbfd or complere. Any representation to the contrary is a criminal offense. 

Per Fint Mortgage Bond TOW 

Pricetopublic ................... I lCQ% I $225.000.000 
~~ 

Underwritinx Discount .............. I 0.36% 

Roceeds to Florida Power & Light Company 
@fore e x p w s )  ................. 99.64% $224,190,000 

In addition to the Price to Public set forth above, each purchaser will pay an amount equal to the interest 
accrued on these securities from April 1, 1999 to the date that they are delivered to that purchaser. Florida Power 
& Light Company currently expects to issue these securitie on or about April 23, 1999. 

The following Underwriters have agreed to purchase these securities on a firm commitment basis. 

NationsBanc Montgomery Securities LLC 
Lehman Brothers 

The date of this Prospectus Supplement is April 20, 1999. 





UNITED STATES SECURITIES AND EXCHANGE COMMISSION 

WASHINGTON, D.C. 20549 

FORM 10-K 

[XI ANNUAL REPORT PURSUANT TO SECTION 13 OR 15(d) OF THE SECURITIES EXCHANGE ACT OF 1934 

For the fiscal year ended December 31, 1999 

OR 

[ ] TRANSITION REPORT PURSUANT TO SECTION 13 OR 15(d) OF THE SECURITIES EXCHANGE ACT OF 1934 

Commission 
File Number 

Exact name of Registrants as specified ~n their challers, address of 
principal executive ofices and Registrants' telephone number 

IRS Employer 
Identification Number 

1-8841 FPL GROUP, INC. 59-244941 9 

1-3545 FLORIDA POWER & LIGHT COMPANY 59-0247775 
700 Universe Boulevard 

Juno Beach. Florida 33408 
(561) 694-4000 

State or other jurisdiction of incorporation or organization: Florida 

Name of exchange 
on which registered 

New York Stock Exchange 
Securities registered pursuant to Section 12(b) of the Act: 

FPL Group, Inc.: Common Stock, $0.01 Par Value and Preferred Share Purchase Rights 
Florida Power & Light Company: None 

Securities registered pursuant to Section 12(g) of the Act: 
FPL Group, Inc.: None 
Florida Power & Light Company: Preferred Stock, $100 Par Value 

Indicate by check mark whether the registrants (1) have filed all reports required to be filed by Section 13 or 15(d) of the Securities Exchange A d  of 1934 during the 
preceding 12 months and (2) have been subject to such filing requirements for the past 90 days. Yes X 
Indicate by check mark if disclosure of delinquent filers pursuant lo Item 405 Of Regulation S-K is not contained herein, and will not be mntained to the best of 
Registrants' knowledge in definitive prow or information statements incorporated by reference in Part 111 of this Form 10-K or any amendment to this Form 10-K. [XI 

Aggregate market value of the voting stock of FPL Group, Inc. held by non-amliates as of January 31. 2000 (based on the closing market pnce on the Composite 
Tape on January 31, 2000) was 57,495,697,770 (determined by subtracting from the number of shares outstanding on that date the number of shares held by 
directors and omcers of FPL Group, Inc.). 

mere was no voting stock of Florida Power & Light Company held by non-affiliates as of January 31, 2000 

The number of shares outstanding of each class of FPL Group, Inc. common stock, as of the latest practicable date: Common Stock, $0.01 Par Value, outstanding 
at January 31,2000: 178,246,835 shares 

AS of January 31. 2000, there were issued and outstanding 1.000 shares of Florida Power 8 Light Company's common stock, without par value. all of which were 
held. beneficially and Of record. by FPL Group, Inc. 

No ~ 

DOCUMENTS INCORPORATED BY REFERENCE 

Portions of FPL Group. Inc.'s Proxy Statement for me 2000 Annual Meeting Of Shareholders are incorporated by reference in Part111 hereof. 

This combined Form 10-K represents separate filings by FPL Group, Inc. and Florida Power 8 Light Company. Information 
contained herein relating to an individual registrant is filed by that registrant on its own behalf. Florida Power 8 Light 
Company makes no representations as to the information relating to FPL Group, Inc.'s other operations. 
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DEFINITIONS 

Acronyms and defined terms used in the text include the following: 

Term 

capacity clause 

charter 

c o a l i t i o n  
conservation clause 

CMP 

DOE 

EMF 

environmental clause 
FDEP 

FERC 

FIPUG 

FGT 

FMPA 

FPL 

FPL Energy 
FPL FiberNet 

FPL GPOUp cap i ta l  

fue l  clause 
Holding company Act 
IBEW 

I E A  

kv 
kwh 
Management's D i  scussion 

mortgage 

FPL Group 

FPSC 

mw 
Note - 

Nuclear waste Pol icy  Act 
o&M expenses 

Public counsel 

qua l i f y i ng  f a c i l i t i e s  

Reform Act 
ROE 

RTOS 

SIRPP 

NRC 

PURPA 

capacity cost recovery clause 
central  Maine Power company 
Restated A r t i c l es  of Incorporation, as amended, o f  FPL Group o r  FPL, as 
the case may be 
The c o a l i t i o n  f o r  Equitable Rates 
Energy conservation cost recovery clause 
u.S. Department o f  Energy 
E l e c t r i c  and magnetic f i e l d s  
Environmental compliance cost recovery clause 
F lor ida Department o f  Environmental Protect ion 
Federal Energy Regulatory Commission 
The F lor ida Indus t r i a l  Power users Group 
F lor ida Gas Transmission Company 
F lor ida Municipal Power Agency 
F lor ida Power & L ight  Company 
FPL Energy, LLC (and i t s  predecessor FPL Energy, Inc.) 

FPL Group, Inc.  
FPL Group Capital I nc  
F lor ida Public Service commission 
Fuel and purchased power cost recovery clause 
Public u t i l i t y  Holding company Act o f  1935, as amended 
In ternat ional  Brotherhood o f  E lec t r i ca l  workers 
lacksonvi 11 e E l e c t r i c  Author i ty 
K i  1 ovol t 
K i  1 owatt-hour 
I tem 7. Management's Discussion and Analysis of Financial  condi t ion 
and Results o f  operations 
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SAFE HARBOR STATEMENT UNDER THE PRIVATE SECURITIES LITIGATION REFORM ACT OF 1995 

In connection with the safe harbor provisions of the Reform Act, FPL Group and FPL (collectively, the Company) are hereby 
filing cautionary statements identifying important factors that could cause the Company's actual results to differ materially 
from those projected in forward-looking statements (as such term is defined in the Reform Act) made by or on behalf of the 
Company which are made in this combined Form 10-K. in presentations, in response to questions or otherwise. Any, 
statements that express, or involve discussions as to expectations, beliefs, plans, objectives, assumptions or future events or 
performance (often. but not always, through the use of words or phrases such as will likely result, are expected to, will 
continue, is anticipated, estimated, projection. outlook) are not statements of historical facts and may be forward-looking. 
Forward-looking statements involve estimates, assumptions and uncertainties. Accordingly, any such statements are 
qualified in their entirety by reference to, and are accompanied by, the following important factors that could cause the 
Company's actual results to differ materially from those contained in forward-looking statements made by or on behalf of the 
Company. 

Any forward-looking statement speaks only as of the date on which such statement is made, and the Company undertakes no 
obligation to update any forward-looking statement to reflect events or circumstances after the date on which such statement 
is made or to reflect the occurrence of unanticipated events. New factors emerge from time to time and it is not possible for 
management to predict all of such factors, nor can it assess the impact of each such factor on the business or the extent to 
which any factor, or combination of factors, may muse actual results to differ materially from those contained in any forward- 
looking statement. 

Some important factors that could cause actual results or outcomes to differ materially from those discussed in the forward- 
looking statements include changes in laws or regulations, changing governmental policies and regulatory actions, including 
those of the FERC, the FPSC, the PURPA, the Holding Company Act and the NRC, with respect to allowed rates of return 
including but not limited to ROE and equity ratio limits, industry and rate structure, operation of nuclear power facilities, 
acquisition, disposal, depreciation and amortization of assets and facilities, operation and construction of plant facilities, 
recovery of fuel and purchased power costs, decommissioning costs, and present or prospective wholesale and retail 
competition (including but not limited to retail wheeling and transmission costs). 

The business and profitability of the Company are also influenced by economic and geographic factors including political and 
economic risks, changes in and compliance with environmental and safety laws and policies, weather conditions (including 
natural disasters such as hurricanes), population growth rates and demographic patterns, competition for retail and wholesale 
customers, availability, pricing and transportation of fuel and other energy commodities, market demand for energy from 
plants or facilities, changes in tax rates or policies or in rates of inflation or in accounting standards. unanticipated delays or 
changes in costs for capital projects. unanticipated changes in operating expenses and capital expenditures, capital market 
conditions, competition for new energy development opportunities and legal and administrative proceedings (whether civil, 
such as environmental, or criminal) and settlements. 

All such factors are difficult to predict, contain uncertainties which may materially affect actual results, and are beyond the 
control of the Company. 
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PART I 

Item 1. Business 

FPL GROUP 

FPL Group is a public utility holding company, as defined in the Holding Company Act. It was incorporated in 1984 under the 
laws of Florida. FPL Group's principal subsidiary. FPL, is engaged in the generation, transmission. distribution and sale of 
electric energy. FPL Group Capital, a wholly-owned subsidiary of FPL Group, holds the capital stock and provides funding for 
the operating subsidiaries other than FPL. The business activities of these operating subsidiaries primarily consist of FPL 
Energy's independent power projects. For financial information regarding segments, see Note 14. In 2000, FPL Group 
Capital formed a new subsidiary to sell wholesale fiber-optic network capacity. At December 31, 1999, FPL Group and its 
subsidiaries employed 10,717 persons. 

FPL Group is exempt from substantially all of the provisions of the Holding Company Act on the basis that FPL Group's and 
FPL's businesses are predominantly intrastate in character and carried on substantially in a single state in which both are 
incorporated 

FPL OPERATIONS 

General. FPL was incorporated under the laws of Florida in 1925 and is a wholly-owned subsidiary of FPL Group. FPL 
supplies electric service throughout most of the east and lower west coasts of Florida with a population of approximately 
seven million. During 1999, FPL sewed approximately 3.8 million customer accounts. Operating revenues were as follows: 

Years Ended December 31, 
1999 1998 1997 

("s) ~ 

R e s i d e n t i a l  ........................................... $3.357 $3,580 $3,394 
commercial ............................................ 2,226 2,239 2,222 
I n d u s r r i a l  ............................................ 190 197 206 
O t h e r ,  i n c l u d i n g  t h e  n e t  change i n  u n b i l l e d  revenues . .  

Regulation. Such 
operations are regulated by the FPSC which has jurisdiction over retail rates, service territory, issuances of securities, 
planning, siting and construction of facilities and other matters. FPL is also subject to regulation by the FERC in various 
respects, including the acquisition and disposition of facilities, interchange and transmission services and wholesale 
purchases and sales of electric energy. 

FPL's nuclear power plants are subject to the jurisdiction of the NRC. NRC regulations govern the granting of licenses for the 
construction and operation of nuclear power plants and subject such power plants to continuing review and regulation. 

Federal, state and local environmental laws and regulations cover air and water quality, land use, power plant and 
transmission line siting, EMF from power lines and substations, noise and aesthetics, solid waste and other environmental 
matters. Compliance with these laws and regulations increases the cost of electric service by requiring, among other things, 
changes in the design and operation of existing facilities and changes or delays in the location, design, construction and 
operation of new facilities. See Item 3. Legal Proceedings. Capital expenditures required to comply with environmental laws 
and regulations for 2000-02 are included in FPL's projected capital expenditures set forth in Item 1. Business - FPL 
Operations - Capital Expenditures and are not material. 

FPL currently holds 190 franchises with varying expiration dates to provide electric service in various municipalities and 
counties in Florida. FPL considers its franchises to be adequate for the conduct of its business. 

Retail Ratemaking. The underlying concept of utility ratemaking is to set rates at a level that allows the utility the opportunity 
to collect from customers total revenues (revenue requirements) equal to its cost of providing service. including a reasonable 
rate of return on invested capital. To accomplish this, the FPSC uses various ratemaking mechanisms. 

The basic costs of providing electric service. other than fuel and certain other costs, are recovered through base rates, which 
are designed to recover the costs of constructing, operating and maintaining the utility system. These basic costs include 
O&M expenses, depreciation and taxes, as well as a return on FPL's investment in assets used and useful in providing 
electric service (rate base). The rate of return on rate base approximates FPL's weighted cost of capital, which includes its 
costs for debt and preferred stock and an allowed ROE. The FPSC monitors FPL's ROE through a surveillance report that is 
filed monthly by FPL with the FPSC. The FPSC does not provide assurance that the allowed ROE will be achieved. Base 
rates are determined in rate proceedings which occur at irregular intewals at the initiative of FPL, the FPSC. Public Counsel 
or a Substantially affected party. 

The retail operations of FPL provided approximately 99% of FPL's operating revenues for 1999. 
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FPL's last full rate proceeding was in 1984. In 1990, FPL's base rates were reduced following a change in federal income tax 
rates. In 1999, the FPSC approved a three-year agreement among FPL, Public Counsel, FlPUG and Coalition regarding FPL's 
retail base rates. authorized regulatory ROE, capital structure and other matters. The agreement, which became effective April 
15, 1999, provides for a $350 million reduction in annual revenues from retail base operations allocated to all customers on a 
cents-per-kilowatt-hour basis. Additionally, the agreement sets forth a revenue sharing mechanism for each of the twelve-month 
periods covered by the agreement, whereby revenues from retail base operations in excess of a stated threshold will be shared 
on the basis of two-thirds refunded to retail customers and one-third retained by FPL. Revenues from retail base operations in 
excess of a second threshold will be refunded 100% to retail customers. 

The thresholds are as follows: 

Twelve Months Ended 
A p r i l  14. 
2001 2002 

Threshold t o  refund 66 2/3% to customers ..... 53,400 13.450 13,500 
Threshold to refund 100% t o  customers . . . . . ._ .  S 3 . 5 5 6  13,606 $3,656 

Offsetting the annual revenue reduction will be lower special depreciation. The agreement allows for special depreciation of up to 
$100 million, at FPL's discretion, in each year of the three-year agreement period to be applied to nuclear andlor fossil generating 
assets. Under this new depreciation program, FPL recorded approximately $70 million of special depreciation in 1999. The new 
depreciation program replaced a revenue-based special amortization program whereby special amortization in the amount of $63 
million, $378 million and $199 million was recorded in 1999, 1998 and 1997, respectively. 

In addition, the agreement lowered FPL's authorized regulatory ROE range to 10% - 12% from 11% - 13%. During the term of 
the agreement, the achieved ROE may from time to time be outside the authorized range, and the revenue sharing mechanism 
described above is specified to be the appropriate and exclusive mechanism to address that circumstance. For purposes of 
calculating ROE, the agreement establishes a cap on FPL's adjusted equity ratio of 55.83%. The adjusted equity ratio reflects a 
discounted amount for off-balance sheet obligations under certain long-term purchased power contracts. Finally, included in the 
agreement are provisions which limit depreciation rates, and accruals for nuclear decommissioning and fossil dismantlement 
costs. to currently approved levels and limit amounts recoverable under the environmental clause during the term of the 
agreement. 

The agreement states that Public Counsel, FIPUG and Coalition will neither seek nor support any additional base rate 
reductions during the three-year term of the agreement unless such reduction is initiated by FPL. Further, FPL agreed to not 
petition for any base rate increases that would take effect during the term of the agreement. 

Fuel costs totaled $1.7 billion in 1999 and are recovered through levelized charges per kwh established pursuant to the fuel 
clause. These charges are calculated annually based on estimated fuel costs and estimated customer usage for the 
following year, plus or minus a true-up adjustment to reflect the variance of actual costs and usage from the estimates used in 
setting the fuel adjustment charges for prior periods. 

Capacity payments to other utilities and generating companies for purchased power are recovered through the capacity 
clause and base rates. In 1999, $440 million was recovered through the capacity clause. Costs associated with 
implementing energy conservation programs totaled $83 million in 1999 and are recovered through the conservation clause. 
Costs of complying with federal, state and local environmental regulations enacted after April 1993 totaled $16 million in 1999 
and are recovered through the environmental clause to the extent not included in base rates. The new rate agreement limits 
recovery under this clause to $12.8 million in 2000 and $6.4 million in 2001, with no further amounts recoverable during the 
remaining term of the agreement. 

The FPSC has the authority to disallow recovery of costs that it considers excessive or imprudently incurred. Such costs may 
include O&M expenses, the cost of replacing power lost when fossil and nuclear units are unavailable and costs associated 
with the construction or acquisition of new facilities. 

Competition. The electric utility industry is facing increasing competitive pressure. FPL currently faces competition from 
other suppliers of electrical energy to wholesale customers and from alternative energy sources and self-generation for other 
customer groups, primarily industrial customers. In 1999, operating revenues from wholesale and industrial customers 
combined represented approximately 4% of FPL's total operating revenues. A number of potential merchant plants have 
been announced to date in Florida. However, only two submissions to seek a determination of need totaling approximately 
1,000 mw have been presented to the FPSC. In March 1999, the FPSC approved one of the petitions for a power plant to be 
constructed within FPL's service territory. FPL, along with other Florida utilities, has appealed the decision to the Florida 
Supreme Court. 

Almost half of the states. other than Florida, have enacted legislation or have state commissions that issued orders designed 
to deregulate the production and sale of electricity. By allowing customers to choose their electricity supplier, deregulation is 
expected to result in a shift from cost-based rates to market-based rates for energy production and other services provided to 
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retail customers. Similar initiatives are also being pursued on the federal level. Although the legislation and initiatives vary 
substantially, common areas of focus include when market-based pricing will be available for wholesale and retail customers, 
what existing prudently incurred costs in excess of the market-based price will be recoverable and whether generation assets 
should be separated from transmission. distribution and other assets. It is generally believed transmission and distribution 
activities would remain regulated. Since there is no deregulation proposal currently under consideration in Florida, FPL is 
unable to predict the impact of a change to a more competitive environment or when such a change might occur. 

In the event the basis of regulation for some or all of FPL's business changes from cost-based regulation. existing regulatory 
assets and liabilities would be written off unless regulators specify an alternative means of recovery or refund. Further. other 
aspects of the business, such as generation assets and long-term power purchase commitments, would need to be reviewed 
to assess their recoverability in a changed regulatory environment. See Management's Discussion - Results of Operations 
and Note 1 - Regulation. 

While legislators and state regulatory commissions will decide what role, if any, competitive forces will have on retail 
transactions. the FERC has jurisdiction over potential changes which could affect competition in wholesale transactions. In 
1993, FPL filed with the FERC a comprehensive revision of its service offerings in the wholesale market. FPL proposed 
changes to its wholesale sales tariffs for service to municipal and cooperatively-owned electric utilities and its power sharing 
(interchange) agreements with other utilities. A final decision by the FERC on this filing is pending. 

In December 1999, the FERC issued its final order on regional transmission organizations or RTOs. RTOs. under a variety of 
structures. provide for the independent operation of transmission systems for a given geographic area. The final order 
establishes guidelines for es to use in considering andlor developing plans to initiate operations of RTOs. The 
order requires all public u to file with the FERC by October 15, 2000, a proposal for an RTO with certain minimum 
characteristics and functions to be operational by December 15, 2001, or alternatively, a description of efforts to participate in 
an RTO, any existing obstacles to RTO participation and any plans to work toward RTO participation. FPL is evaluating 
various alternatives for compliance with the order. 

System Capability and Load. FPL's resources for serving summer load as of December 31, 1999 consisted of 16,649 mw. 
of which 16,444 mw are from FPL-owned fac es (see Item 2. Properties - Generating Facilities) and 2,205 mw are obtained 
through purchased power contracts. See Note 12 -Contracts. The compounded annual growth rate of retail kwh sales and 
number of retail customers was 2.9% and 1.9%. respectively, for the three years ended December 31, 1999. It is anticipated 
that retail kwh sales will grow at a compounded annual rate of approximately 3.7% for the next three years. 

Occasionally, unusually cold temperatures during the winter months result in significant increases in electricity usage for a 
short period of time. However, customer usage and operating revenues are typically higher during the summer months 
largely due to the prevalent use of air conditioning in FPL's service territory. In 1996, FPL set four consecutive records for 
summertime peak demand, ranging from 17,156 mw to 17,697 mw. Adequate resources were available at the time of each 
peak to meet customer demand. 

In 1999, the FPSC scheduled hearings to consider 
approved a proposal by FPL and two other Florida ut 
2004. FPL's reserve margin target is currently 15%. 

FPL intends to repower its two Fort Myers units and two of its three Sanford units by the end of 2002; these projects will be 
phased in beginning in 2001. FPL will also add two new gas-fired combustion turbines at its Martin site in 2001, and add new 
combustion turbines andlor gas-fired combined cycle units from 2003-09. These actions, plus other changes to FPL's 
existing units and purchased power contracts, are expected to increase FPL's net generating capability by over 4,000 mw. 

Capital Expenditures. FPL's capital expenditures totaled approximately $924 million in 1999, $617 million in 1996 and $551 
million in 1997. Capital expenditures for the 2000-02 period are expected to be $3.1 billion, including $1.3 billion in 2000. This 
estimate is subject to continuing review and adjustment. and actual capital expenditures may vary from this estimate. See 
Management's Discussion - Liquidity and Capital Resources. 

Nuclear Operations. FPL owns and operates four nuclear units, two at Turkey Point and two at Si. Lucie. The operating 
licenses for Turkey Point Units Nos. 3 and 4 expire in 2012 and 2013, respectively. The operating licenses for St. Lucie Units 
Nos. 1 and 2 expire in 2016 and 2023, respectively. The nuclear units are periodically removed from service to accommodate 
normal refueling and maintenance outages, repairs and certain other modifications. A condition of the operating license for 
each unit requires an approved plan for decontamination and decommissioning. FPL's current plans provide for prompt 
dismantlement of the Turkey Point Units Nos. 3 and 4 with decommissioning activities commencing in 2012 and 2013, 
respectively. Current plans call for St. Lucie Unit No. 1 to be mothballed beginning in 2016 with decommissioning activities to 
be integrated with the prompt dismantlement of Si. Lucie Unit No. 2 beginning in 2023. See estimated cost data in Note 1 - 
Decommissioning and Dismantlement of Generating Plant. FPL has informed the NRC of its intent to apply for a 20-year 
license renewal for each of its four nuclear units. FPL expects to file the application with the NRC in 2000 for the Turkey 
Point units and 2002 for the St. Lucie units. 

opriate reserve margin targets for peninsular Florida. The FPSC 
to voluntarily adopt a 20% reserve margin target to be achieved by 

6 



Fuel. FPL's generating plants use a variety of fuels. See Item 2. Properties - Generating Facilities and Note 12 - Contracts. 
The diverse fuel options, along with purchased power, enable FPL to shift between sources of generation to achieve an 
economical fuel mix. 

FPL has three contracts in place with FGT that satisfy substantially all of the anticipated needs for natural gas transportation. 
Additional agreements were executed to extend and provide incremental volumes to the Ft. Myers and Sanford plants, 
subject to approval by the FERC. The three existing contracts expire in 2010, 2015 and 2022 but can be extended at FPL's 
option. To the extent desirable. FPL can also purchase interruptible gas transportation service from FGT based on pipeline 
availability. FPL has a long-term natural gas supply contract at market rates to provide a portion of FPL's anticipated needs 
for natural gas. The remainder of FPL's gas requirements are purchased under other contracts and in the spot market. 

FPL has, through its joint ownership interest in SJRPP Units Nos. 1 and 2, long-term coal supply and transportation contracts 
for a portion of the fuel needs for those units. All of the transportation requirements and a portion of the fuel supply needs for 
Scherer Unit No. 4 are covered by a series of annual and long-term contracts. The remaining fuel requirements will be 
obtained in the spot market. FPL's oil requirements are obtained under short- and long-term contracts and in the spot market. 

FPL leases nuclear fuel for all four of its nuclear units. Currently, FPL is storing spent fuel on site and plans to provide 
adequate storage capacity for all of its spent nuclear fuel, pending its removal by the DOE. See Note 1 - Nuclear Fuel. 
Under the Nuclear Waste Policy Act, the DOE was required to construct permanent disposal facilities and take title to and 
provide transportation and disposal for spent nuclear fuel by January 31, 1998 for a specified fee based on current generation 
from nuclear power plants. Through December 1999, FPL has paid approximately $401 million in such fees to the DOEs 
Nuclear Waste Fund. The DOE did not meet its statutory obligation for disposal of spent nuclear fuel under the Nuclear 
Waste Policy Act. In 1997, a court ruled, in response to petitions filed by ut es, state governments and utility commissions, 
that the DOE could not assert a claim that its delay was unavoidable in any defense against lawsuits by utilities seeking 
money damages arising out of the DOEs failure to perform its obligations. In 1998. FPL filed a lawsuit against the DOE 
seeking in excess of $300 million in damages caused by the DOE'S failure to dispose of spent nuclear fuel from FPL's nuclear 
power plants. The matter is pending. 

Energy Marketing and Trading. FPL's Energy Marketing & Trading Division buys and sells wholesale energy commodities, 
such as natural gas, oil and electric power. The division procures natural gas and oil for FPL's and FPL Energy's use in 
power generation and sells excess electric power. Substantially all of the results of FPL activities are passed through to 
customers in the fuel or capacity clauses. FPL Energy's results of these activities are recognized in income by FPL Energy. 
The level of activity is expected to grow as FPL and FPL Energy seek to manage the risk associated with fluctuating 
commodity prices and increase the value of their power generation assets. 

Electric and Magnetic Fields. In recent years, public, scientific and regulatory attention has been focused on possible 
adverse health effects of EMF. These fields are created whenever electricity flows through a power line or an appliance. 
Several epidemiological (i.e., statistical) studies have suggested a linkage between EMF and certain types of cancer, 
including leukemia and brain cancer; other studies have been inconclusive, contradicted earlier studies or have shown no 
such linkage. Neither these epidemiological studies nor clinical studies have produced any conclusive evidence that EMF 
does or does not cause adverse health effects. In 1998. a working group of the National Institute of Environmental Health 
Sciences issued a report classifying EMF as a possible human carcinogen. 

FPL is in compliance with the FDEP regulations regarding EMF levels within and at the edge of the rights of way for 
transmission lines. Future changes in the FDEP regulations could require additional capit penditures by FPL for such 
things as increasing the right of way corridors or relocating or reconfiguring transmission fa s. It is not presently known 
whether any such expenditures will be required. 

Employees. FPL had 9,783 employees at December 31, 1999. Approximately 35% of the employees are represented by the 
IBEW under a collective bargaining agreement with FPL expiring on October 31, 2000. 

FPL ENERGY OPERATIONS 

FPL Energy. FPL Energy, a wholly-owned subsidiary of FPL Group Capital, was formed in 1998 to aggregate FPL Group's 
existing unregulated energy-related operations. Effective September 30, 1999, FPL Energy. Inc. was converted from a 
corporation to a limited liability company. and the name was changed to FPL Energy, LLC. 

FPL Energy's participation in the domestic energy market has evolved in recent years from non-controlling equity investments to 
a more active role that includes ownership, development, construction. management and operation of many projects. In 1999, 
FPL Energy established regional offices in Pennsylvania and Texas and plans to open several more regional offices in 2000. 
FPL Energy is actively involved in managing more than 80% of its projects. which represents approximately 95% of the net 
generating capacity in which FPL Energy has an ownership interest. This active role is expected to continue as opportunities in 
the unregulated generation market are pursued. As of December 31, 1999, FPL Energy had ownership interests in operating 
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independent power projects with a net generating capacity of 3,004 mw. These projects' fuel sources are 40% gas, 24% oil, 15% 
wind, 12% hydro and 9% other. Diversity in project locations reduces seasonal volatility on a portfolio basis. The projects are 
located in the following regions: 

% o f  c a m c i t v  
48% 
2 7% 
1 8% 

cent ra  ....................... 4% 
Colombia. south America . . . . . . . 3% 

Currently, approximately 30% of FPL Energy's net generating capacity has qualifying facility status under PURPA. Qualifying 
facility electricity may be generated from hydropower, wind, solar, geothermal, fossil fuels, biomass or waste-product 
combustion. Utilities pay for qualifying facility electricity on the basis of each utility's avoided cost of power. Qualifying facility 
status exempts the projects from the application of the Holding Company Act, many provisions of the Federal Power Act, and 
state laws and regulations respecting rates and financial or organizational regulation of electric ut es. FPL Energy also has 
ownership interest in operating independent power projects that have received exempt wholesale generator status as defined 
in the Holding Company Act, These projects represent approximately 70% of FPL Energy's net generating capacity. Exempt 
wholesale generators own or operate a facility exclusively to sell electric energy at wholesale. They are barred from selling 
electricity directly to retail customers. While projects with qualifying facility and exempt wholesale generator status are 
exempt from various restrictions, each project must still comply with other federal, state and local laws, including those 
regarding siting, construction, operation, licensing and pollution abatement. 

In 1999, FPL Energy completed the purchase of CMPs non-nuclear generating assets, primarily fossil and hydro power 
plants, for $866 million. The purchase price was based on an agreement, subject to regulatory approvals, reached with CMP 
in January 1998. In October 1998, the FERC struck down transmission rules that had been in effect in New England since 
the 1970s. The FERC rulings regarding transmission, as well as the announcement of new entrants into the market and 
changes in fuel prices since January 1998, resulted in FPL Energy recording a $176 million pre-tax impairment loss related to 
the fossil assets. The acquisition was accounted for under the purchase method of accounting and the results of operating 
the Maine assets have been included in FPL Group's consolidated financial statements since the acquisition date. See 
Note 9. 

FPL Energy's capital expenditures and investments totaled approximately $1.5 billion, $521 million and $291 million in 1999, 
1998 and 1997, respectively. FPL Energy is currently constructing a 1,000 mw combined-cycle natural gas-fired plant in Texas, 
of which FPL Energy owns 99%. This plant is expected to become operational in 2000 and has 70% of the capacity under one- 
to five-year contracts. As of December 31, 1999. FPL Energy had remaining commitments of $71 million for the development of 
this plant. In addition, FPL Energy has announced plans to build five plants that would add approximately 2,100 mw to its 
generating capacity by 2003. See Management's Discussion - Liquidity and Capital Resources. 

Deregulation of the electric utility market presents both opportunities and risks for FPL Energy. Opportunities exist for the 
selective acquisition of generation assets that are being divested under deregulation plans and for the construction and 
operation of efficient plants that can sell power in competitive markets. Substantially all of energy produced in 1999 by 
FPL Energy's independent power projects was sold through power sales agreements with u s that expire in 2000-24. AS 
competitive wholesale markets become more accessible to other generators. obtaining power sales agreements will become 
a progressively more competitive process. FPL Energy expects that as its existing power sales agreements expire, more of 
the energy produced will be sold through shorter-term contracts and into competitive wholesale markets. 

Competitive wholesale markets in the United States continue to evolve and vary by geographic region. Revenues from 
electricity sales in these markets will vary based on the prices obtainable for energy, capacity and other ancillary selvices. 
Some of the factors affecting success in these markets include the ability to operate generating assets efficiently, the price 
and supply of fuel, transmission constraints, competition from new sources of generation, demand growth and exposure to 
legal and regulatory changes. 

FPL Energy had 825 employees at December 31, 1999. Approximately 18% of the employees are represented by the IBEW 
under a collective bargaining agreement with FPL Energy expiring on February 28, 2003. 

OTHER FPL GROUP OPERATIONS 

FPL FiberNet. FPL FiberNet was formed in January 2000 to enhance the value of FPL Group's fiber-optic network assets 
that were originally built to support FPL operations. Accordingly, FPL's existing 1,600 mile fiber-optic lines were transferred to 
FPL FiberNet in January 2000. FPL FiberNet will sell wholesale fiber-optic network capacity to FPL and other new and 
existing customers, primarily telephone. cable television, internet and other telecommunications companies. The existing 
network interconnects cities in Florida from Miami to Jacksonville on the east coast, Lake City in the north. and Tampa to 
Naples on the west coast. FPL FiberNet plans to invest approximately $225 million over the next three years to expand the 
existing network within major cities throughout Florida. See Note 13. 
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Name 

1ames L .  Broadhead 

Dennis P. coy le  

K. Michael Davis 

Paul 1. EVanSOn 
Lewis ~ a y ,  111 

Lawrence 1. Kel leher  

Robert L. MCGPath 

Armando 1. o l i v e r a  
Thomas F. Plunkerr  
Antonio Rodriguez 
Michael w. Yackira 

EXECUTIVE OFFICERS OF THE REGISTRANTS (a)@) 

m Pos i t i on  E f fec t i ve  Date 

64 

61 

53 

58 
44 

52 

46 

50 
60 
48 57 

chairman o f  the  Board and Chief Executive O f f i c e r  of FPL Group _ _ . .  
chairman o f  the  soard and ch ie f  Executive o f f i c e r  of FPL . . . . . . . . . .  

Con t ro l l e r  and Chie 
v i c e  President,  A 

. ............ 

o f f i c e r  o f  FPL ........... 

............... 
Treasurer of FPL 
Treasurer o f  FPL 

President o f  FPL Energy. LLC ................. 

May 8, 1990 
l anuary  15, 1990 
1une 1. 1991 
1 U l Y  1. 1991 
May 13, 1991 

I U l Y  1, 1991 
1anuary 9. 1995 
AUgUSt 2. 1999 
August 2. 1999 
Ma 13, 1991 
I U Z Y  1. 1991 
1anuary 11. 2000 
1anuary 11. 2000 
1 u l y  1, 1999 
March 1, 1996 
1 U l Y  1, 1999 
1anuary 15. 1998 

(a) 

(b) 

Executive omcers are elected annually by, and serve at the pleasure of, their respective boards of directors. Except as noted below. each officer has held his 
present position for five years or more and his employment history is continuous. 
The business experience of the executive officers is as follows: Mr. Hay was senior vice president and chief financial omcer of US Fwdservice, a food 
SeNiCe disttibutor. from 1991 to 1997. From 1997 to 1999 he was executive vice president and chief financial officer of US Foodsewice. Mr. McGrath was 
assistant treasurer of FPL Group and FPL from February 1998 to January 2000. Prior to that, MI. McGrath was vice president and chief financial officer of ESI 
Energy, Inc. Mr. Olivera was vice president. distribution of FPL from February 1997 to July 1999. Prior to that, MI. Olivera was vice president. power delivery 
of FPL. Mr. Plunken was Site vice president at Turkey Point. Mr. Rodriguez was vice president. power delivery of FPL from February 1997 to July 1999. Prior 
to that. MI. Rodriguez was vice president. operations of FPL's power generation division. Mr. Yackira was vice president. finance and chief financial omcer of 
FPL Group and senior vice president, finance and chief financial Omcer Of FPL from January 1995 to January 1998. 

Item 2. Properties 

FPL Group and its subsidiaries maintain properties which are adequate for their operations. At December 31, 1999, the 
electric generating, transmission, distribution and general facilities of FPL represent 45%, 13%, 35% and 7%. respectively, of 
FPL's gross investment in electric utility plant in service. 

Generating Facilities. As of December 31, 1999, FPL Group had the following generating facilities: 

NO. O f  Net 
FaCi l i  t V  L o m i o n  _ _ ~  Uni ts  Fuel c a o a b i l i t v  (mw) (a) 

FPL: 
STEAM TURBINES 

cocoa. FL 
Miami. FL 

For t  Myers ...................... 
Manatee ......................... 
Mar t i n  .......................... 
R iv ie ra  ............................. 

scherer ............................. 
Turkey Po in t  ........................ 

COMBINED-CYCLE 
Lauderdale .......................... 
Mar t in  .............................. 
putnam .............................. 
Fo r t  MVerS .......................... COMBUSTION TURBINES 

Lauderdale .......................... 
Por t  Everglades ..................... 

DIESEL UNITS ~~~~ ~ ~ 

Turkey Po in t  ........................ 
TOTAL ................................. 
FPL Energy: 

ce r ro  Gordo 
Doswell ............................. 

Marcus Hook 
southwest Mesa ...................... 
Investments i n  1 o i n t  ventures ....... 

TOTAL ................................. 

Dania, FL 

Palatka.  FL 
Indiantawn. FL 

Fo r t  Myers. FL 
Dania, FL 
Por t  Everglades. F l  

F l o r i d a  c i t y ,  FL 

c lear lake .  I A  
Ashland. VA 
var ious  - ME 
Various - ME 
F t .  F a i r f i e l d ,  ME 
Marcus Hook. PA 
McCamey, TX 
He l i x .  OR 
var ious  

2 
2 
2 
4 
2 
2 
2 
3 
1 
2 
2 

2 
2 
2 

12 
24 
12 

5 

54 
4 
7 
92 
1 
1 

107 
38 

N/M 

o i  1 
o i  1 
o i  l /cas 
Dil/Gas 
O i  1/Gas 
Coal/Perroleum coke 
Nuclear 
Oil/Gas 
coa l  
oil/Gas 
Nuclear 

Gas/oi 1 
Gas 
Gas/oi l  

o i  1 
Oil/Gas 
oi l /Gas 

o i  1 

wind 
Gas 
o i  1 
Hydro 
wastewood 
Gas 
wind 
wind 
var ious  

804 
215 ~~. 
543 

1,625 
1,631 
1,242 
573 
254Cb) 

1.553Cc) 
934 
658Cd) 
810 

1,386 

860 
950 
498 

636 
840 
420 

12 
zLzz3 

42 
665 
713 
373 
31 
50 
75 
25 

1.030 
AQQ.3 

(a) 
(b) 
(c) 
(d) 

NIM - Not meaningful 

Represents FPL's net warm weather peaking capability and FPL Energy's net ownership interest in plant capacity. 
Represents FPL's 20% Ownership interest in each of SJRPP Units NOS. 1 and 2. which are jointly owned with the JEA 
Excludes Orlando Utilities Commission's and the FMPA's combined share of approximately 15% of St. Lucie Unit No. 2 
Represents FPL's approximately 76% Ownership of Scherer Unit NO. 4, which is jointly owned with the JEA. 
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Transmission and Distribution. As of December 31, 1999, FPL owned and operated 487 substations and the following 
electric transmission and distribution lines: 

overhead L ines  Trench and submarine 
Nominal voltme pole M i l =  Cable M i l e s  

............................... 1,107(a) 
230 kv ............................... 2 , 2 4 6  31 
138 kv ............................... 1,433 49 

166 14 
39.858 21.353 
4L48n LL44z 

. . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .  670 

(a) Includes approximately 75 miles owned pintly with the J E A  

Character of Ownership. Substantially all of FPL's properties are subject to the lien of FPL's mortgage. which secures most 
debt securities issued by FPL. The principal properties of FPL Group are held by FPL in fee and are free from other 
encumbrances, subject to minor exceptions, none of which is of such a nature as to substantially impair the usefulness to 
FPL of such properties. Some of FPL's electric lines are located on land not owned in fee but are covered by necessary 
consents of governmental authorities or rights obtained from owners of private properly. 

Item 3. Legal Proceedings 

In 1991, FPL entered into 30-year power purchase agreements with two qualifying facilities (as defined by PURPA) located in 
Palm Beach County, Florida. The power plants, which have a total generating capacity of 125 mw, were intended to sell 
capacity and energy to FPL and to provide steam to sugar processors. The plants were to be fueled by bagasse (sugar cane 
waste) and wood waste. Construction of the plants was funded, in part, through the sale of $288.5 million of solid waste 
industrial development revenue bonds (the bonds). The plants are owned by Okeelanta Power Limited Partnership 
(Okeelanta); Osceola Power Limited Partnership (Osceola); Flo-Energy Corp.; Glades Power Partnership; Gator Generating 
Company, Limited Partnership; and Lake Power Leasing Partnership (collectively, the partnerships). 

In January 1997, FPL filed a complaint against Okeelanta and Osceola in the Circuit Court for Palm Beach County, Florida, 
seeking an order declaring that FPL's obligations under the power purchase agreements were rendered of no force and effect 
because the power plants failed to accomplish commercial operation before January 1. 1997, as required by the agreements. 
In November 1997, the complaint was amended to include the partnerships. 

The partnerships filed for bankruptcy under Chapter XI of the U S  Bankruptcy Code in May 1997. In November 1997, the 
partnerships entered into an agreement with the holders of more than 70% of the bonds. This agreement gives the holders of 
a majority of the principal amount of the bonds (the majority bondholders) the right to control, fund and manage any litigation 
against FPL and the right to settle with FPL on any terms such majority bondholders approve, provided that certain 
agreements with sugar processors are not affected and certain other conditions are met. 

In January 1998. the partnerships (through the attorneys for the majority bondholders) filed an answer denying the allegations 
in FPL's complaint and asserting a counterclaim for approximately 52 billion of actual damages, consisting of all capacity 
payments that could have been made over the 30-year term of the power purchase agreements plus some security deposits. 
The partnerships also seek three times their actual damages for alleged violations of Florida antitrust laws by FPL. FPL 
Group and FPL Group Capital, plus attorneys' fees. In October 1998. the trial court dismissed all of the partnerships' antitrust 
claims against FPL, FPL Group and FPL Group Capital. The partnerships appealed the trial court's dismissal to the Fourth 
District Court of Appeal which affirmed the trial court's decision as to FPL Group and FPL Group Capital and dismissed as 
premature the partnerships' appeal of the trial court's decision as to FPL. In June 1999, the partnerships' motion for summary 
judgment was denied; they have appealed. 

In July 1990, FPL entered into an amended and restated agreement (the contract) with a qualifying facility (as defined by 
PURPA) located in Duval County, Florida. Construction of the facility, which is owned by Cedar Bay Generating Company, 
L.P. (Cedar Bay), was financed in part by loans from institutional investors. including Paribas. 

The contract provides FPL with the right to dispatch the Cedar Bay facility "in any manner it deems appropriate." Despite this 
contractual right, Cedar Bay initiated an action in 1997 in the Circuit Court for Duval County, Florida, challenging, among 
other things, the manner in which the facility had been dispatched by FPL. Although the court granted summary judgment to 
FPL with regard to Cedar Bay's claim that FPL's dispatch decisions violated the express terms of the contract. it permitted a 
jury to hear Cedar Bay's claim that such dispatch decisions violated an implied duty of good faith and fair dealing. The jury 
awarded Cedar Bay approximately $13 million on this claim. Thereafter, the court entered a declaration that FPL was, in the 
future, to dispatch the Cedar Bay facility in accordance with certain specified parameters. FPL expects to recover the amount 
of this judgment through the capacity clause. 

FPL has appealed both the jury award and the court's declaration. In October 1999, after FPL filed its notice of appeal in the 
Cedar Bay action, Paribas. on behalf of itself and a group of other Cedar Bay lenders, filed an action against FPL in the 
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Circuit Court of Duval County. The suit alleges breach of contract, breach of an implied duty of good faith and fair dealing, 
fraud, tortious interference with contract and several other claims regarding the manner in which FPL has dispatched the 
Cedar Bay facility. It seeks unspecified damages and other relief. 

FPL has moved to dismiss all counts of Paribas' complaint. If the jury award and court declaration in the Cedar Bay case is 
upheld fully on appeal, Paribas apparently believes that, they and the other lenders have no claims against FPL (or at least 
would have no damages arising therefrom), and has therefore moved to stay its own action pending resolution of the appeal 
in the Cedar Bay action. 

In November 1999. the Attorney General of the United States, on behalf of the U.S. Environmental Protection Agency (EPA) 
brought an action in the U.S. District Court for the Northern District of Georgia against Georgia Power Company and other 
subsidiaries of The Southern Company for injunctive relief and the assessment of civil penalties for violations of the 
Prevention of Significant Deterioration (PSD) provisions and the New Source Performance Standards (NSPS) of the Clean Air 
Act. Among other things, the EPA alleges Georgia Power Company constructed and is continuing to operate Scherer Unit 
No. 4, in which FPL owns a 76% interest, without obtaining a PSD permit, without complying with NSPS requirements, and 
without applying best available control technology for nitrogen oxides, sulfur dioxides and particulate matter as required by 
the Clean Air Act. The suit seeks injunctive relief requiring the installation of such technology and civil penalties of up to 
$25,000 per day for each violation from August 7, 1977 through January 30, 1997, and $27,000 per day for each violation 
thereafter. Georgia Power has filed an answer to the complaint asserting that it has complied with all requirements of the 
Clean Air Act, denying the plaintiffs allegations of liability, denying that the plaintiff is entitled to any of the relief that it seeks 
and raising various other defenses. 

In the event that FPL Group and FPL does not prevail in these suits, there may be a material adverse effect on their financial 
statements. However, FPL Group and FPL believe that they have meritorious defenses to the litigation and are vigorously 
defending these suits. Accordingly, the liabilities, if any, arising from these proceedings are not anticipated to have a material 
adverse effect on their financial statements. 

Item 4. Submission of Matters to a Vote of Security Holders 

None 
PART II 

Item 5. Market for the Registrants' Common Equity and Related Stockholder Matters 

Common Stock Data. All of FPL's common stock is owned by FPL Group. FPL Group's common stock is traded on the New 
York Stock Exchange. The high and low sales prices for the common stock of FPL Group as reported in the consolidated 
transaction reporting system of the New York Stock Exchange for each quarter during the past two years are as follows: 

1999 1998 
o u a r t e r  H i 4 h  LOW H i o h  LOW 

F i r s t  ....................................................... $61 15/16 $50 1/8 $65 3/16 156 1/16 
second ...................................................... $60 1/2 $52 7/8 165 5/8 158 11/16 
Third ....................................................... 156 11/16 149 1/8 170 159 11/16 
F o u r t h  ...................................................... 152 1/2 141 1/8 172 9/16 $60 1/2 

Approximate Number of Stockholders. As of the close of business on January 31, 2000, there were 49,694 holders of 
record of FPL Group's common stock. 

Dividends. Quarterly dividends have been paid on common stock of FPL Group during the past two years in the following 
amounts: 

ouarter m1998 
...................... 10.52 $0.50 ...................... $0.52 $0.50 . . . . . . . . .  ...... 10.52 10.50 ...................... 10.52 $0.50 

The amount and timing of dividends payable on FPL Group's common stock are within the sole discretion of FPL Group's 
board of directors. The board of directors reviews the dividend rate at least annually (in February) to determine its 
appropriateness in light of FPL Group's financial position and results of operations, legislative and regulatory developments 
affecting the electric utility industry in general and FPL in particular, competitive conditions and any other factors the board 
deems relevant. The ability of FPL Group to pay dividends on its common stock is dependent upon dividends paid to it by its 
subsidiaries, primarily FPL. There are no restrictions in effect that currently limit FPL's ability to pay dividends to FPL Group. 
See Management's Discussion - Liquidity and Capital Resources and Note 4 - Common Stock Dividend Restrictions 
regarding dividends paid by FPL to FPL Group. 
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1999, provides for a $350 million reduction in annual revenues from retail base operations allocated to all customers on a 
cents-per-kilowatt-hour basis. Additionally, the agreement sets forth a revenue sharing mechanism for each of the twelve- 
month periods covered by the agreement, whereby revenues from retail base operations in excess of a stated threshold will 
be shared on the basis of two-thirds refunded to retail customers and one-third retained by FPL. Revenues from retail base 
operations in excess of a second threshold will be refunded 100% to retail customers. 

The thresholds are as follows: 

Threshold to refund 66 2/3% to customers ..... 13 ,400  $3,450 $3.500 
Threshold t o  refund 100% t o  Customers _.. . . . . .  13.556 $3,606 13.656 

Offsetting the annual revenue reduction will be lower special depreciation. The agreement allows for special depreciation of up to 
$100 million, at FPL's discretion, in each year of the three-year agreement period to be applied to nuclear andlor fossil generating 
assets. Under this new depreciation program, FPL recorded approximately $70 million of special depreciation in 1999. The new 
depreciation program replaced a revenue-based special amortization program whereby special amortization in the amount of $63 
million, $378 million and $199 million was recorded in 1999, 1998 and 1997, respectively. 

In addition, the agreement lowered FPL's authorized regulatory ROE range to 10% - 12%. During the term of the agreement, 
the achieved ROE may from time to time be outside the authorized range, and the revenue sharing mechanism described 
above is specified to be the appropriate and exclusive mechanism to address that circumstance. FPL reported an ROE of 
12.1%, 12.6% and 12.3% in 1999, 1998 and 1997, respectively. See Note 1 - Revenues and Rates. 

The decline in revenues from retail base operations during 1999 was to a large extent due to the negative impact of the 
agreement that reduced retail base revenues by approximately $300 million. A 2.8% decline in usage per retail customer 
mainly due to milder weather conditions than the prior year was almost entirely offset by an increase in the number of 
customer accounts. The number of customer accounts grew 2% to approximately 3.8 million in 1999. 

The increase in retail base revenues in 1998 from 1997 reflects a 4.8% increase in usage per retail customer from warmer 
weather combined with a 1.8% increase in the number of customer accounts. 

FPL's OBM expenses in 1999 benefited from continued cost control efforts. This was partially offset by higher overhaul costs 
at fossil plants. OBM expenses increased in 1998 as a result of additional costs associated with improving the service 
reliability of FPL's distribution system, partially offset by lower nuclear maintenance costs and conservation clause expenses. 
Conservation clause expenses are essentially a pass-through and do not affect net income. 

Lower interest charges in 1999 and 1998 reflect lower average debt balances and the full amortization in 1998 of deferred 
costs associated with reacquired debt. 

The electric utility industry is facing increasing competitive pressure. FPL currently faces competition from other suppliers of 
electrical energy to wholesale customers and from alternative energy sources and self-generation for other customer groups, 
primarily industrial customers. In 1999, operating revenues from wholesale and industrial customers combined represented 
approximately 4% of FPL's total operating revenues. A number of potential merchant plants have been announced to date in 
Florida. However, only two submissions to seek a determination of need totaling approximately 1,000 mw have been 
presented to the FPSC. In March 1999, the FPSC approved one of the petitions for a power plant to be constructed within 
FPL's service territory. FPL, along with other Florida ut es. has appealed the decision to the Florida Supreme Court. Since 
there is no deregulation proposal currently under consideration in Florida, FPL is unable to predict the impact of a change to a 
more competitive environment or when such a change might occur. See Note 1 - Regulation. 

FPL Energy - FPL Energy's 1999 and 1998 operating results benefited from a 60% and 51% increase, respectively, in the 
generating capacity of FPL Energy's power plant portfolio. Operating results also benefited from improved results of a gas- 
fired power plant in the Mid-Atlantic region, mainly due to the financial restructuring of the project, renegotiation of fuel and 
power sales contracts, lower non-fuel 0 B M  expenses and improved plant availability. The improvement in FPL Energy's 
1999 operating results were partly offset by higher administrative expenses to accommodate future growth. The generating 
capacity growth since 1997 is primarily the result of the acquisition of the Maine assets (1.1 17 mw). natural gas projects (300 
mw) in the Northeast region and several wind projects (291 mw) in the Central and West regions. 

In 1999, FPL Energy's operating results include the effect of a $176 million ($104 million after-tax) impairment loss. See 
Note 9. FPL Energy's 1998 operating results reflect the cost of terminating an interest rate swap agreement, partly offset by 
the receipt of a settlement relating to a contract dispute. 

Deregulation of the electric utility market presents both opportunities and risks for FPL Energy. Opportunities exist for the 
selective acquisition of generation assets that are being divested under deregulation plans and for the construction and 

13 



v V 

operation of efficient plants that can sell power in competitive markets. Substantially all of the energy produced in 1999 by 
FPL Energy's independent power projects was sold through power sales agreements with utilities that expire in 2000-24. As 
competitive wholesale markets become more accessible to other generators, obtaining power sales agreements will become 
a progressively more competitive process. FPL Energy expects that as its existing power sales agreements expire, more of 
the energy produced will be sold through shorter-term contracts and into competitive wholesale markets. 

Competitive wholesale markets in the United States continue to evolve and vary by geographic region. Revenues from 
electricity sales in these markets will vary based on the prices obtainable for energy, capacity and other ancillary sewices. 
Some of the factors affecting success in these markets include the ability to operate generating assets efficiently, the price 
and supply of fuel, transmission constraints, competition from new sources of generation, demand growth and exposure to 
legal and regulatory changes. 

Corporate and Other - In 1999, net income for the corporate and other segment reflects a $149 million (596 million after-tax) 
gain on the sale of an investment in Adelphia Communications Corporation common stock, a 5108 million (566 million after- 
tax) gain recorded by FPL Group Capital on the redemption of its one-third equity interest in a cable limited partnership. costs 
associated with closing a retail marketing business and the favorable resolution of a prior year state tax matter. In 1998, net 
income for the corporate and other segment reflects a loss from the sale of Turner Foods Corporation's assets, the cost of 
terminating an agreement designed to fix interest rates and adjustments relating to prior years' tax matters, including the 
resolution of an audit issue with the Internal Revenue Service. 

Year 2000 - FPL Group did not experience any significant year 2000-related problems. The total cost of addressing year 
2000 issues was approximately $37 million. 

Liquidity and Capital Resources 

FPL Group's capital requirements consist of expenditures to meet increased electricity usage and customer growth of FPL 
and investment opportunities at FPL Energy. In 1999, FPL Group's capital expenditures reflect FPL Energy's investment in 
generating assets in Maine and the cost of constructing a natural gas power plant in Texas, as well as FPL's power plant 
expansion activities. As of December 31, 1999, FPL Energy has made commitments totaling approximately $72 million, 
primarily in connection with the development of an independent power project. Capital expenditures of FPL for the 2000-02 
period are expected to be approximately 53.1 billion, including $1.3 billion in 2000. FPL Group Capital and its subsidiaries 
have guaranteed approximately $680 million of purchased power agreement obligations, debt sewice payments and other 
payments subject to certain contingencies. See Note 12 -Commitments. 

Debt maturities of FPL Group's subsidiaries will require cash outflows of approximately 5595 million ($420 million for FPL) 
through 2004, including $125 million for FPL in 2000. It is anticipated that cash requirements for capital expenditures, 
energy-related investments and debt maturities in 2000 will be satisfied with internally generated funds and debt issuances. 
Any internally generated funds not required for capital expenditures and current maturities may be used to reduce outstanding 
debt or repurchase common stock. or for investment. Any temporary cash needs will be met by short-term bank borrowings. 
In 1999 FPL Group Capital redeemed $125 million in debentures, which resulted in a loss on reacquired debt of 
approximately $8 million and issued $1.4 billion in debentures, primarily to finance FPL Energy's generating capacity growth. 
In 1999, FPL had $230 million in first mortgage bonds mature and issued $225 million in first mortgage bonds, primarily to 
redeem $216 million first mortgage bonds with a 2% higher interest rate. Bank lines of credit currently available to FPL Group 
and its subsidiaries aggregate 52.4 billion ($880 million for FPL). 

During 1999, FPL Group repurchased 2.2 million shares of common stock under the 10 million share repurchase program. 
As of December 31, 1999, FPL Group is authorized to repurchase an additional 6.2 million shares under this program. 

FPL self-insures for damage to certain transmission and distribution properties and maintains a funded storm reserve to 
reduce the financial impact of storm losses. The balance of the storm fund reserve at December 31, 1999 and 1998 was 
5216 million and $259 million, respectively. During 1999, storm fund reserves were reduced to recover the costs associated 
with three storms. Bank lines of credit of $300 million, included in the $880 million above, are also available if needed to 
provide cash for storm restoration costs. The FPSC has indicated that it would consider future storm losses in excess of the 
funded reserve for possible recovery from customers. 

FPL's charter and mortgage contain provisions which, under certain conditions, restrict the payment of dividends and the 
issuance of additional unsecured debt, first mortgage bonds and preferred stock. Given FPL's current financial condition and 
level of earnings, expected financing activities and dividends are not affected by these limitations. 
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New Accounting Rule 

In June 1998. the Financial Accounting Standards Board issued Financial Accounting Standards No. (FAS) 133, "Accounting for 
Derivative Instruments and Hedging Activities." The statement establishes accounting and reporting standards requiring that 
every derivative instrument (including certain derivative instruments embedded in other contracts) be recorded in the balance 
sheet as either an asset or liability measured at its fair value. The statement requires that changes in the derivative's fair value 
be recognized currently in earnings unless specific hedge accounting criteria are met. FPL Group and FPL are cumntly 
assessing the effect, if any, on their financial statements of implementing FAS 133. FPL Group and FPL will be required to adopt 
FAS 133 beginning in 2001 

Market Risk Sensitivity 

Substantially all financial instruments and positions held by FPL Group and FPL described below are held for purposes other 
than trading. 

Interest rate risk - The special use funds of FPL include restricted funds set aside to cover the cost of storm damage and for 
the decommissioning of FPL's nuclear power plants. A portion of these funds is invested in fixed income debt securities 
carried at their market value of approximately $847 million and $650 million at December 31, 1999 and 1998, respectively. 
Adjustments to market value result in a corresponding adjustment to the related liability accounts based on current regulatory 
treatment. Because the funds set aside for storm damage could be needed at any time, the related investments are generally 
more liquid and, therefore. are less sensitive to changes in interest rates. The nuclear decommissioning funds, in contrast. 
are generally invested in longer-term securities, as decommissioning activities are not expected to begin until at least 2012. 
At December 31, 1999 and 1998. other investments of FPL Group include $291 million and $72 million, respectively. of 
investments that are carried at estimated fair value or cost, which approximates fair value. 

The following are estimates of the fair value of FPL's and FPL Group's long-term debt: 
1999 1998 

Carry ing  F a i r  c a r r y i n g  F a i r  
value w value value 

( m i  1 lions) 

L o n g - ~ e ~ m  debt of FPL (a) . . . . . . . . . . ._. . . . . .  $2 ,204  12.123(b) $ 2 , 4 2 1  S2,505(b) 
Long-term debt of FPL Group (a) . . . . . . . . . . . .  $3,603 $3,518(b) $2,706 $2,797(b) 

(a) includes current maturities. 
(b) Based on quoted market pdces for these or Similar issues 

Market risk associated with all of these securities is estimated as the potential gain in fair value of net liabilities resulting from 
a hypothetical 10% increase in interest rates and amounts to $97 million and $68 million for FPL Group and $39 million and 
$60 million for FPL at December 31, 1999 and 1998, respectively. 

Equity price risk - Included in the special use funds of FPL are marketable equity securities carried at their market value of 
approximately $573 million and $556 million at December 31, 1999 and 1998. respectively. A hypothetical 10% decrease in 
the prices quoted by stock exchanges would result in a $56 million reduction in fair value and corresponding adjustment to 
the related liability accounts based on current regulatory treatment at both December 31, 1999 and 1998. 

Other risks - Under current cost-based regulation, FPL's cost of fuel is recovered through the fuel clause, with no effect on 
earnings. FPL's Energy Marketing 8 Trading Division buys and sells wholesale energy commodities, such as natural gas, oil 
and electric power. The division procures natural gas and oil for FPL's and FPL Energy's use in power generation and sells 
excess electric power. Substantially all of the result of the FPL activities are passed through to customers in the fuel or 
capacity clauses. FPL Energy's results of these activities are recognized in income by FPL Energy. The level of activity is 
expected to grow as FPL and FPL Energy seek to manage the risk associated with fluctuating commodity prices and increase 
the value of their power generation assets. At December 31, 1999, there were no material open positions in these activities. 

Item 7a. Quantitative and Qualitative Disclosures About Market Risk 

See Management's Discussion - Market Risk Sensitivity 
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Item 8. Financial Statements and Supplementary Data 

INDEPENDENT AUDITORS REPORT 

FPL GROUP, INC. AND FLORIDA POWER a LIGHT COMPANY: 

We have audited the consolidated financial statements of FPL Group, Inc. and of Florida Power Light Company, listed in 
the accompanying index at Item 14(a)l of this Annual Report (Form 10-K) to the Securities and Exchange Commission for the 
year ended December 31, 1999. These financial Statements are the responsibility of the respective company's management. 
Our responsibility is to express an opinion on these financial statements based on our audits. 

We conducted our audits in accordance with generally accepted auditing standards. Those standards require that we plan 
and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements are free of material 
misstatement. An audit includes examining, on a test basis, evidence suppolting the amounts and disclosures in the financial 
statements. An audit also includes assessing the accounting principles used and significant estimates made by 
management, as well as evaluating the overall financial statement presentation. We believe that our audits provide a 
reasonable basis for our opinion. 

In our opinion, such consolidated financial statements present fairly, in all material respects, the financial position of FPL 
Group, Inc. and Florida Power Light Company at December 31, 1999 and 1998, and the results of their operations and their 
cash flows for each of the three years in the period ended December31. 1999 in conformity with generally accepted 
accounting principles. 

DELOITTE a TOUCHE LLP 
Certified Public Accountants 

Miami, Florida 
February 11,2000 
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FPL GROUP, INC. 
CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF INCOME 

(millions, except per share amounts) 

OPERATING REVENUES . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .  
OPEPATING EXPENSES: 

Fuel .  purchased power and i n t e r c h a n  
o t h e r  o p e r a t i o n s  and maintenance , .  
D e p r e c i a t i o n  and a m o r t i z a t i o n  . . . . .  
Impa i rmen t  l o s s  an Maine a s s e t s  
Taxes o t h e r  t h a n  income t a x e s  .................................................... 

T o t a l  o p e r a t i n g  expenses 

OPERATING INCOME 

OTHER INCOME (DEDUCTIONS)' 
I n t e r e s t  charges . . . . . .  
P r e f e r r e d  s t o c k  d i v i d e "  

T o t a l  o t h e r  income (deduct ions)  - n e t  

INCOME BEFORE INCOME TAXES 

INCOME TAXES . . . . . . .  .................................. 
NET INCOME 

Earn ings  per sha re  of common s t o c k  ( b a s i c  and assuming d i l u t i o n )  . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .  
D iv idends  per sha re  o f  common s t o c k  ....:. 
Average number of common shares a u t s t a n d J n  

Years Ended De mber 31. 
1999 ace -?&El 

16.43816.661 

1,020 943 922 

323279304 
L & z s = A ! S w  
14.07 13.8s 1 3 . 2 7  
12.08 $2.00 $1.92 
171 173 173 

The accompanying Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements are an integral part of these statements 
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FPL GROUP, INC. 
CONSOLIDATED BALANCE SHEETS 

(millions) 

December 31 
1999 * 

PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT: 
E l e c t r i c  u t i l i t y  D l a n t  i n  s e r v i c e  and o t h e r  P r o p e r t y  . .  
Nuc lea r  fuel under  c a p i t a l  l e a s e  ~ n e t  ....................................................... 
c o n s t r u c t i o n  work i n  p r o g r e s s  .............................................................. 
l e s s  ar rumi i l a red  d e o r e c i a t 7 a n  and amortization ............................................. ~~~ ...... ~~~~ . ~~ . . ~~ 

T o t a l  p r o p e r t y ,  p l a n t  and equipment - n e t  . ............................................... 
CURRENT ASSETS: 

D e f e r r e d  c l a u s e  expenses . . . . . . . .  ....................................... 

o t h e r  .............................. 
T o t a l  o t h e r  a s s e t s  . ....................................... 

TOTAL ASSETS . . . . . . . . .  
CAPITALIZATION: 

............................... 

common s h a r e h o l d e r s '  e q u i t  
preferred s t o c k  of FPL wjrxoii'iiik 
Long-term deb t  . . . . . . . .  

T o t a l  c a p i t a l i z a t i o n  

CURRENT L IABIL IT IES:  
s h o r t - t e r m  deb t  ............................ 
C u r r e n t  m a t u r i t i e s  o f  l o n g - t e r m  deb t  . . . . . . .  
ACCountS payab le ,  ........................... 
Customers' d e p o s i t s  ........................ 
Accrued i n t e r e s t  and t a x e s  . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .  
D e f e r r e d  c l a u s e  revenues . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .  
o t h e r  . ..................................... 

T o t a l  c u r r e n t  l i a b i l i t i e s  . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .  

. . . . . . . . . . . . .  . . . . . . . . . . . . .  

. . . . . . . . . . . . .  

. . . . . . . . . . . . .  . . . . . . . . . . . . .  

. . . . . . . . . . . . .  

. . . . . . . . . . . . .  

. . . . . . . . . . . . .  

. . . . . . . . . . .  

. . . . . . . . . . .  

. . . . . . . . . . .  . . . . . . . . . . .  . . . . . . . . . . .  

. . . . . . . . . . .  . . . . . . . . . . .  

. . . . . . . . . . .  

. .  

. .  

. .  

. .  

. .  

. .  

. .  . .  

. . . . . . . . . . .  

. . . . . . . . . . .  

. . . . . . . . . . .  . . . . . . . . . . .  

. . . . . . . . . . .  

. . . . . . . . . . .  . . . . . . . . . . .  . . . . . . . . . . .  

. . . . . . . . . . .  . . . . . . . . . . .  . . . . . . . . . . .  

. . . . . . . . . . .  . . . . . . . . . . .  . . . . . . . . . . .  

. . . . . . . . . . .  

OTHER L IABIL IT IES AND DEFERRED CREDITS: 
Accumulated d e f e r r e d  income t a x e s  ................................ . . . . . . . . . . . . .  

........................... 
. . . . . . . . . . . . . . .  
e r r e d  c r e d i t s  . .  

COMMITMENTS AND CONTINGENCIES 

TOTAL CAPITALIZATION AND L IABIL IT IES 

$18,474 
157 
923 

(10.290) 
9.264 

361 
482 
343 
54 

133 
1.373 

1,352 
611 

841 
2.804 

Ilt441 

$ 5,370 
226 

1.478 
9.074 

339 
125 
407 
284 
182 
116 

417 
1.870 

1,079 
126 
184 
216 

892 
2.497 

1l3-441 

$17,592 
146 
214 

(9.397) 
8.555 

187 
559 
282 
82 

156 
1.266 

1,206 
391 

611 
2.208 

lllazs 

I 5,126 
226 

2.147 
7.699 

110 
359 
338 
282 
191 
89 
2 
I.64I 

1,255 
148 
205 
259 
2 
3 

sL!z2 

The accompanying Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements are an integral part of these statements. 
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FPL GROUP, INC. 
CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF CASH FLOWS 

(millions) 

Years Ended December 31, 
1999 ~~ 1998 1997 

Net Income . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .  $ 697 I 664 $ 618 
CASH FLOWS FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES: 

Adjustments t o  reconc i l e  ne t  income t o  net cash provided by opera t ing  a c t i v i t i e s :  
Deprec ia t ion  and amor t i za t ion  .................. 1,040 1,284 1.061 
~ e c r e a s e  i n  deferred income taxes and r e l a t e d  regu la to ry  c r e d i t  . . . . . . . . . . . . . .  (198) (237) (30) 
Other - ne t  ..................... 24 32 3) 

Net cash provided by opera t ing  a c t i v i t i e s  ...................................... 1.563 1.743- 
CASH FLOWS FROM INVESTING ACTIVITIES: 

Cap i ta l  expenditures of FPL ...................................................... 
Independent power investments 
D i s t r i b u t i o n s  and loan repayme 
Proceeds from the  sa le  o f  asse 
Other - net . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .  ................................ 

inves t i ng  a c t i v i t 7 e s  ............................ 

(861) 
(1,540) 

132 
198 

CASH FLOWS FROM FINANCING ACTIVITIES: 
~ssuance o f  long-term debt . ........ 1,609 343 42 

I n c ~ e a s e  (decrease) i n  short- term debt (24) 
Repurchase o f  common stock (116) (62) (48) 
Dividends on common stock X) A & l 5 ) ( 3 3 2 )  

 et cash provided by (us 783 -)a) 

Retirement o f  long-term debt ..................................................... w;) (727) U::) 

Net increase (decrease) i n  cash and cash equivalents . . . . . . . . . .  174 
cash and cash equ iva len ts  a t  be i nn ing  o f  ear . . . . . .  . . . . . . . . . .  187 
cash and cash equ iva len ts  a t  e% of year 

SUPPLEMENTAL DISCLOSURES OF CASH FLOW INFORM4TION: 
cash pa id  f o r  i n t e r e s t  .... I 221 I 308 I 287 
Cash pa id  f a r  income taxes I 573 I 463 I 434 

Addi t ions  t o  c a p i t a l  lease ob!igatians . . . . . . . .  I 86 $ 34 $ 81 
SUPPLEMENTAL SCHEDULE OF NONCASH INVESTING AND FINANCING ACTIVITIES 

Debt assumed fo r  p roper ty  add7tqons .............................................. $ - I - I 420 

The accompanying Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements are an integral part of these statements 
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FPL GROUP, INC. 
CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF SHAREHOLDERS' EQUITY 

(millions) 

Common stock (a)  Adolf10n.31 
Aggregate Pdid In 

snarer Pac-v.ak c m i t a l  

salances. December 31. 1996 . . . .  183 12 $3.345 
Net income . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .  
Dividends on common stack . . . .  - 
Earned compensation under ESOP - 6 
o ther  comrehensive income ... - 

Repurchase o f  common stock . . .  (T)  (48) 

- 
18;(b) 

(1) 

other  ........................ : 
Balances, December 31, 1998 . . _ .  181(b) 

Net income . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .  - 
Repurchase o f  common stock . . .  (2) 
Dividends on common stock . _ . .  - 
Earned compensation under ESOP - 
o ther  comrehensive l o s s  ..... - 
o ther  : - ~ 

Balances. December 31, 1999 . . . .  U ( b )  g Lt148 
........................ 

Accumulated 
o ther  CO"On 

unearned comprehensive Retained shareholders' 
ComDensation Income (LOSS) Earnin* Equ i ty  

I -  $1,518 
618 

$(272) 

( 3 3 5  
8 

1 

1 1,804 
664 

- - ~ 

(264) 

(34;) 
12 

- __ 
1 2,123 ll-v6 

697 
(252) 

(3s;) 
1 4  

(2) 
3) - ~ 

U) La) vshz L L u !  
(a) 
(b) 

$0.01 par value, authorized. 300,000.00D Shares; outstanding 178,554,735 and 180.712.435 at December 31. 1999 and 1998. respectively. 
Outstanding and unaliocated shares held by the Employee Stock Ownership Plan Trust totaled 8 million, 9 million and 9 million at December 31, 1999, 1998 
and 1997. respectively. 

The accompanying Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements are an integral part of these statements. 
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FLORIDA POWER 8 LIGHT COMPANY 
CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF INCOME 

(millions) 

OPERATING REVENUES ... .... 
OPERATING EXPENSES: 

F u e l .  purchased power a?d interchange 
other operations and maintenance ................................................ 
Income taxes ................. 
Taxes other than income taxes 

Depreciat ion and amort izat ion ... 
Tota l  operat ing expenses ...................................................... 

OPERATING INCOME . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .  
OTHER INCOME (DEDUCTIONS): 

I n t e r e s t  charges 
other - net  . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .  

Tota l  other deductions - net 

NET INCOME . . .  . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .  
PREFERRED STOCK DIV IDENDS ......................................................... 
NET INCOME AVAILABLE TO FPL GROUP, I N C  

Years Ended December 31. 
lpee 1998 1997 

1 6 . 0 5 7 E L m $ 5 J g  

2,232 2,175 2,196 
1,158 1,163 1,132 
989 1,249 1,034 
327 356 329 

The accompanying Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements are an integral part of these statements 
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b b 

FLORIDA POWER & LIGHT COMPANY 
CONSOLIDATED BALANCE SHEETS 

(millions) 

ELECTRIC UTILITY PLANT: 
Plant i n  serv ice  . . . . . . . . . .  
L ~ S S  accumulated deprec ia t ion  . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .  
Nuclear f u e l  under c a p i t a l  
cons t ruc t ion  work i n  progress 

Net ..................... 

E l e c t r i c  u t i l i t y  p l a n t  - ne t  . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .  
CURRENT ASSETS: 

cash and cash equivalents . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .  
Customer receivables.  ne t  o f  allowances o f  $7  and 1 8  ..................................... 
Mater ia ls .  suppl ies and f o s s i l  f u e l  inventory  ~ a t  average Cost .......................... 
Deferred clause e m e n s e s  . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .  
other . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .  

Tota l  cur ren t  assets . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .  
OTHER ASSETS: 

Special use funds . . . . . . .  . . . . . . . . . . .  
o ther  . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .  . . . . . . . . . . .  

Tota l  o ther  assets . .  . . . . . . . . . . .  
TOlAL ASSETS . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .  
CAPITALIZATION: 

common shareholder 's equ i t y  . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .  
Preferred stock w i thout  s ink ing  fund reqwrements 
Long-term debt . . . . . . . . . .  

Tota l  c a p i t a l  i r a t i o n  

CURRENT LIABILITIES: 
commercial paper .................... ............................................... 
cur ren t  ma tu r i t i es  o f  long-term debt . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .  
Accounts payable .................... . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .  
customers' deposi ts . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .  

. . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .  
Tota l  Current l i a b i l i t i e s  . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .  

OTHER LIABILITIES AND DEFERRED CREDITS: 
Accumulated deferred income taxes . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .  
Deferred regu la to ry  c r e d i t  - incame taxes . 
unamortized investment tax  cred7ts . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .  
o ther  . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .  

Tota l  o ther  l i a b i l i t i e s  and deferred c r e d i t s  ......................................... 
storm and proper ty  insurance reserve  . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .  

COMMITMENTS AND CONTINGENCIES 

TOTAL CAPITALIZATION AN0 LIABILITIES . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .  

December 31. 
1999 1 9 9 8  

~~ 

S17 .556 1 1 7 . 1 5 9  
ULm) -7) 

7 . 3 7 2  7 ,842 
l i 7  1 4 6  
449 .~ 1 5 9  

7.97R 8 - w  

1 5 2  
433 5 2 1  
2 9 9  239 

54  82  
1 0 7  1 2 2  
893 1.116 

~~ 

1,352 1.20G 
385 ?79 

. 1,737 1.481 
~~ 

1 4 , 7 9 3  5 4 . 8 0 3  
2 2 6  2 2 6  

.).019 >, I91  
/.098 2 2 0  

94 
1 2 5  2 3 0  
379 3 2 1  
2 8 4  282 
1 3 7  1 9 8  
116 8 9  

298- 2 3 1  
- 1.433 1.351 

8 0 2  8 8 7  
126 1 4 8  
1 8 4  205 
2 1 6  2 5 9  
7 4 9  6 7 8  

2 , 0 7 7  2 , 1 7 7  
~~ 

The accompanying Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements are an integral part of these statements. 
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FLORIDA POWER 8 LIGHT COMPANY 
CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF SHAREHOLDER'S EQUITY 

(millions) 

~ a l a n c e s ,  December 31. 1996 ......................... 11,373 
Contr ibut ions  from FPL GPOUP, 1 ° C .  . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .  
Net, incame a v a i l a b l e  t o  FPL Group. Inc .  
Oiwdends t o  FPL Group. I n c .  ...................... 
Other  ..................... __ 

Balances. December 3 1 ,  1997 . 1.373 
Net  Income a v a i l a b l e  t o  FPL Group. I n c .  ........... 
Dividends t o  FPL Group. I n c .  . .  
Ofher' . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .  ~ 

1,373 
, 1 ° C .  . . . . . . . . . . .  

Dividends t o  FPL Group. 1°C. ...................... 
Balances. December 31, 1999 ......................... 

~ 

stock, no par value. 1,000 shares authorized. issued and outstanding. 

A d d i t i o n a l  
P a i d - I n  c a m t a l  

%2,424 
140 

2 
2 ,566  

~ 

2 ,566  

EsEi 

common 
Reta ined  shareho lder 's  
Earninas EaUitV 

$871 

The accompanying Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements are an integral part of these statements. 
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FPL GROUP, INC. AND FLORIDA POWER 8 LIGHT COMPANY 
NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 

Years Ended December 31,1999,1998 and 1997 

1. Summary of Significant Accounting and Reporting Policies 

Basis of Presentation - FPL Group, Inc.'s (FPL Group) operations are conducted primarily through Florida Power & Light 
Company (FPL) and FPL Energy, LLC (FPL Energy). formerly FPL Energy, Inc. FPL, a rate-regulated public utility. supplies 
electric service to approximately 3.6 million customers throughout most of the east and lower west coasts of Florida. FPL 
Energy invests in independent power projects through both controlled and consolidated entities and non-controlling 
ownership interests in joint ventures accounted for under the equity method. 

The consolidated financial statements of FPL Group and FPL include the accounts of their respective majority-owned and 
controlled subsidiaries. All significant intercompany balances and transactions have been eliminated in consolidation. 
Certain amounts included in prior years' consoiidated financial statements have been reclassified to conform to the current 
year's presentation. The preparation of financial statements requires the use of estimates and assumptions that affect the 
reported amounts of assets, liabilities. revenues and expenses and the disclosure of contingent assets and liabilities. Actual 
results could differ from those estimates. 

Regulation - FPL is subject to regulation by the Florida Public Service Commission (FPSC) and the Federal Energy 
Regulatory Commission (FERC). Its rates are designed to recover the cost of providing electric service to its customers 
including a reasonable rate of return on invested capital. As a result of this cost-based regulation. FPL follows the accounting 
practices set forth in Statement of Financial Accounting Standards No. (FAS) 71, "Accounting for the Effects of Certain Types 
of Regulation." FAS 71 indicates that regulators can create assets and impose liabilities that would not be recorded by 
unregulated entities. Regulatory assets and liabilities represent probable future revenues that will be recovered from or 
refunded to customers through the ratemaking process. The continued applicability of FAS 71 is assessed at each reporting 
period. 

In the event that FPL's generating operations are no longer subject to the provisions of FAS 71, portions of the existing 
regulatory assets and liabilities that relate to generation would be written off unless regulators specify an alternative means of 
recovery or refund. The principal regulatory assets and liabilities are as follows: 

Assets ( included i n  o t h e r  assets ) :  
unamortized debt  reac  " i s i t i o n  costs  ...................................................... $12 I - 
oeferred Oepartment a? ~ n e r g y  assessment .................................................. $ 39 I 44 

L i a b i l i t i e s  : 
Defer red  r e g u l a t o r y  c r e d i t  - income taxes ................................................. $126 $148 
unamortized investment t a x  c r e d i t s  ....................................................... I184 $205 
Storm and proper ty  insurance reserve (see Note 12 - Insurance) ............................. 1216 $259 

The amounts presented above exclude clause-related regulatory assets and liabilities that are recovered or refunded over 
twelve-month periods. These amounts are included in current assets and liabilities in the consolidated balance sheets. 
Further, other aspects of the business, such as generation assets and long-term power purchase commitments, would need 
to be reviewed to assess their recoverability in a changed regulatory environment. Since there is no deregulation proposal 
currently under consideration in Florida, FPL is unable to predict the impact of a change to a more competitive environment or 
when such a change might occur. 

Almost half of the states, other than Florida, have enacted legislation or have state commissions that issued orders designed 
to deregulate the production and sale of electricity. By allowing customers to choose their electricity supplier, deregulation is 
expected to result in a shift from cost-based rates to market-based rates for energy production and other services provided to 
retail customers. Similar initiatives are also being pursued on the federal level. Although the legislation and initiatives vary 
substantially, common areas of focus include when market-based pricing will be available for wholesale and retail customers, 
what existing prudently incurred costs in excess of the market-based price will be recoverable and whether generation assets 
should be separated from transmission. distribution and other assets. It is generally believed transmission and distribution 
activities would remain regulated. 

In December 1999, the FERC issued its final order on regional transmission organizations or RTOs. RTOs, under a variety of 
structures, provide for the independent operation of transmission systems for a given geographic area. The final order 
establishes guidelines for public utilities to use in considering andlor developing plans to initiate operations of RTOs. The 
order requires all public utilities to file with the FERC by October 15, 2000, a proposal for an RTO with certain minimum 
characteristics and functions to be operational by December 15. 2001, or alternatively. a description of efforts to participate in 
an RTO. any existing obstacles to RTO participation and any plans to work toward RTO participation. FPL is evaluating 
various alternatives for compliance with the order. 
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Revenues and Rates - FPL's retail and wholesale utility rate schedules are approved by the FPSC and the FERC, 
respectively. FPL records unbilled base revenues for the estimated amount of energy delivered to customers but not yet 
billed. Unbilled base revenues are included in customer receivables and amounted to $130 million and $152 million at 
December 31, 1999 and 1998. respectively. Substantially all of the energy produced by FPL Energy's independent power 
projects is sold through long-term power sales agreements with utilities and revenue is recorded on an as-billed basis. 

In 1999. the FPSC approved a three-year agreement among FPL, the State of Florida Ofice of Public Counsel (Public 
Counsel), The Florida Industrial Power Users Group (FIPUG) and The Coalition for Equitable Rates (Coalition) regarding 
FPL's retail base rates, authorized regulatory return on common equity (ROE), capital structure and other matters. The 
agreement, which became effective April 15, 1999, provides for a $350 million reduction in annual revenues from retail base 
operations allocated to all customers on a cents-per-kilowatt-hour basis. Additionally, the agreement sets forth a revenue 
sharing mechanism for each of the twelve-month periods covered by the agreement, whereby revenues from retail base 
operations in excess of a stated threshold will be shared on the basis of two-thirds refunded to retail customers and one-third 
retained by FPL. Revenues from retail base operations in excess of a second threshold will be refunded 100% to retail 
customers. 

The thresholds are as follows: 

Twelve Months Ended 
A D r i l  14 .  
2001 2002 

Threshold to refund 66 2/3% t o  customers . . . . .  $3.400 $3,450 $3,500 
Threshold t o  refund 100% t o  customers . . . . . . . .  $ 3 . 5 5 6  $3,606 $3,656 

In addition, the agreement lowered FPL's authorized regulatory ROE range to 10% - 12%. During the term of the agreement, 
the achieved ROE may from time to time be outside the authorized range, and the revenue sharing mechanism described 
above is specified to be the appropriate and exclusive mechanism to address that circumstance. For purposes of calculating 
ROE, the agreement establishes a cap on FPL's adjusted equity ratio of 55.83%. The adjusted equity ratio reflects a 
discounted amount for off-balance sheet obligations under certain long-term purchased power contracts. Finally, the 
agreement established a new special depreciation program (see Electric Plant, Depreciation and Amortization) and includes 
provisions which limit depreciation rates, and accruals for nuclear decommissioning and fossil dismantlement costs, to 
currently approved levels and limit amounts recoverable under the environmental compliance cost recovery clause during the 
term of the agreement. 

The agreement states that Public Counsel, FIPUG and Coalition will neither seek nor support any additional base rate 
reductions during the three-year term of the agreement unless such reduction is initiated by FPL. Further, FPL agreed to not 
petition for any base rate increases that would take effect during the term of the agreement. 

FPL's revenues include amounts resulting from cost recovery clauses, certain revenue taxes and franchise fees. Cost 
recovery clauses, which are designed to permit full recovery of certain costs and provide a return on certain assets utilized by 
these programs, include substantially all fuel, purchased power and interchange expenses, conservation- and environmental- 
related expenses and certain revenue taxes. Revenues from cost recovery clauses are recorded when billed; FPL achieves 
matching of costs and related revenues by deferring the net under or over recovery. Any under recovered costs or over 
recovered revenues are collected from or returned to customers in subsequent periods. 

Electric Plant, Depreciation and Amortization - The cost of additions to units of utility property of FPL and FPL Energy is 
added to electric utility plant. In accordance with regulatory accounting, the cost of FPL's units of utility properly retired, less 
net salvage, is charged to accumulated depreciation. Maintenance and repairs of properly as well as replacements and 
renewals of items determined to be less than units of utility property are charged to other operations and maintenance (08M) 
expenses. At December 31, 1999, the generating, transmission, distribution and general facilities of FPL represented 
approximately 45%. 13%. 35% and 7%. respectively, of FPL's gross investment in electric utility plant in service. 
Substantially all electric utility plant of FPL is subject to the lien of a mortgage securing FPL's first mortgage bonds. 

Depreciation of electric property is primarily provided on a straight-line average remaining life basis. FPL includes in 
depreciation expense a provision for fossil plant dismantlement and nuclear plant decommissioning. For substantially all of 
FPL's property, depreciation and fossil fuel plant dismantlement studies are performed and filed with the FPSC at least every 
four years. In April 1999, the FPSC granted final approval of FPL's most recent depreciation studies, which were effective 
January 1, 1998. Fossil fuel plant dismantlement studies were filed in September 1998 and were effective January 1, 1999. 
The weighted annual composite depreciation rate for FPL's electric plant in service was approximately 4.3% for 1999, 4.4% 
for 1998 and 4.3% for 1997, excluding the effects of decommissioning and dismantlement. Further, these rates exclude the 
special and plant-related deferred cost amortization discussed below. 
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The agreement that reduced FPL's base rates (see Revenues and Rates) also allows for special depreciation of up to $100 
million, at FPL's discretion. in each year of the three-year agreement period to be applied to nuclear andlor fossil generating 
assets. Under this new depreciation program, FPL recorded approximately $70 million of special depreciation in 1999. The new 
depreciation program replaced a revenue-based special amortization program whereby FPL recorded as depreciation and 
amortization expense a fixed amount of $9 million in 1999 and $30 million in 1998 and 1997 for nuclear assets. FPL also 
recorded under this program variable amortization based on the actual level of retail base revenues compared to a fixed amount. 
The variable amounts recorded in 1999. 1998 and 1997 were $54 million, $348 million and $169 million, respectively. The 1998 
and 1997 variable amounts include, as depreciation and amortization expense, $161 million and $169 million, respectively, for 
amortization of regulatory assets. The remaining variable amounts were applied against nudear and fossil production assets. 
Additionally, FPL completed amortization of certain plant-related deferred costs by recording $24 million and $22 million, in 1998 
and 1997, respectively. These costs are considered recoverable costs and are monitored through the monthly reporting process 
with the FPSC. 

Nuclear Fuel - FPL leases nuclear fuel for all four of its nuclear units. Nuclear fuel lease expense was $83 million. $83 million 
and $85 million in 1999, 1998 and 1997. respectively. Included in this expense was an interest component of $8 million, $9 
million and $9 million in 1999, 1998 and 1997, respectively. Nuclear fuel lease payments and a charge for spent nuclear fuel 
disposal are charged to fuel expense on a unit of production method. These costs are recovered through the fuel and 
purchased power cost recovery clause (fuel clause). Under certain circumstances of lease termination, FPL is required to 
purchase all nuclear fuel in whatever form at a purchase price designed to allow the lessor to recover its net investment cost 
in the fuel, which totaled $157 million at December 31, 1999. For ratemaking, these leases are classified as operating leases. 
For financial reporting, the capital lease obligation is recorded at the amount due in the event of lease termination. 

Decommissioning and Dismantlement of Generating Plant - FPL accrues nuclear decommissioning costs over the expected 
sefvice life of each unit. Nuclear decommissioning studies are performed at least every five years and are submitted to the 
FPSC for approval. In October 1998, FPL filed updated nuclear decommissioning studies with the FPSC. These studies 
assume prompt dismantlement for the Turkey Point Units Nos. 3 and 4 with decommissioning activities commencing in 2012 
and 2013, respectively. Current plans call for St Lucie Unit No. 1 to be mothballed beginning in 2016 with decommissioning 
activities to be integrated with the prompt dismantlement of St. Lucie Unit No. 2 beginning in 2023. These studies also 
assume that FPL will be storing spent fuel on site pending removal to a U.S. Government facility. The studies, which are 
pending FPSC approval, indicate FPL's portion of the ultimate costs of decommissioning its four nuclear units, including costs 
associated with spent fuel storage, to be $7.3 billion. Decommissioning expense accruals included in depreciation and 
amortization expense, were $85 million in each of the years 1999, 1998 and 1997. FPL's portion of the ultimate cost of 
decommissioning its four units, expressed in 1999 dollars, is currently estimated to aggregate $1.7 billion. At December 31, 
1999 and 1998, the accumulated provision for nuclear decommissioning totaled approximately $1.4 billion and $1.2 billion, 
respectively, and is included in accumulated depreciation. See Electric Plant, Depreciation and Amortization. 

Similarly, FPL accrues the cost of dismantling its fossil fuel plants over the expected service life of each unit. Fossil 
dismantlement expense was $17 million in each of the years 1999, 1998 and 1997, and is included in depreciation and 
amortization expense. FPL's portion of the ultimate cost to dismantle its fossil units is $482 million. At December 31, 1999 
and 1998, the accumulated provision for fossil dismantlement totaled $232 million and $185 million, respectively, and is 
included in accumulated depreciation. The dismantlement studies filed in 1998 indicated an estimated reserve deficiency of 
$38 million. which was recovered through the special amortization program. See Electric Plant, Depreciation and 
Amortization. 

Restricted trust funds for the payment of future expenditures to decommission FPL's nuclear units are included in special use 
funds of FPL. Securities held in the decommissioning fund are carried at market value with market adjustments resulting in a 
corresponding adjustment to the accumulated provision for nuclear decommissioning. See Note 3 - Special Use Funds. 
Contributions to the funds are based on current period decommissioning expense. Additionally, fund earnings, net of taxes 
are reinvested in the funds. The tax effects of amounts not yet recognized for tax purposes are included in accumulated 
deferred income taxes. 

ACCNal for Major Maintenance Costs - Consistent with regulatory treatment, FPL's estimated nuclear maintenance costs for 
each nuclear unit's next planned outage are accrued over the period from the end of the last outage to the end of the next 
planned outage. The accrual for nuclear maintenance costs at December 31, 1999 and 1998 totaled $42 million and $31 
million. respectively. Any difference between the estimated and actual costs are included in 08M expenses when known. 

FPL Energy's estimated major maintenance costs for each unit's next planned outage are accrued over the period from the 
end of the last outage to the end of the next planned outage. The accrual for FPL Energy's major maintenance costs at 
December 31. 1999 and 1998 totaled $33 million and $2 million, respectively. Any difference between the estimated and 
actual costs are included in O&M expenses when known. 
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Construction Activity - In accordance with an FPSC rule, FPL is not permitted to capitalize interest or a return on common 
equity during construction. except for projects that cost in excess of 1/2% of the plant in service balance and will require more 
than one year to complete. The FPSC allows construction projects below that threshold as an element of rate base. FPL 
Group's unregulated operations capitalize interest on construction projects. 

Storm and Property Insurance Reserve Fund (storm fund) - The storm fund provides coverage toward storm damage costs 
and possible retrospective premium assessments stemming from a nuclear incident under the various insurance programs 
covering FPL's nuclear generating plants. Securities held in the fund are carried at market value with market adjustments 
resulting in a corresponding adjustment to the storm and property insurance reserve. See Note 3 - Special Use Funds and 
Note 12 - Insurance. Fund earnings, net of taxes, are reinvested in the fund. The tax effects of amounts not yet recognized 
for tax purposes are included in accumulated deferred income taxes. 

Other Investments - Included in other investments in FPL Group's consolidated balance sheets is FPL Group's participation in 
leveraged leases of $154 million at both December 31, 1999 and 1998. Additionally, other investments include notes 
receivable and non-controlling non-majority owned interests in partnerships and joint ventures. essentially all of which are 
accounted for under the equity method. See Note 3. 

Cash Equivalents - Cash equivalents consist of short-term. highly liquid investments with original maturities of three months 
or less. 

Retirement of Long-Term Debt - The excess of FPL's reacquisition cost over the book value of long-term debt is deferred and 
amortized to expense ratably over the remaining life of the original issue, which is consistent with its treatment in the 
ratemaking process. Through this amortization and amounts recorded under the special amortization program, the remaining 
balance of this regulatory asset was fully amortized in 1998. Retirements of debt, after the special amortization program 
terminated on April 14, 1999, resulted in additional reacquisition costs. See Regulation. FPL Group Capital Inc (FPL Group 
Capital) expenses this cost in the period incurred. 

Income Taxes - Deferred income taxes are provided on all significant temporary differences between the financial statement 
and tax bases of assets and liabilities. FPL is included in the consolidated federal income tax return filed by FPL Group. FPL 
determines its income tax provision on the "separate return method." The deferred regulatory credit - income taxes of FPL 
represents the revenue equivalent of the difference in accumulated deferred income taxes computed under FAS 109, 
"Accounting for Income Taxes." as compared to regulatoly accounting rules. This amount is being amortized in accordance 
with the regulatory treatment over the estimated lives of the assets or liabilities which resulted in the initial recognition of the 
deferred tax amount. Investment tax credits (ITC) for FPL are deferred and amortized to income over the approximate lives of 
the related property in accordance with the regulatory treatment. The special amortization program included amortization of 
regulatory assets related to income taxes of $59 million in 1997. 

Accounting for Derivative Instruments and Hedging Activities - In June 1998, the Financial Accounting Standards Board issued 
FAS 133, "Accounting for Derivative Instruments and Hedging Activities." The statement establishes accounting and reporting 
standards requiring that every derivative instrument (including certain derivative instruments embedded in other contracts) be 
recorded in the balance sheet as either an asset or liability measured at its fair value. The statement requires that changes in the 
derivative's fair value be recognized currently in earnings unless specific hedge accounting criteria are met. FPL Group and FPL 
are currently assessing the effect, if any, on their financial statements of implementing FAS 133. FPL Group and FPL will be 
required to adopt FAS 133 beginning in 2001. 
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2. Employee Retirement Benefits 

FPL Group and its subsidiaries sponsor a noncontributory defined benefit pension plan and defined benefit postretirement 
plans for health care and life insurance benefits (other benefits) for substantially all employees. The following tables provide 
a reconciliation of the changes in the plans' benefit obligations and fair value of as$ets over the two-year period ending 
September 30, 1999 and a statement of the funded status of both years: 

chan e i n  benef i t  o b l i g a t i o n :  
obq iga t ion  a t  October 1 of p r i o r  year . . . . . . . . . .  
sernce Cost ................................... 
In tePest  Cost .................................. 
P a r t i c i p a n t  con t r i bu t i ons  ...................... 
p lan  amendments ................................ 
Ac tua r ia l  (gains) losses - net . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .  
Acqu is i t i ons  ................................... 
Benef i t  payments ............................... 

o b l i g a t i o n  a t  September 30 ....................... 

............ ............ 

............ ............ . . . . . . . . . . . .  . . . . . . . . . . . .  . . . . . . . . . . . .  . . . . . . . . . . . .  . . . . . . . . . . . .  
change i n  p lan  assets:  

F a i r  va lue  o f  p lan  assets a t  October 1 of p r i o r  year 
Actual  return on plan assets ............................... 
P a r t i c i p a n t  con t r i bu t i ons  .................................. 
Bene f i t  oavments and exoenses .............................. ~~ ~ 

F a i r  value-of p lan  assets' a t  September 30 .................... 
Funded s ta tus :  

Funded s ta tus  a t  September 30 .............................. 
unrecognized p r i o r  serv ice  cost ............................ 
unrecognized t r a n s i t i o n  (asset) obl Igat7on ................. 
unreco n ized (gain) l a s s  ................................... 
Prepa i l  (accrued) benef i t  Cost a t  FPL Group ................ 
Prepaid (accrued) b e n e f i t  Cost at  FPL ...................... 

$1.173 11,146 1 345 I 324 
46 45 6 5 

75 21 21 
2 1 

71 

2,329 2.287 
310 184 

115 125 

1,377 1,156 (224) (230) 
(89) (100) - 
(117) (140) 

The following table provides the components of net periodic benefit cost for the plans for the years ended December 31, 
1999, 1998 and 1997: 

Pension B n e f i t s  0 her Bene f i t  
1999 199; 1997 1999$ D :997 

( m i l l  ions)- 

serv ice  cost ................................. 
i n t e r e s t  cos t  ................................ 
Expected r e t u r n  on plan,assets . . . . . . . . . . . ! . . .  
Amor t i za t ion  o f  t r a n s i t i o n  (asset) obl7gat7an. 
Amor t i za t ion  o f  r i a r  serv ice  cost ........... 
Amor t i za t ion  of Tosses (gains) . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .  
Net pe r iod i c  (benef i t )  Cost . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .  
E f f e c t  of Maine a c q u i s i t i o n  .................. 
E f f e c t  of spec ia l  re t i rement  program . . . . . . . . .  
Net pe r iod i c  (benef i t )  Cost a t  FPL Group ..... 
Net pe r iod i c  (benef i t )  Cost a t  FPL 

1 6  
21 
(;) 

3 
24 
2 

The weighted-average discount rate used in determining the benefit obligations was 6.5% and 6.0% for 1999 and 1998. 
respectively. The assumed level of increase in future compensation levels was 5.5% for all years. The expected long-term 
rate of return on plan assets was 7.75% for all years. 

Based on the current discount rates and current health care costs. the projected 2000 trend assumptions used to measure 
the expected cost of benefits covered by the plans are 6.2% and 5.6%, for persons prior to age 65 and over age 65, 
respectively. The rate is assumed to decrease over the next 3 years to the ultimate trend rate of 5% for all age groups and 
remain at that level thereafter. 

Assumed health care cost trend rates can have a significant effect on the amounts reported for the health care plans. A 1% 
increase or decrease in assumed health care cost trend rates would have a corresponding effect on the service and interest 
cost components and the accumulated obligation of other benefits of approximately $1 million and $13 million, respectively. 
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3. Financial Instruments 

The carrying amounts of cash equivalents and short-term debt approximate their fair values. At December 31, 1999 and 
1998, other investments of FPL Group include $291 million and $72 million, respectively, of investments that are carried at 
estimated fair value or cost, which approximates fair value. The following estimates of the fair value of financial instruments 
have been made using available market information and other valuation methodologies. However, the use of different market 
assumptions or methods of valuation could result in different estimated fair values. 

December 31.  
1999 1998 

c a r r y i n g  Estimated c a r r y i n g  Est imated 
Amount F a i r  Value Amount Fa, P Value 

( m i  11 i o n s )  

Long-term debt o f  FPL (a) .................................... $2,204 I2.123Cb) 1 2 , 4 2 1  $2.505(b) 
Long-term debt o f  FPL Group (a) .............................. $3,603 13.518Cb) $2 ,706  $2.797(b) 

(a) Includes current maturities 
(b) Based an quoted malket prices for these or similar issues 

Special Use Funds - The special use funds consist of storm fund assets totaling $131 million and $160 million, and 
decommissioning fund assets totaling $1.220 billion and $1.046 billion at December 31, 1999 and 1998, respectively. 
Securities held in the special use funds are carried at estimated fair value. The nuclear decommissioning fund consists of 
approximately 40% equity securities and 60% municipal, government, corporate and mortgage- and other asset-backed debt 
securities with a weighted-average maturity of approximately ten years. The storm fund primarily consists of municipal debt 
securities with a weighted-average maturity of approximately four years. The cost of securities sold is determined on the 
specific identification method. The funds had approximate realized gains of $32 million and approximate realized losses of 
$22 million in 1999, $24 million and $4 million in 1998 and $3 million and $2 million in 1997, respectively. The funds had 
unrealized gains of approximately $286 million and $210 million at December 31, 1999 and 1998, respectively; the unrealized 
losses at those dates were approximately $17 million and $2 million. The proceeds from the sale of securities in 1999, 1998 
and 1997 were approximately $2.7 billion, $1.2 billion and $800 million, respectively. 

4. Common Stock 

Common Stock Dividend Restrictions - FPL Group's charier does not limit the dividends that may be paid on its common 
stock. As a practical matter, the ability of FPL Group to pay dividends on its common stock is dependent upon dividends paid 
to it by its subsidiaries, primarily FPL. FPL's charter and a mortgage securing FPL's first mortgage bonds contain provisions 
that, under certain conditions. restrict the payment of dividends and other distributions to FPL Group. These restrictions do 
not currently limit FPL's ability to pay dividends to FPL Group. In 1999, 1998 and 1997, FPL paid, as dividends to FPL Group, 
its net income available to FPL Group on a one-month lag basis. 

Employee Stock Ownership Plan (ESOP) - The employee thrift plans of FPL Group include a leveraged ESOP feature. 
Shares of common stock held by the Trust for the thrift plans (Trust) are used to provide all or a portion of the employers' 
matching contributions. Dividends received on all shares, along with cash contributions from the employers, are used to pay 
principal and interest on an ESOP loan held by FPL Group Capital. Dividends on shares allocated to employee accounts and 
used by the Trust for debt service are replaced with an equivalent amount of shares of common stock at prevailing market 
prices. 

ESOP-related compensation expense of approximately $21 million in 1999 and $19 million in each of the years 1998 and 
1997 was recognized based on the fair value of shares allocated to employee accounts during the period. Interest income on 
the ESOP loan is eliminated in consolidation. ESOP-related unearned compensation included as a reduction of shareholders' 
equity at December 31, 1999 was approximately $233 million, representing 8 million unallocated shares at the original issue 
price of $29 per share. The fair value of the ESOP-related unearned compensation account using the closing price of FPL 
Group stock as of December 31, 1999 was approximately $344 million. 
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Long-Term Incentive Plan - As of December 31, 1999. 9 million shares of common stock are reserved and available for 
awards to officers and employees of FPL Group and its subsidiaries under FPL Group's long-term incentive plan. Restricted 
stock is issued at market value at the date of grant, typically vests within four years and is subject to, among other things, 
restrictions on transferability. Performance share awards are typically payable at the end of a three- or four-year performance 
period and are subject to risk of forfeiture if the specified performance criteria is not met within the restriction period. The 
changes in share awards under the incentive plan are as follows: 

Res t r i c ted  Performance 
Stock shares (a) omions  (a1 

311,527 
212 ,Oll(C) 
(70,008) 
(10.942) 
442,588 . 
178,518(c) 

Paid/released (80,920) 

Granted . . . . . . _  294,662 (C) 
Paid/released . (78,640) 

1.300,000(d) 
i+" 

Forfe i ted  . ..__ (80.027) 
Balances. December 31, 1999 . . . . . . _ . . .  4Lt4oI) !i?La 

Performance shares and options resulted in approximately 253.000, 128.000 and 132.000 assumed incremental shares of common stwk Outstanding for 
purposes of computing diluted earnings per share in 1999. 1998 and 1997. respectively. These incremental shares did not change basic eamings per share. 
The weighted-average grant date fair value of restricted stmk granted in 1999. 1998 and 1997 was $53.21, $81.89 and $55.25. respectively. 
The weighted-average grant date fair value of performance Shares granted in 1999. 1998 and 1997 was $61.19, $59.19 and $45.63. respectively. 
The weighted-average grant date fair value of Options granted in 1999 was $51.59. The exercise price of each option granted in 1999 equaled the market 
ptice d FPL Group sock on the date of grant. 
Exercise prices far options Outstanding as of December 31, 1999, ranged from $51.16 to $54.38 with a weighted-average exercise price of $51.59 and a 
weighted-average remaining Contractual life of 8.8 Yeas. As of December 31, 1999. there were no exercisable options. Of the options outstanding as of 
December 31, 1999, 225.000 vest in 2000,475,000 in 2001, 200,000 in 2002 and 200.000 in 2003. 

(e) 

FAS 123, "Accounting for Stock-Based Compensation," encourages a fair value based method of accounting for stock-based 
compensation. FPL Group, however, uses the intrinsic value based method of accounting as permitted by the statement. 
Stock-based compensation expense was approximately $13 million, $10 million and $8 million in 1999, 1998 and 1997, 
respectively. Compensation expense for restricted stock and performance shares is the same under the fair value and the 
intrinsic value based methods. Had compensation expense for the options been determined as prescribed by the fair value 
based method, FPL Group's net income and earnings per share would have been $696 million and $4.06, respectively. 

The fair value of the options granted in 1999 were estimated on the date of the grant using the Black-Scholes option-pricing 
model with a 3.81 % weighted-average expected dividend yield, 17.88% weighted-average expected volatility, 5.46% 
weighted-average risk-free interest rate and a weighted-average expected term of 9.3 years. 

Other- Each share of common stock has been granted a Preferred Share Purchase Right (Right), at a price of $120, subject 
to adjustment, in the event of certain attempted business combinations. The Rights will cause substantial dilution to a person 
or group attempting to acquire FPL Group on terms not approved by FPL Group's board of directors. 
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5. Preferred Stock 

FPL Group's charter authorizes the issuance of 100 million shares of serial preferred stock, $0.01 par value. None of these 
shares is outstanding. FPL Group has reserved 3 million shares for issuance upon exercise of preferred share purchase 
rights which expire in June 2006. Preferred stock of FPL consists of the following: (a) 

December 31. 1999 

Dutstandino P r i ce  
shares Redemption December 31. 

3% i 0- 
cumulatiye, $100 pap va lue ,  w i thout  s ink ing  fund requirements. 

au thanzed 15,822,500 shares: .................................. 

4 1/24; se r ies  c . . . . . .  
4.32% ser ies  D . 
4.35% ser ies  E . 
6.98% ser ies  s .................... 
7.05% ser ies  T ..................................... 
6.75% s e r i e s  u . . . . . .  

Total pre fer red  stock of FPL .................................. 

100,000 
50,000 
50,000 
62,500 
50,000 
50,000 

750.000 
500,000 
650.000 

2=&LZx! 

1101.00 
$101.00 
$101.00 
$103.00 
$103.50 
$102.00 
$103.49 (b) 
$103. SZ(b) 
1103.37(b) 

I 10 
5 
5 
6 
5 
5 

75 
50 
65 m 

I 10  
5 
5 
6 
5 
5 

75 

- 

(a) 

(b) 

FPCs charter authorizes the issuance of 5 million shares of subordnated preferred stock. no par value. None of these shares is outstanding. There were no 
issuances or redemptions of preferred stock in 1999, 1998 and 1997. 
Not callable prior to 2003. 

6. Debt 

Long-term debt consists of the following: 
DeCpmber 31. 

1999 1998 
X l l i o n s )  

FPL: 
F i r s t  mortga e bonds: ................................. $ 350 I 580 

650 6 4 1  
516 516 

70 70 

Matur ing titrough 2004 - 
MatUPfng 2008 through 20 
Maturing 2023 through 20 
Medium-term notes - mat" 
P o l l u t i o n  c o n t r o l  and i n  

p o l l u t i o n  con t ro l ,  s o l i 3  w 
matur ing 2020 through 20 

annua i n t e r e s t  ra te ,  ................................ 
unamortized d iscount  - ne t  

To ta l  long-term debt of 
Less CUrPeht m a t u r i t i e  
Long-term debt o f  FPL, 

maturing 2020 th rou  h 150 150 

483 

FPL Group c a p i t a l :  
Debentures : 

Maturing through 2004 - 6 7/8% ..... 
Maturing 2006 through 2013 - 7 3/8% 

other long-term debt - 3.4% t o  7.645% 
Unamortized discount . ................ 

Tota l  long-term debt o f  FPL Group Ca 
L ~ S S  a r r e n t  m a t u r i t i e s  . . . . . . . . . .  
Long-term debt O f  FPL Group Capita 

............ 

.......... 
Tota l  long-term debt ...................................... 

(a) In December 1999. FPL Group Capital issued $400 million ptincipal amountof 7 318% debentures. maturing in 2009, 

Minimum annual maturities of long-term debt for FPL Group are approximately $125 million. $170 million and $300 million for 
2000, 2003 and 2004, respectively. The amounts for FPL for the same periods are $125 million, $170 million and $125 
million, respectively. FPL Group and FPL have no amounts due in 2001 and 2002. 

Short-term debt at December 31, 1999 consists of commercial paper borrowings with a year end weighted-average interest 
rate of 5.60% for FPL Group (5.87% for FPL). Available lines of credit aggregated approximately $2.4 billion ($880 million for 
FPL) at December 31, 1999, all of which were based on firm commitments. 
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7. Income Taxes 

The components of income taxes are as follows: 

FPL GPOUD FPL 

% i l l i o n ?  - 
years Ended December 31. Years Ended December 31. m 1998 1998 1997 

Federal : .. . . . . . . . .  . . . . . . . . . . . .  $511 1467 $308 $383 $492 1377 . . . . . . . . . .  . . . . . . . . . . . .  (196) (215) (34) (88) (169) (83) 

s ta te :  . . . .  ... 55 72 52 62 78 60 current 

Income taxes charged t o  Operations - FPL .... 356 329 

Tota l  income taxes .................................... = = E a -  - ~ 

... Deferred , . .  . .  *) 9 2  
To ta l  s t a t e  ...................... . . . . . . . . .  

c r e d i t e d  t o  o the r  income (deductions) - FPL 

A reconciliation between the effective income tax rates and the applicable statutory rates is as follows: 

FPL G ~ O U D  FPL 
Years Ended December 31, Years Ended Desember 31. 
1999 1998 m - 1999 1998 1997 

Sta tu to ry  federa l  income t a x  r a t e  ........................ 35.0% 
Increases ( reduct ions) r e s u l t i n g  from: 

S ta te  income taxes - ne t  o f  federa l  income tax  benef i t . .  2.4 
Amor t iza t ion  o f  ITC .................................... (2.1) 
Amor t iza t ion  o f  defer red  reou la to rv  c r e d i t  - 

income taxes ............ T ...... ...................... (1.3) 
Adjustments o f  p r i o r  years '  t a x  matters . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .  (2.7) 
Prefer red  stock div idends - FPL ........................ 0.5 
Other - ne t  ............................................ lL2) 

Ef fec t ive  income t a x  r a t e  ................................ 
(a) Includes the resolution Of an audit issue with the Internal Revenue Service (IRS). 

35.0% 35.0% 

3.7 3.7 
(2.5) (2.4) 

(1.8) (1.8) 
(6.3)ca) (2.7) 
0.5 0.7 
1.0 0.5 
ZsL6%m 

35.0% 

3.8 
(2.3) 

(1.5) 
(0.1) 

4-1 

35.w 

3.7 
(2.4) 

(1.7) 
0.1 

0.9 
EB 

The income tax effects of temporary differences giving rise to consolidated deferred income tax liabilities and assets are as 
follows: 

FPL GPDUD FPL 
December 31. 

J%L 1998 
(mi 11 ions) 

Deferred tax  l i a b i l i t i e s :  
Proper ty - re la ted  ................................................... $1,377 $1,493 $1,377 $1,493 
Investment-related ................................................. 373 460 
other  .............................................................. +&$3 168140 

Tota l  de fer red  t a x  l i a b i l i t i e s  ................................... - m  1.545- 
Deferred tax  assets and va lua t i on  allowance: 

Asset writedawns and c a p i t a l  l a s s  carryforward ..................... 170 102 

Storm and decommissioning reserves ................................. 245 258 245 258 

. . . . . . . . . .  3) -1 A ~ 

Unamortized ITC and de fer red  regu la to ry  c r e d i t  - income taxes 119 136 119 136 

....... 472 473 379 352 

Net de fer red  t a x  assets .... 
Accumulated deferred income taxe 

The carryforward period for a capital loss from the disposition in a prior year of an FPL Group Capital subsidiary expired at 
the end of 1996. The amount of the deductible loss from this disposition was limited by IRS rules. FPL Group is challenging 
the IRS loss limitation and the IRS is disputing certain other positions taken by FPL Group. Tax benefits, if any, associated 
with these matters will be reported in future periods when resolved. 

8.  Jointly-Owned Electric Utility Plant 

FPL owns approximately 85% of St. Lucie Unit No. 2, 20% of the St. Johns River Power Park units and coal terminal and 
approximately 76% of Scherer Unit No. 4. At December 31, 1999. FPL's gross investment in these units was $1.174 billion, 
$328 million and $571 million, respectively; accumulated depreciation was $710 million, $155 million and $266 million, 
respectively. 

FPL is responsible for its share of the operating costs, as well as providing its own financing. At December 31, 1999, there 
was no significant balance of construction work in progress on these facilities. See Note 12 - Litigation. 
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9. Acquisition of Maine Assets 

During the second quarter of 1999, FPL Energy completed the purchase of Central Maine Power Company's (CMP) non- 
nuclear generating assets, primarily fossil and hydro power plants, for $866 million. The purchase price was based on an 
agreement, subject to regulatory approvals, reached with CMP in January 1998. In October 1998, the FERC struck down 
transmission rules that had been in effect in New England since the 1970s. FPL Energy filed a lawsuit in November 1998 
requesting a declaratory judgment that CMP could not meet the essential terms of the purchase agreement and, as a result, 
FPL Energy should not be required to complete the transaction. FPL Energy believed these FERC rulings regarding 
transmission constituted a material adverse effect under the purchase agreement because of the significant decline in the 
value of the assets caused by the rulings. The request for declaratory judgment was denied in March 1999 and the 
acquisition was completed on April 7, 1999. The acquisition was accounted for under the purchase method of accounting and 
the results of operating the Maine plants have been included in the consolidated financial statements since the acquisition 
date. 

The FERC rulings regarding transmission, as well as the announcement of new entrants into the market and changes in fuel 
prices since January 1998, resulted in FPL Energy recording a $176 million pre-tax impairment loss to write-down the fossil 
assets to their fair value, which was determined based on a discounted cash flow analysis. The impairment loss reduced FPL 
Group's 1999 results of operations and earnings per share by $104 million and $0.61 per share, respectively. 

Most of the remainder of the purchase price was allocated to the hydro operations. The hydro plants and related goodwill are 
being amortized on a straight-line basis over the 40-year term of the hydro plant operating licenses. 

10. Divestiture of Cable Investments 

In January 1999, an FPL Group Capital subsidiary sold 3.5 million common shares of Adelphia Communications Corporation 
(Adelphia) stock and in October 1999 had its one-third ownership interest in a cable limited partnership redeemed, resulting in 
after-tax gains of approximately $96 million and $66 million, respectively. Both investments had been accounted for on the 
equity method. 

11. Settlement of Litigation 

In October 1999, FPL and the Florida Municipal Power Agency (FMPA) entered into a settlement agreement pursuant to 
which FPL agreed to pay FMPA a cash settlement; FPL agreed to reduce the demand charge on an existing power purchase 
agreement; and FPL and FMPA agreed to enter into a new power purchase agreement giving FMPA the right to purchase 
limited amounts of power in the future at a specified price. FMPA agreed to dismiss the lawsuit with prejudice, and both 
parties agreed to exchange mutual releases. The settlement reduced FPL's 1999 net income by $42 million. 

12. Commitments and Contingencies 

Commitments - FPL has made commitments in connection with a portion of its projected capital expenditures. Capital 
expenditures for the construction or acquisition of additional facilities and equipment to meet customer demand are estimated to 
be approximately $3.1 billion for 2000 through 2002. Included in this three-year forecast are capital expenditures for 2000 of 
approximately $1.3 billion. As of December 31, 1999. FPL Energy has made commitments totaling approximately $72 million, 
primarily in connection with the development of an independent power project. FPL Group and its subsidiaries, other than FPL. 
have guaranteed approximately $680 million of purchased power agreement obligations, debt service payments and other 
payments subject to certain contingencies. 

Insurance - Liability for accidents at nuclear power plants is governed by the Price-Anderson Act. which limits the liability of 
nuclear reactor owners to the amount of the insurance available from private sources and under an industry retrospective 
payment plan. In accordance with this Act, FPL maintains $200 million of private liability insurance, which is the maximum 
obtainable. and participates in a secondary financial protection system under which it is subject to retrospective assessments 
of up to $363 million per incident at any nuclear utility reactor in the United States, payable at a rate not to exceed $43 million 
per incident per year. 

FPL panicipates in nuclear insurance mutual companies that provide $2.75 billion of limited insurance coverage for property 
damage, decontamination and premature decommissioning risks at its nuclear plants. The proceeds from such insurance, 
however, must first be used for reactor stabilization and site decontamination before they can be used for plant repair. FPL 
also participates in an insurance program that provides limited coverage for replacement power costs if a nuclear plant is out 
of service because of an accident. In the event of an accident at one of FPL's or another participating insureds nuclear 
plants, FPL could be assessed up to $50 million in retrospective premiums. 
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In the event of a catastrophic loss at one of FPL's nuclear plants, the amount of insurance available may not be adequate to 
cover property damage and other expenses incurred. Uninsured losses, to the extent not recovered through rates, would be 
borne by FPL and could have a material adverse effect on FPL Group's and FPL's financial condition. 

FPL self-insures the majority of its transmission and distribution (T&D) property due to the high cost and limited coverage 
available from third-party insurers. As approved by the FPSC, FPL maintains a funded storm and property insurance reserve, 
which totaled approximately $216 million at December 31, 1999, for T&D property storm damage or assessments under the 
nuclear insurance program. During 1999. storm fund reserves were reduced to recover the costs associated with three 
storms. Recovery from customers of any losses in excess of the storm and property insurance reserve will require the 
approval of the FPSC. FPL's available lines of credit include $300 million to provide additional liquidity in the event of a T&D 
property loss. 

Contracts - FPL has entered into long-term purchased power and fuel contracts. Take-or-pay purchased power contracts with 
the Jacksonville Electric Authority (JEA) and with subsidiaries of The Southern Company (Southem Companies) provide 
approximately 1,300 megawatts (mw) of power through mid-2010 and 383 mw thereafter through 2021. FPL also has various 
firm pay-for-performance contracts to purchase approximately 900 mw from certain cogenerators and small power producers 
(qualifying facilities) with expiration dates ranging from 2002 through 2026. The purchased power contracts provide for 
capacity and energy payments. Energy payments are based on the actual power taken under these contracts. Capacity 
payments for the pay-for-performance contracts are subject to the qualifying facilities meeting certain contract conditions. 
FPL has long-term contracts for the transportation and supply of natural gas, coal and oil with various expiration dates 
through 2021. FPL Energy has long-term contracts for the transportation and storage of natural gas with expiration dates 
ranging from 2005 through 2017, and a 24-month contract commencing in mid-2000 for the supply of natural gas. 

The required capacity and minimum payments through 2004 under these contracts are estimated to be as follows: 

( m i  Wns) zoo, 

iaci t y  payments : 

Minimum ayments, at projc 
Natura7 qas. includJng t 

)E/\ and Southern companies ............................................ $210 I 2 1 0  $210 $200 I 2 0 0  
Qua l i fy ing  f a c i l i t i e s  (a) ............................................. $370 1380 $400 $410 $425 

!cted pr ices:  
:ransportation ................................. $205 1235 

. . .  ............ coal T .................................................. $ 50 I 45 $ o i l  ................................................................... 1165 5165 

5255 $255 I 2 6 0  
45 $ 20 I 10 

> l o  $ -  I -  
FPL Ener y 

Natura7 gas. inc lud ing  transportat ion and storage ..................... I 20 I 20 s 20 I 15 I 15 

(a) Includes approximately $42 million. $44 million. 547 million. $49 million and $50 million. respectively. for capacity payments associated with two contacts that 
are currently in dispute. mese capacity payments are subject to the outcome of the related litigation. See Litigation. 

Charges under these contracts were as follows: 
1999 Charms 1998 char es 1997 c h a r m s  

Ener Y E"& y/ 

W l i o r  
w e ?  caoac i tv  

FPL: 
)EA and southern Companies .................. S186(a) $132(b) 1192Ca) $138(b) $2Ol(a) 5153(b) 

coal ........................................ S - I 43(b) S - I 50(b) s -  I 52(b) 

Q u a l i f  ing facilities ........................ S319(c) $12l(b) $299(c) $108(b) $296(c) 5128(b) 

o i l  ......................................... I - SllS(b)  S - I -  s -  I -  
Natura); gas. includ7ng t ranspor ta t ion  ....... I - $373(b) I - $280(b) I -  1413(b) 

FPL Energy: 
Natura l  gas t r a n s p a r t a t i o n  and Storage ...... I - 1 16 I -  s 18 I -  I 1 6  

(a) Recovered through base rates and the capaciv Cost recovery clause (capacity Clause). 
(b) Recovered through the fuel and purchased power cost recovery clause. 
(c) Recovered through the capacity clause 

Litigation- In 1997, FPL filed a complaint against the owners of two qualifying facilities (plant owners) seeking an order 
declaring that FPL's obligations under the power purchase agreements with the qualifying facilities were rendered of no force 
and effect because the power plants failed to accomplish commercial operation before January 1. 1997, as required by the 
agreements. In 1997, the plant owners filed for bankruptcy under Chapter XI of the U.S. Bankruptcy Code and entered into 
an agreement with the holders of more than 70% of the bonds that partially financed the construction of the plants. This 
agreement gives the holders of a majority of the principal amount of the bonds (the majority bondholders) the right to control. 
fund and manage any litigation against FPL and the right to settle with FPL on any terms such majority bondholders approve, 
provided that certain agreements are not affected and certain conditions are met. In 1998. the plant owners (through the 
attorneys for the majority bondholders) filed an answer denying the allegations in FPL's complaint and asserting 
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counterclaims for approximately $2 billion, consisting of all capacity payments that could have been made over the 30-year 
term of the power purchase agreements and three times their actual damages for alleged violations of Florida antitrust laws 
by FPL. FPL Group and FPL Group Capital, plus attorneys' fees. The trial court dismissed all of the partnerships' antitrust 
claims. In 1999, the partnerships' motion for summary judgment was denied; they have appealed. 

A contract with Cedar Bay Generating Company, L.P. (Cedar Bay), a qualifying facility, provides FPL with the right to dispatch 
the Cedar Bay facility "in any manner it deems appropriate." Despite this contractual right, Cedar Bay initiated an action in 
1997 in the circuit court challenging, among other things, the manner in which the facility had been dispatched by FPL. 
Although the court granted summary judgment to FPL with regard to Cedar Bay's claim that FPL's dispatch decisions violated 
the express terms of the contract, it permitted a jury to hear Cedar Bay's claim that such dispatch decisions violated an 
implied duty of good faith and fair dealing. The Jury awarded Cedar Bay approximately $13 million on this claim. Thereafter, 
the court entered a declaration that FPL was, in the future, to dispatch the Cedar Bay facility in accordance with certain 
specified parameters. FPL expects to recover the amount of this judgment through the capacity clause. 

FPL has appealed both the jury award and the court's declaration. In 1999, after FPL filed its notice of appeal in the Cedar 
Bay action, a lender, on behalf of itself and a group of other Cedar Bay lenders, filed an action against FPL in the circuit court 
alleging breach of contract, breach of an implied duty of good faith and fair dealing, fraud, tortious interference with contract 
and several other claims regarding the manner in which FPL has dispatched the Cedar Bay facility. It seeks unspecified 
damages and other relief. FPL has moved to dismiss all counts of this complaint. 

In 1999, the Attorney General of the United States, on behalf of the U.S. Environmental Protection Agency (EPA) brought an 
action against Georgia Power Company and other subsidiaries of The Southern Company for injunctive relief and the 
assessment of civil penalties for certain violations of the Clean Air Act. Among other things, the EPA alleges Georgia Power 
Company constructed and is continuing to operate Scherer Unit No. 4, in which FPL owns a 76% interest, without obtaining 
proper permitting, and without complying with performance and technology standards as required by the Clean Air Act. The 
suit seeks injunctive relief requiring the installation of such technology and civil penalties of up to $25,000 per day for each 
violation from August 7, 1977 through January 30, 1997, and $27,000 per day for each violation thereafter. Georgia Power 
has filed an answer to the complaint asserting that it has complied with all requirements of the Clean Air Act, denying the 
plaintiffs allegations of liability, denying that the plaintiff is entitled to any of the relief that it seeks and raising various other 
defenses. 

FPL Group and FPL believe that they have meritorious defenses to the litigation and are vigorously defending the suits. 
Accordingly, the liabilities, if any, arising from the proceedings are not anticipated to have a material adverse effect on their 
financial statements. 

13. Subsequent Event 

FPL FiberNet, LLC (FPL FiberNet) was formed in January 2000 to enhance the value of FPL Group's fiber-optic network 
assets that were originally built to support FPL operations. FPL's existing fiber-optic net assets with a net book value of 
approximately $100 million were transferred to FPL FiberNet in January 2000. FPL FiberNet will sell wholesale fiber-optic 
network capacity to FPL and other new and existing customers, primarily telephone, cable television, internet and other 
telecommunications companies. 
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14. Segment Information 

FPL Group's reportable segments include FPL, a regulated utility, and FPL Energy, an unregulated energy generating 
subsidiary. Corporate and other represents other business activities, other segments that are not separately reportable and 
eliminating entries. For all years presented approximately 98% of FPL Group's operating revenues were derived from the 
sale of electricity in the United States. As of December 31, 1999 and 1998. less than 1% of long-lived assets were located in 
foreign countries. 

FPL Group's segment information is as follows: 

1999 1998 1997 
(a) corp.  (a) corp.  (a) corp. 
FPL and FPL and FPL and 

FPL Enerqy Other To ta l  FPL E n ? y  .o ther  TOtal FPL EnePpy Other To ta l  
nlm 1 7 s  

I n t e r e s t  expense . .  5 164 I 44 I 14 I 222 5 196 5 84 5 42 I 322 I 227 5 49 I I 15 48 z ".:9"? Operating revenues $ 6,057 $ 323 $ 58 I 6,438 5 6,366 5 234 5 61 I 6,661 $ 6,132 $189 

Depreciat ion and 
amor t i za t ion  .... 5 989 $ 34 5 17 $1,040 5 1,249 5 31 5 4 $1.284 $1,034 I 2 2  $ 5 $1,061 

Equi ty  i n  earnings 
of equ i t y  method 
investees . . . . . . .  I - $  SO $ - I SO 5 - I  39 5 - I 39 I - I 1 2  $ 2  I 14 

Income tax  ex ense 
(benef i t )  (by $ 324 I (42) 5 41 I 323 5 349 I 24 I(94) $ 279 $ 321 $ 5 $(22) I 304 

Net income (loss)(C) $ 576 I (46) 5167 $ 697 5 616 $ 32 I 16 $ 664 $ 608 I 9 $ 1 $ 618 
s i g n i f i c a n t  noncash 

i tems ........... I 86 $ . 5 . I 86 5 34 $ . I . I 34 I 81 $420 I - I 501 
c a p i t a l  expenditures 

and investments I 924 $1,540 5 15 I 2,479 5 617 I 313 $ 1 6  $ 946 $ 551 $291 1 - 5 842 
Tota l  assets . . . . . .  $11,231 $2,212 5 (2) $13,441 510.748 $1.092 5189 $12,029 $11.172 $912 $365 512,449 
Investment i n  equ i t y  

method investees I - I 166 5 - I 166 5 - $ 165 $ - I 165 $ - I 74 1 2 5 76 

(a) In 1999 and 1998, FPL Energy's interest expense was based On an assumed capital structure of 50% debt for operating pmjeas and 100% debt for projects 
under wnstmdion. FPL Energy's 1008 interest expense also includes the cost of terminating an interest rate swap agreement. FPL Energy's 1997 interest 
expense was related to its Outstanding debt, which exceeded the assumed capital Structure. 
FPL Group allocates inwme taxes to FPL Energy On a 'separate retum method as if it were a tax paying entily. 
m e  following nonrecurring items affected 1999 net income: FPL settled litigation (see Note 11); FPL Energy recorded an impairment loss (see Note 9); and 
Corporate and Other divested its cable investments (see Note 10). 

(b) 
(c) 

15. Summarized Financial Information of FPL Group Capital 

FPL Group Capital's debentures, when outstanding, are guaranteed by FPL Group and included in FPL Group's consolidated 
balance sheets. Summarized financial information of FPL Group Capital is as follows: 

1999 1998 1997 1999 1998 
(miiF5ns)- (m l l i o n s )  

Operating revenues ........................ 5380 $295 $237 cu r ren t  assets . ........ $ 640 I 317 
opera t i n  expenses ........................ 5533 $225 $186 Noncurrent assets ...... $2,627 $1,445 

Net income ................................ $138 $ 68 $ 27 Noncurrent l i a b i l i t i e s  . .  11,840 I 703 
Gain on j i v e s t i t u r e  o f  cable investments .. 5257 $ - I - Current l i a b i l i t i e s  . . . . .  I 414 I 310 
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16. Quarterly Data (Unaudited) 

Condensed consolidated quarterly financial information for 1999 and 1998 is as follows: 

FPL Group: 

March 31 (a) June 30 (a) SeDtember 30 (a) December 31 (a) 
(m i l l i ons .  except per share amounts) 

1999 
operat ing revenues . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .  I 1,412 $ 1,614 I 1.892 I 1.520 
Operating income I 208 I 135(b) I 470 I 107(c) 
Net income $ 209Cd) I 77(b) I 291 I 12OCc) (e) 
Earnings per share(f) . . . . . . . . . . . . .  I 1.22Cd) $ 0.45Cb) $ 1.70 I 0.71(c)Ce) 
Dividends per share . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .  I 0.52 I 0.52 I 0.52 I 0.52 
High-low common stock sales pr i ces .  $61 15/16-50 1/8 I 60 1/2-52 7/8 $56 11/16-49 1/8 I 52 1/2-41 1/8 

opera t ing  revenues . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .  $ 1,338 I 1.692 I 1,999 I 1.632 
opera t ing  income . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .  $ 218 $ 317 I 528 I 189 
Net income I 108 I 176 I 287 I 93(9) 
Earnings per sharecf) . . . . . . . . . . . . .  $ 0.63 I 1.02 I 1.66 I 0.54Cg) 
Dividends per share . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .  $ 0.50 I 0.50 $ 0.50 I 0.50 

. . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .  ........................ 

1998 

........................ 

High-low common s tack  sales pr i ces .  $65 3/16-56 1/16 $65 5/8-58 11/16 I 70-59 11/16 I 72 9/16-60 1/2 

F P L  
1999 

Operating revenues . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .  $ 1,359 
operat ing income . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .  $ 150 
Net income ........................ $ 108 
Net income ava i l ab le  t o  FPL Group.. $ 104 

1998 
operat ing revenues . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .  $ 1,295 
operat ing income . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .  $ 159 
N e t  income ........................ $ 107 
Net income ava i l ab le  to FPL Group.. $ 103 

I 1,511 I 1.769 I 1.418 
I 207 $ 303 I 86Cc) 
I 167 I 268 I 48CC) 
I 163 I 264 $ 45(C) 

I 1,634 I 1.878 I 1,559 
I 216 I 314 I 138 
I 167 I 267 $ 90 
I 163 I 263 I 87 

In the opinion Of FPL Group and FPL, all adjustments, which consist Of normal recurring aCCrUaIS necessaw to present a fair Statement of the amounts Shown 
for Such penods. have been made. Results of operations for an interim period may not give a true indication of results for the year. 
Includes impairment loss on Maine assets. 
Includes the Sehlement of litigation between FPL and FMPA. 
Includes gain on the sale of an investment in Adeiphia common stack. 
Includes gain on the redemption of a one-third ownership interest in a cable limited partnership. 
Basic and assuming dilution. The Sum of the quarterly amounts may not equal the total for the year due lo rounding. 
Includes a loss on the sale of Turner Foods Corporation and the cost of terminating an agreement designed to fix interest rates, partly Offset by the favorable 
IesoIUtion Of an audit issue With the IRS. 



Item 9. Changes in and Disagreements With Accountants on Accounting and Financial Disclosure 

None 
PART 111 

Item IO. Directors and Executive Officers of the Registrants 

FPL Group - The information required by this Item will be included in FPL Group's Proxy Statement which will be filed with 
the Securities and Exchange Commission in connection with the 2000 Annual Meeting of Shareholders (FPL Group's Proxy 
Statement) and is incorporated herein by reference, or is included in Item I. Business - Executive Officers of the Registrants. 

FPL DIRECTORS(a) 

James L. Broadhead. Mr. Broadhead, 64, is chairman and chief executive officer of FPL and FPL Group. He is a director of 
Delta Air Lines, Inc., New York Life insurance Company and The Pittston Company, and a trustee of Corneli University. Mr. 
Broadhead has been a director of FPL and FPL Group since 1989. 

Dennis P. Coyle. Mr. Coyle. 61, is general counsel and secretary of FPL and FPL Group. He is a director of Adelphia 
Communications Corporation. Mr. Coyle has been a director of FPL since 1990. 

Paul J. Evanson. Mr. Evanson. 58. is the president of FPL. He is a director of Lynch Interactive Corporation. Mr. Evanson 
has been a director of FPL since 1992 and a director of FPL Group since 1995. 

Lewis Hay, 111. Mr. Hay, 44, is Senior vice president, finance and chief financial officer of FPL and vice president, finance and 
chief financial officer of FPL Group. Mr. Hay has been a director of FPL since 1999. 

Lawrence J. Kelleher. Mr. Kelleher, 52, is senior vice president, human resources of FPL and vice president, human 
resources of FPL Group. Mr. Kelleher has been a director of FPL since 1990. 

Armando J. Olivera. Mr. Olivera. 50, is senior vice president, power systems of FPL. Mr. Olivera has been a director of FPL 
since 1999. 

Thomas F. Plunken. Mr. Plunkett. 60, is president of FPL's nuclear division. Mr. Plunkett has been a director of FPL since 
1996. 

Antonio Rodriguez. Mr. Rodriguez. 57, is senior vice president, power generation of FPL. Mr. Rodriguez has been a 
director of FPL since 1999. 

(a) Directors are elected annually and serve until their resignation, removal or until their respective s u ~ s s o r s  are elected. Each directoh business experience 
during the past five Years is noted either here or in the Executive ORicers table in Item 1. Business. Executive OfKcerS of the Registrants. 

Item 11. Executive Compensation 

FPL Group - The information required by this Item will be included in FPL Group's Proxy Statement and is incorporated 
herein by reference, provided that the Compensation Committee Report and Performance Graph which are contained in FPL 
Group's Proxy Statement shall not be deemed to be incorporated herein by reference. 
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FPL - The following table sets forth FPL's portion of the compensation paid during the past three years to FPL's chief 
executive officer and the other four most highly-compensated persons who served as executive officers of FPL at 
December 31. 1999. 

Name and PPinciDal Pos i t i on  

lames L.  Broadhead 
Chairman o f  t h e  Board and 

ch ie f  Executive o f f i c e r  
O f  FPL and FPL GPOUP 

~ a u l  3 .  EVanSOn 
President o f  FPL 

Dennis P. cay le  
General counsel and 

Secretary O f  FPL 
and FPL Group 

Thomas F. P lunket t  
P r e s i d q ,  ~ u c l e a r  

DiWs?an O f  FPL 

Lawrence 3 .  Kel leher  
sen io r  v i c e  President.  

numan R ~ S O U ~ C ~ S  o f  FPL 
and v i c e  President,  Human 
Resources of FPL Group 

vear 
1999 
1998 
1997 

1999 
1998 
1997 

1999 
1998 
1997 

1999 
1998 
1997 

1999 
1998 
1997 

SUMMARY COMPENSATION TABLE 

1943,000 
847,875 
846,000 

628,500 
592,500 
564,300 

399.832 
357,000 
353,628 

340,000 
302,500 
275.000 

306.475 
267.750 
258.500 

Long-Term 
Annual COmDenSetion COnDmSation 

o ther  Number o f  Long-Term 
Annual Res t r i c ted  securities Incen t i ve  
coapen- stock under ly ing  p lan  

Bonus sation Awardsca) oef ions Pavoutscb) 

1895,850 $18,809 $2,412,005 250,000 51,083,272 
- 1,788,731 
- 1,402,140 

937,125 9,809 
824,850 9,813 

616,900 8.656 1,278,900 150,000 458,985 
546,900 2.785 704,304 
423,200 2,646 306,741 

259,891 7,964 964.802 100,000 236.783 
368.079 
310,021 

257,040 595 
198,904 3,600 

255.780 100,000 179,564 
103.481 

219,100 10,088 
177,900 3.482 

220,662 10,213 964,802 100.000 177.346 
194,119 3,108 267,694 
147,768 3,273 538.150 222,173 

123,200 3.482 82,128 

A1 1 
o the r  
campen- 
s a t i a n w  

$12.658 
12,009 
11.286 

13,539 
13,746 
15.233 

10.259 
9,737 
10.653 

10,146 
10.344 
11,899 

10,661 
9,724 
11,655 

(a) At December 31, 1999, Mr. Bmadhead held 146,800 shares of restricted wmmon stock with a value of 56,284,875. Of these. 96,800 shares were awarded in 
1991 far the purpose of financing Mr. Broadheads supplemental retirement plan and will offset lump sum benefits that would otherwise be payable lo him in 
cash upon retirement. See Retirement Plans. The remaining 50,000 Shares vest in 2001. At December 31, 1999, Mr. Evanson held 25,000 shares of 
restricted Common stock with a value Of $1.070.313 that vest as to 6,250 shares in each of the years 2000. 2001. 2002 and 2003; MI. Coyle held 20,000 
shares of restricted mmmon stock with a value Of $856,250 that vest as to 5,000 Shares in each of the years 2000. 2001, 2002 and 2003; Mr. Plunken held 
20,000 shares of restricted wmmon stock with a value of $856,250, 5,000 shares of which were granted in 1999 and vest as to 1,250 shares in each of the 
years 2000. 2001, 2002 and 2003; and Mr. Kelieher held 30.000 shares Of restricted Wmmn stock With a value Of $1,284,375, 20,000 Shares of which were 
granted in 1999 and vest as to 5.000 shares in each of the years 2000. 2001, 2002 and 2003. Dividends at normal rates are paid on restricted wmmon stock. 
Payouts are in cash (for payment of incnme taxes) and shares of cOmmOn stock, valued at the closing price on the last business day preceding payout. 
Messrs. Evanson and Plunkett deferred their payouts under FPL Group's Deferred Compensation Pian. 
For 1999, represents employer matching contributions to employee thrin plans and employer wntributions far life insurance as follows: 

T h r i f t  Match L i f e  Insurance 
M r .  Broadhead ....................... 17,167 15,491 
MP. EYanSOn ......................... 7,600 5,939 
M r .  coy1e ........................... 7,167 3,092 
M r .  P lunket t  ........................ 7,600 2,546 
MT.  Ke l leher  ........................ 7,167 3.494 

Long-Term Incentive Plan Awards - In 1999, performance awards, shareholder value awards and stock option awards 
under FPL Group's Long-Term Incentive Plan were made to the executive officers named in the Summary Compensation 
Table as set forth in the following tables. 

LONG-TERM INCENTIVE PLAN AWARDS 

Estimated Future Payouts 

shares u n t i l  Pavout Tartlet(#) Maximun(x1 
Number O f  Performance Per iod under Non-SWck Price-Based Plans 

James L. Broadhead ................ 19,687 1/1/99 - 12/31/02 19,687 31.499 
Paul 1. Evanson ................... 7,874 1/1/99 - 12/31/02 7.874 12.598 
Dennis P. Coyle ................... 4,553 1/1/99 - 12/31/02 4.553 7.285 
Thomas F. P lunket t  ................ 3,651 1/1/99 - 12/31/02 3,651 5.842 
Lawrence 3 .  Kel leher  .............. 3,291 1/1/99 - 12/31/02 3,291 5,266 

Shown in the preceding table, the performance share awards are payable at the end of the four-year performance period. 
The amount of the payout is determined by multiplying the participant's target number of shares by his average level of 
attainment, expressed as a percentage, which may not exceed 160%, of his targeted awards under the Annual Incentive 
Plans for each of the years encompassed by the award period. Annual incentive compensation is based on the attainment of 
net inwme goals for FPL and FPL Group, which are established by the Compensation Committee of FPL Group's Board of 
Directors (the Committee) at the beginning of the year. The amounts eamed on the basis of this performance measure are 
subject to reduction based on the degree of achievement of other corporate and business unit performance measures, and in 
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the discretion of the Committee. Mr. Broadheads annual incentive compensation for 1999 was based on the achievement of 
FPL Group's net income goals and the following performance measures for FPL (weighted 75%) and the non-utility and/or 
new businesses (weighted 25%) and upon certain qualitative factors. For FPL, the incentive performance measures were 
financial indicators (weighted 50%) and operating indicators (weighted 50%). The financial indicators were operations and 
maintenance costs, capital expenditure levels, net income, regulatory return on equity and operating cash flow. -The 
operating indicators were service reliability as measured by the frequency and duration of service interruptions and sewice 
unavailability, system performance as measured by availability factors for the fossil power plants, WAN0 index for nuclear 
power plants, employee safety, number of significant environmental violations, customer satisfaction survey results, load 
management installed capability and conservation programs' annual installed capacity. For the non-utility andlor new 
businesses. the performance measures were total combined return on equity; non-utility net income and return on equity; 
corporate and other net income; employee safety; number of significant environmental violations; and the development of a 
plan to meet five-year growth objectives. The qualitative factors included measures to position the Corporation for greater 
competition and initiating other actions that significantly strengthen the Corporation and enhance shareholder value. 

Number o f  
shares 

Performance Per iod  
U n t i l  ~ a v o u t  

Est imated Future  Payouts 
under Nan-Stock Pnce-Based  Plans 

Tarnet(#)  Maximum(#) 

lames L .  Braadhead ................ 13,423 1/1/99 - 12/31/01 13.423 21.477 

Dennis P .  c a y l e  ................... 3,415 1/1/99 - 12/31/01 3.415 5,464 
Thomas F .  P l u n k e t t  . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .  2,738 1-1-99 - 12/31/01 2,738 4.381 

Paul 1. EvanSDn ................... 6,749 1/1/99 - 12/31/01 6,749 10.798 

Lawrence 1, K e l l e h e r  . . . . . . . . . . . . . .  2,468 1/1/99 - 12/31/01 2.468 3.948 

Shown in the preceding table, the shareholder value share awards are payable at the end of the three-year performance 
period. The amount of the payout is determined by multiplying the participant's target number of shares by a factor derived by 
dividing the average annual total shareholder return of FPL Group (price appreciation of FPL Group common stock plus 
dividends) by the total shareholder return of the Dow Jones Electric Utilities Index companies over the three-year 
performance period. This payment may not exceed 160% of targeted awards. 

o p t i o n   rants i n  Last  F i s c a l  Year 

I n d i v i d u a l  Grants 
Number o f  Percent  of 

under ly ing  Granted to  Exerc ise  o r  
s e c u r i t i e s  T o t a l  opt ions  

opt ions  Employees i n  Base P r i c e  Expi r a t i o n  Grant  Date  
Name G r a n u d h l  F i s c a l  year p e r  share D a t e  Present  v a l u e ( h l  

lames L .  Broadhead . . . . . . . . .  250,000 19.2% 151.156 2/15/06 $2 247,027 
Paul 1. EVanSOn . . . . . . . . . . . .  150,000 11.5% 151.156 2/15/09 $1: 515,497 
oennis P .  c o y l e  . . . . . . . . . . . .  100.000 7.7% 151.156 2/15/09 11,010,331 
Thomas F .  P l u n k e t t  . . . . . . . . .  100.000 7.7% 151.156 2/15/09 11,010,331 
Lawrence 1. K e l l e h e r  ....... 100,000 7.7% 151.156 2/15/09 11,010,331 

,a, Optono ganleo are non-qua fed s loc~  options Mr Broaaneaa I oplons N II be exerc saole on hovemoer 28 2001 A I  m e r  sloth options WI. b e " e  
exercmab e 25% per year ana oe 1-1 y exercisao e aRer f0.r years AI opt On) were granted a1 an exex se pnce per share of 100% of the fa,, marnel va be of 
FPL Grorp Inc c " O n  SIWL on the Oate of grant 
Tne \al.es s n o w  renen slanaara applcal on of the B acK-Scnoles pnc no moae Vo an ry s eqLa to 18 08% and yie d s eqml to 3 81% m e  mleresl rate 
J ewal  to lne J S Treasdly Slnp R a e  on Ine dale of grant u In a lerm eq .a 10 mal of Ine opl on (5 19% far Ine 7-year opt oris expinng 2 15106 ana 5 40% for 
me 10-year optnns expmng ut5 09, Tne val.es ao not h e  nto a m w l  I I* lactors r s n  as nan.translerao# try or n% of fmien.re 

(b) 

The preced ng table sets forth information concerning individual grants of common stock options during fiscal year 1999 to 
the executive officers named in the Summary Compensation Tabe Such awards are also listed in the Summary 
Compensation Table in tne column entitled Number of Securities Underlying Options 

nggregated o p t i o n  ~ x c r c i r e s  in L ~ S K  ~ i s c a l  year ana F i s c a l  v e a r - m d  option v a l ~ e ~  

N W I O ~ ~  o f  s c c L n t i e s  \ ~ a l ~ e  o f  unexerc ised  
unoer ly ing  .nexercisea In-The-Money Options a t  

- Op.t.ions a t  F/ )F31 Year-Eqd. FiICal-VeaC-End- . 
shares 

Acquired on Value 
Name EXPPC1Se Rea1 1 r e d  E x e r c i s a b l e  unexerci  sabl  e E x e r c i s a b l e  unexerc i  sabl  e 

lames L .  Broadhead 0 50 0 250,000 so so 
Paul 3 .  EYanSOn 0 IO 0 150,000 so $0 
Dennis P .  c o y l e  0 IO 0 100.000 $0 IO 
Thomas F .  P l U n k e t t  0 10 0 100.000 $0 50 
Lawrence 3 .  K e l l e h e r  0 IO 0 100.000 $0 50 

The preceding table sets forth information. with respect to the named officers. concerning the exercise of stock options during 
the fiscal year, and unexercised options held at the end of the fiscal year. The named officers did not exercise any stock 
options during 1999, and held no exercisable options at the end of the year. All of the unexercisable options shown in the 
preceding table were granted in 1999. At December 31, 1999, the fair market value of the underlying securities (based on the 
closing share price of FPL Group, Inc. Common Stock reported on the NYSE of $42.8125 per share) did not exceed the 
exercise or base price of the options, therefore the options were not in-the-money at fiscal year-end. 
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Retirement Plans - FPL Group maintains a non-contributory defined benefit pension plan and a supplemental executive 
retirement plan which covers FPL employees. The following table shows the estimated annual benefits, calculated on a 
straight-line annuity basis, payable upon retirement in 1999 at age 65 after the indicated years of service. 

PENSION PLAN TABLE 
~ l i g i b l e  Average 

Annual ComDensation 

I 300,000 ............................................. 

700.000 . . . .  
800.000 . . . . . . . .  
900.000 ............................................. 

. . . . . . . . . . . . .  

. . . . . . . . . . . . .  ....................................... 

Years o f  s e r v i c e  
40 50 

I 58,809 
78,809 
98,809 
118,809 
138.809 
158,809 
178,809 
198,809 
218.809 
238.809 
258.809 
278.809 
298.809 
318,809 
338,809 
358,809 
378,809 
398,809 
418,809 
438,809 
458,809 
478.809 

I 154,909 
207,409 
259,909 
312,409 
364,909 
417,409 
469,909 
522.409 
574,909 
627,409 
679.909 
732,409 
784,909 
837,409 
889,909 
942,409 
994,909 

1,047,409 1,099,909 

1,152,409 
1,204,909 
1,257,409 

I 157.297 
209.797 
262.297 
314,797 
367,297 
419,797 
472,297 
524,797 
577,297 
629,797 
682,297 
734,797 
787,297 
839,797 
892,297 
944,797 
997,297 

1,049,797 
1,102,297 
1,154,797 
1,207,297 
1,259,797 

The compensation covered by the plans includes annual salaries and bonuses of certain officers of FPL Group and annual 
salaries of officers of FPL, as shown in the respective Summary Compensation Tables, but no other amounts shown in those 
tables. The estimated credited years of service for the executive officers named in the Summary Compensation Table are: 
Mr. Broadhead, 11 years; Mr. Evanson. 7 years; Mr. Coyle, 10 years; Mr. Plunken, 9 years and Mr. Kelleher, 32 years. 
Amounts shown in the table reflect deductions to partially cover employer contributions to social security. 

A supplemental retirement plan for Mr. Broadhead provides for a lump-sum retirement benefit equal to the then present value 
of a joint and survivor annuity providing annual payments to him or his surviving beneficiary equal to 61% to 70% of his 
average annual compensation for the three years prior to his retirement between age 62 (1998) and age 65 (ZOOl), reduced 
by the then present value of the annual amount of payments to which he is entitled under all other pension and retirement 
plans of FPL Group and former employers. This benefit is further reduced by the then value of 96,800 shares of restricted 
common stock which vest in 2001. Upon a change of control of FPL Group (as defined below under Employment 
Agreements). the restrictions on the restricted stock lapse and the full retirement benefit becomes payable. Upon termination 
of Mr. Broadheads employment agreement (also described below) without cause, the restrictions on the restricted stock 
lapse and he becomes fully vested under the supplemental retirement plan. 

A supplemental retirement plan for Mr. Coyle provides for benefits, upon retirement at age 62 (2000) or more, based on two 
times his credited years of service. A supplemental retirement plan for Mr. Evanson provides for benefits based on two times 
his credited years of service up to age 65 and one times his credited years of service thereafter. A supplemental retirement 
plan for Mr. Plunkett provides for benefits, upon retirement at age 62 or more, based on two times his credited years of 
service up to age 65 and one times his credited years of service thereafter. 

In 1998, the vesting schedule attached to 10,000 shares of restricted common stock held by C.O. Woody, then President of 
the Power Generation Division of FPL. was amended to coincide with Mr. Woody's planned retirement in June 1999. As a 
consequence of the amended vesting schedule, Mr. Woody was indebted to FPL for a period of less than two weeks in June 
1999 for $147,133 in taxes owed upon vesting of the shares. 

FPL Group sponsors a split-dollar life insurance plan for certain of FPL's and FPL Group's senior officers. Benefits under the 
split-dollar plan are provided by universal life insurance policies purchased by FPL Group. If the officer dies prior to 
retirement. the officer's beneficiaries generally receive two and one-half times the officer's annual salary at the time of death. 
If the officer dies after retirement, the officer's beneficiaries receive between 50% to 100% of the officer's final annual salary. 
Each officer is taxable on the insurance carrier's one-year term rate for his life insurance coverage. 

Employment Agreements - FPL Group has an employment agreement with Mr. Broadhead that provides for automatic one- 
year extensions after 2000 unless either party elects not to extend. The agreement provides for a minimum base salary of 
$765,900 per year, subject to increases based upon corporate and individual performance and increases in cost-of-living 
indices, plus annual and long-term incentive compensation opportunities at least equal to those currently in effect. If FPL 
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Group terminates Mr. Broadhead's employment without cause, he is entitled to receive a lump-sum payment of two years' 
compensation. Compensation is measured by the then current base salary plus the average of the preceding two years' 
annual incentive awards. He would also be entitled to receive all amounts accrued under all performance share grants in 
progress, prorated for the year of termination and assuming achievement of the targeted award, and to full vesting of his 
benefits under his supplemental retirement plan. 

FPL Group and FPL have entered into employment agreements with certain officers, including the individuals named in the 
Summary Compensation Table, to become effective in the event of a change of control of FPL Group, which is defined as the 
acquisition of beneficial ownership of 20% of the voting power of FPL Group, certain changes in FPL Group's board of 
directors, or approval by the shareholders of the liquidation of FPL Group or of certain mergers or consolidations or of certain 
transfers of FPL Group's assets. These agreements are intended to assure FPL Group and FPL of the continued services of 
key officers. The agreements provide that each officer shall be employed by FPL Group or one of its subsidiaries in his then 
current position, with compensation and benefits at least equal to the then current base and incentive compensation and 
benefit levels, for an employment period of four and, in certain cases, five years afler a change In control occurs. 

In the event that the officets employment is terminated (except for death, disability or cause) or if the officer terminates his 
employment for good reason, as defined in the agreement, the officer is entitled to Severance benefits in the form of a 
lump-sum payment equal to the compensation due for the remainder of the employment period or for two years, whichever is 
longer. Such benefits would be based on the officer's then base salary plus an annual bonus at least equal to the average 
bonus for the two years preceding the change of control. The officer is also entitled to the maximum amount payable under 
all long-term incentive compensation grants outstanding, continued coverage under all employee benefit plans, supplemental 
retirement benefits and reimbursement for any tax penalties incurred as a result of the severance payments. 

Director Compensation - All of the directors of FPL are salaried employees of FPL Group and its subsidiaries and do not 
receive any additional compensation for serving as a director. 

Item 12. Security Ownership of Certain Beneficial Owners and Management 

FPL Group - The information required by this Item will be included in FPL Group's Proxy Statement and is incorporated 
herein by reference. 

FPL - FPL Group owns 100% of FPCs common stock. FPL's directors and executive officers beneficially own shares of FPL 
Group's common stock as follows: 

Name Number O f  SharQAa) 

lames L. Broadhead . . . . . . . . . . .  ........... 243,64O(b) ( c )  
Dennis P. Coyle . ............. 63,469(b) (c) (d 
Paul 3 .  Evanson ................. 
Lewis ~ a y ,  111 .... .................................................... 25,134Cb) (c) 
Lawrence 1. K e l l e h e  .................... 69.562cb) (c)(d) 
Armando I. O l i v e r a  ............................. 42 676(b)(c)(d) 
Thomas F. P l u n k e t t  ............................. SS:26l(b)(c)(d) 
Antonio Rodriguez ............ ............. 6,171Cb) 
A l l  d i r e c t o r s  and e x e c u t i v e  o f  708,939Cb) (c)(d)(e) 

(a) 

(b) 

96.170(b) ( c )  ( d j  

Information is as of January 31, 2000, except for executive officers' holdings under the thrift Plans and the Supplemental Executive Retirement Plan. which are 
as of December 31, 1999. Unless otherwise indicated. each person has sole voting and sole investment power. 
Includes 15,625, 3.876. 4,335, 84, 1,292. 195. 549 and 111 phantom shares far Messffi. Broadhead. Coyle, Evanson, Hay, Kelleher, Olivera. Plunken and 
Rodriguez, respectively. and a total of 28,967 phantom shares for all direnon and oficers as a group, credited to a Supplemental Matching Contnbution 
Account under the Supplemental Executive Retirement Plan. 
Includes 146.800, 20,000, 25,000, 25,000. 30,000. 10,000 and 20,000 shares Of restricted stock as to Which Messrs. Bmadhead, Coyie, Evanson, Hay. 
Kelleher. Olivera and PIunkeu, respectively, and a total 311.800 shares Of restricted stock for ali directors and Omcers as a group, have voting but not 
investment power. 
Includes Options held by Merrrs. Coyle. Evansan, Kelleher, Olivera and Plunken 10 purchase 25,000, 37.500. 25,000, 12,500 and 25,000 shares, respectively. 
and options lo purchase a total of 162,500 Shares for all directors and offcers as a group. 
Less than 1% of FPL Group's common stock outstanding. 

(c) 

(d) 

(e) 

Section 16(a) Beneficial Ownership Reporting Compliance - FPL's directors and executive officers are required to file 
initial reports of ownership and reports of changes of ownership of FPL Group common stock with the Securities and 
Exchange Commission. Based upon a review of these filings and written representations from FPL directors and executive 
officers. all required filings were timely made in 1999. 
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Item 13. Certain Relationships and Related Transactions 

FPL Group - The information required by this Item will be included in FPL Group's Proxy Statement and is incorporated 
herein by reference. 

FPL - None 

PART IV 

Item 14. Exhibits, Financial Statement Schedules and Reports on Form 8-K 

(a) 1. Financial Statements 

Independent Auditors' Report 
FPL Group: 

Consolidated Statements of Income 
Consolidated Balance Sheets 
Consolidated Statements of Cash Flows 
Consolidated Statements of Shareholders' Equity 

FPL: 
Consolidated Statements of Income 
Consolidated Balance Sheets 
Consolidated Statements of Cash Flows 
Consolidated Statements of Shareholder's Equity 

Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements 

2. Financial Statement Schedules - Schedules are omitted as not applicable or not required 

3. Exhibits including those Incorporated by Reference 

Exhi b i t  
NuFnber 

*3 ( i )a  

*3( i )b 

*3 ( i )C  

*3(i)d 

*3( i )e 

* 3 ( i ) f  

*3 ( i )g  

*3( i )h 

* 3 ( i ) i  

* 3 ( i i ) a  

Restated A r t i c l e s  o f  Incorpora t ion  O f  FPL Group dated December 31. 1984. 
as amended Inrough oecemoer 17.  1990 ( f i l e d  a i  Exn ib i t  4(a) t o  P o s t -  
E f fec t i ve  Amendment h O .  5 t o  Form 5 - 8 .  F l l e  NO. 33-18669) 

Amendment t o  FPL Group's Restated A r t i c l e s  o f  Incorpora t ion  dated lune 2 7 ,  
1996 ( f i l e d  as E x h i b i t  3 t o  Form 10-Q f o r  the  quar te r  ended lune 30, 1996, 
F l l e  NO. 1-8841) 

Restated A r t i c l e s  of I nco rpo ra t i on  of FPL dared march 23. 1992 ( f i l e d  as 
E x h i b i t  3 ( i )a  t o  Form 10-K f o r  the  year ended December 31. 1993, F i l e  NO. 
1-3545) 

Amendment t o  FPL'S Restated A r t i c l e s  o f  Incorpora t ion  dated March 23, 1992 
( f i l e d  as E x h i b i t  3( i )b t o  Form 10-K f o r  the  year ended December 31. 1993, 
F i l e  NO. 1-3545) 

Amendment t o  FPL'S Restated A r t i c l e s  o f  Incorpora t ion  dated May 11, 1992 
( f i l e d  as E x h i b i t  3( i )c TO Form 10-K f o r  t h e  year ended December 31, 1993. 
F i l e  NO. 1-3545) 

Amendment t o  FPL'S Restated A r t i c l e s  O f  Incorpora t ion  dated March 1 2 ,  1993 
( f i l e d  as E x h i b i t  3 ( i )d  t o  ~ o r m  10-K f o r  t h e  year ended December 31. 1993, 
F i l e  NO. 1-3545) 

Amendment t o  F P L ~ S  Restated A r t i c l e s  o f  Incorpora t ion  dated > m e  16, 1993 
( f i l e d  as E x h i b i t  3( i )e t o  Form 10-K f o r  the  year ended December 31. 1993. 
F i l e  NO. 1-3545) 

Amendment t o  FPL'S Restated A r t i c l e s  o f  Incorpora t ion  dated 4 u g w t  31, 1993 
( f i l e d  as E x h i b i t  3 ( i ) f  t o  Form 10-K fo r  t h e  year ended December 31. 1993, 
F i l e  NO. 1-3545) 

Amendment t o  FPL'S Restated A r t i c l e s  o f  Incorpora t ion  dated November 30, 
1993 ( f i l e d  as E x h i b i t  3( i )g t o   FOP^ 10-K f o r  the  year ended December 31, 
1993, F i l e  NO. 1-3545) 

~ y l a w s  o f  FPL Croup dated November 1 5 .  1993 ( f i l e d  as E x h i b i t  3 ( i i )  t o  ~ o r m  
1 0 - K  f o r  the year ended December 31. 1993, F i l e  No. 1-8841) 

16 

17 
18 
19 
20 

21 
22 
23 
24 

25-38 

FPL 
G C Q u g F p L  

x 

x 

x 

x 

x 

x 

x 

x 

x 

x 
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*4(b) 

Bylaws of  FPL dated May 11, 1992 ( f i l e d  as E x h i b i t  3 t o  Form 8 - ~  dated 
May 1. 1992, F i l e  NO. 1-3545) 

Form of R igh ts  Agreement. dated as of  l u 1  1. 1996, between FPL croup 
and t h e  F i r s t  Nationa1,sank of Boston ( f i yed  as E x h i b i t  4 t o  ~ o r m  8.~ 
dated l u n e  17, 1996, F i l e  NO. 1-8841) 

FPL 
G r o v D F P L  

x 

x 

Indenture .  dated as of  June 1. 1999. between FPL G ~ Y P  c a p i t a l  m c  and 
The Bank of  New vork,  as Trus tee  ( f i l e d  as E x h i b i t  4(a) to ~ o r m  8.~ 
Dated I U l Y  16,  1999, F l l e  NO. 1-8841) 

Guarantee Agreement between FPL Group. rnc .  (as guarantor)  and 
The Bank o f  New York (as Guarantor Trustee) dated as o f  l u n e  1 1999 
( f i l e d  as E x h i b i t  4(b) t o  Form 8-K dated July 16, 1999. F i l e  ~ b .  1-8841) 

FPL Group Supplemental Execut ive Ret i rement Plan. amended and r e s t a t e d  
e f f e c t i v e  A p r i l  1, 1997 

Amendments # 1 and 2 e f f e c t i v e  ianuary  1. 1998 t o  FPL croup su piemental  
Execut ive  Ret i rement Plan, amended and r e s t a t e d  e f f e c t i v e  ApPi? 1, 1997 

Amendment X3 e f f e c t i v e  lanuary  1, 1999. t o  FPL croup supplemental 
Execut ive  Ret i rement Plan, amended and r e s t a t e d  e f f e c t i v e  A p r i l  1, 1997 

FP. Grodp Amenoed and Restate0 SLPDlemental EXeCLtive Ret i rement p l a n  f o r  
lames L. Broaoneao e f f e c t i v e  !anLary 1. 1990 ( f i l e 0  as E x n l b i t  99(0) t o  
P o s t - E f f e c t i v e  mendmenr ho. , t o  rorm 5-8 .  ~ l l e  NO. 33-18669, 

supplement t o  t h e  FPL Group Supplemental Execut ive Ret i rement Plan 
as i t  a p p l i e s  t o  Paul 1. Evanson e f f e c t i v e  lanuary  1, 1996 ( f i l e d  as 
E x h i b i t  10(b) t o  Form 10-K fo r  t h e  year ended December 31, 1996, F i l e  
NO. 1-8841) 

supplement t o  t h e  FPL Group supplemental Execut ive Ret i rement P lan  as 
i t  ap l i e s  t o  Thomas F. P l u n k e t t  ( f i l e d  as E x h i b i t  10(e) t o  Form 1 0 . ~  
f o r  d e  Year ended December 3 1 ,  1997. F i l e  NO. 1-8841) 

FPL croup Long-Term I n c e n t i v e  p l a n  of 1985, as amended ( f i l e d  as E x h i b i t  

Long-Term I n c e n t i v e  Plan 1994 ( f i l e d  as E x h i b i t  4(d) t o   FOP^ 5-8. F i l e  

nnnual I n c e n t i v e  p l a n  

FPL Group. I n c .  Defer red  Cam ensat ion  Plan, amended and r e s t a t e d  e f f e c t i v e  
lanuary  1, 1995 ( f i l e d  as E d i b i t  99 t o  Form 5-8.  F i l e  NO. 1-8841) 

99(h) t o  POSt-EffeCtlVe Amendment NO. 5 t O  Form 5-8 ,  F i l e  NO. 33-18669) 

NO. 33-57673) 

FPL G r o w  Execut ive  Long Term D i s a b i l i t y  Plan e f f e c t i v e  i a n u a r y  1. 1995 
( f i l e d  as E x h i b i t  l o (  1 t o  Form 10-K f o r  t h e  year ended December 31, 
1995, F i l e  NO. 1-88413 

x x 
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x 

x 
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x 

X 

x 

x 

x 

x 

x 
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Employment Agreement between FPL Group and lames L .  sroadhead amended and 
r e s t a t e d  as o f  ~ a y  10, 1999 ( f i l e d  as E x h i b i t  10(a) t o  ~ o r m  lb-Q f o r  t h e  
q u a r t e r  ended September 30. 1999. F i l e  NO. 1-8841) 

Employment Agreement between FPL GroUI) and Dennis P. Coyle, amended and 
r e s t a t e d  as o f  May 10, 1999 ( f i l e d  as E x h i b i t  10(b) t o  Form 10-4 f o r  t h e  
q u a r t e r  ended September 30, 1999, F i l e  NO. 1-8841) 

Employment Agreement between FPL Group and Paul 1. Evanson, amended and 
r e s t a t e d  a5 of May 10 ,  1999 ( f i l e d  as E x h i b i t  10Cc) t o  Form 10-4 f o r  t h e  
q u a r t e r  ended September 30, 1999, F i l e  NO. 1-8841) 

Employment A r e m "  between FPL G r O U  and Lewis nay, 111. dated 
as o f  Septemzer 13. 1999 ( f i l e d  as E x E i b i t  10(d) t o  Form 10-Q f o r  t h e  
q u a r t e r  ended September 30, 1999. F i l e  NO. 1-8841) 

Employment Agreement between FPL Group and Lawrence 1. Ke l leher  amended 
and r e s t a t e d  a5 o f  May 10, 1999 ( f i l e d  as E x h i b i t  10(e) t o  Form'lO-~ f o r  the  
q u a r t e r  ended September 30, 1999, F i l e  NO. 1-8841) 

Employment Agreement between FPL Group and Thomas F. P l u n k e t t  amended and 
r e s t a t e d  a5 o f  May 10, 1999 ( f i l e d  as E x h i b i t  10(f) t o  Form 16-Q for  t h e  
q u a r t e r  ended September 30, 1999, F i l e  NO. 1-8841) 

Employment Agreement between FPL  roup and Michael w. Yack i ra  amended and 
r e s t a t e d  a5 o f  ~ a y  10, 1999 ( f i l e d  as E x h i b i t  10( t o  Form 16-4 f o r  t h e  
q u a r t e r  ended September 30, 1999, F l l e  NO. 1-88417 

FPL G r O U  , 1°C. NO"-Employee D i r e c t o r s  Stock Plan dated as o f  March 17, 
1997 ( f i y e d  as Appendix A t O  FPL G r O U P ' S  1997 Proxy Statement. F i l e  NO. 
1-8841) 

Computation o f  R a t i o  of  Earnings t o  Fixed charges 

computation of Rat ios  

s u b s i d i a r i e s  o f  t h e  Reg is t ran t  

Independent A u d i t o r s '  Consent 

F i n a n c i a l  Data schedule 

FPL 
GrDUDFPL 

x 

x 

x 

x 

x 

x 

x 

x 

x 

x 

x 

Y x 

x x 

* Incorporated herein by reference 

(b) Reports on Form 8-K - none 
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FPL GROUP, INC. SIGNATURES 

Pursuant to the requirements of Section 13 or 15(d) of the Securities Exchange Act of 1934, the registrant has duly caused 
this report to be signed on its behalf by the undersigned, thereunto duly authorized. 

FPL Group, Inc 

JAMES L. BROADHEAD 
James L. Broadhead 

Chairman of the Board and 
Chief Executive Oflicer 

(Principal Executive Officer and Director) 

Date: February 28, 2000 

Pursuant to the requirements of the Securities Exchange Act of 1934, this report has been signed below by the following 
persons on behalf of the registrant and in the capacities and on the date indicated. 

Signature and Title as of February 28. 2000: 

LEWIS HAY, 111 
Lewis Hay, 111 
Vice President. Finance and Chief Financial Officer 
(Principal Financial Officer) 

Directors: 

H. JESSE ARNELLE 
H. Jesse Arnelle 

SHERRY S. BARRAT 
Sherry S. Barrat 

ROBERT M. BEALL, II 
Robert M. Beall, II 

J. HYATT BROWN 
J. Hyalt Brown 

WILLARD D. DOVER 
Willard D. Dover 

ALEXANDER W. DREYFOOS JR. 
Alexander W. Dreyfoos Jr. 

PAUL J. EVANSON 
Paul J. Evanson 

DREW LEWIS 
Drew Lewis 

ARMAND0 M. CODINA 
Armando M. Codina 

FREDERIC V. MALEK 
Frederic V. Malek 

MARSHALL M. CRISER 
Marshall M. Criser 

PAUL R. TREGURTHA 
Paul R. Tregurtha 

B. F. Dolan 
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FLORIDA POWER a LIGHT COMPANY SIGNATURES 

Pursuant to the requirements of Section 13 or 15(d) of the Securities Exchange Act of 1934, the registrant has duly caused 
this report to be signed on its behalf by the undersigned, thereunto duly authorized. 

Florida Power 8 Light Company 

PAUL J. EVANSON 
Paul J. Evanson 

President and Director 

Date: February 28, 2000 

Pursuant to the requirements of the Securities Exchange Act of 1934, this report has been signed below by the following 
persons on behalf of the registrant and in the capacities and on the date indicated. 

Signature and Title as of February 28, 2000: 

JAMES L. BROADHEAD 
James L. Broadhead 
Chairman of the Board 
(Principal Executive Officer and Director) 

LEWIS HAY, 111 
Lewis Hav. 111 .. ~~ 

Senior Vice President. Finance and Chief Financial Officer 
(Principal Financial Officer and Director) 

K. MICHAEL DAVIS 
K. Michael Davis 
Vice President, Accounting, 
Controller and Chief Accounting Officer 
(Principal Accounting Officer) 

Directors: 

DENNIS P. COYLE THOMAS F. PLUNKETT 
Dennis P. Coyle Thomas F. Plunkett 

LAWRENCE J. KELLEHER 
Lawrence J. Kelleher 

ANTONIO RODRIGUEZ 
Antonio Rodriguez 

ARMAND0 J. OLIVERA 
Armando J. Olivera 



EXHIBIT 12(a) 

FPL GROUP, INC. AND SUBSIDIARIES 
COMPUTATION OF RATIO OF EARNINGS TO FIXED CHARGES 

Earnings, as defined: 
Net income ............................................ I 697 I 664 I 618 $ 579 I 553 
Income taxer .......................................... 323 279 304 294 329 
Fixed charges. included i n  the  determination of 

net  income, as below ......... 234 335 304 283 308 
Dis t r i bu ted  income of independent power investments . . . .  75 68 47 38 39 

investments ............................ s o 2 1 4 5 6  
Tota l  earnings, as def ined . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .  L L ? = a w u L L @ & L & L 3  

Less: Equi ty i n  earnings o f  independent power 

Fixed charges, as defined: 
I n t e r e s t  charges ...................................... $ 222 5 322 I 291 I 267 I 291 
Rental i n t e r e s t  factor ....................... 4 4 4 5 6 
Fixed charges inc luded i n  nuclear fuel cost . . . . . . . . . . .  9 9 11 
Fixed charges, included i n  the  determination of net 

Cap i ta l i zed  i m e r e s t  
income ..................................... 234 335 304 283 308 

... . . .  9 2 4 _ _ _ _ ~ _ _ _ _  

Tota l  f i x e d  charges. as def ined . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .  u ' u 1 z - L & s L l a s  

Ratio o f  earnings t o  f i x e d  charges ......... 1 3 6 2 = & 3 _ 4 9 9 _ e r a _ t S z  



EXHIBIT i2(b) 

FLORIDA POWER 8 LIGHT COMPANY 
COMPUTATION OF RATIOS 

~ 

RATIO OF EARNINGS TO FIXED CHARGES 

Earnings, a5 def ined: 
Net 7ncOme . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .  
Income taxes . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .  
Fixed charges. as below ....................................... 

Tota l  earnings. as def ined 

Fixed charges, as def ined: 
I n t e r e s t  charges . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .  
Rental i n t e r e s t  f a c t o r  ........................................ 
Fixed charges inc luded i n  nuclear fue l  cost  . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .  

Tota l  f i x e d  charges. as defined 

Rat io  of earnings t o  f i xed  charges 

Years Ended December 31. 1998 1997 1996 
( M l l l i o n s D O l l a r s )  

I 631 
349 

209 
u1189 

I 196 
4 
9 - 
3 

I 627 
321 

240 

u 
I 227 

4 
9 
Lu 
M 

RATIO OF EARNINGS TO COMBINED FIXED CHARGES AND PREFERRED STOCK DIVIDENDS 

Earnings, as def ined: 
Net lnCome . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .  
Income taxes .......................... 
Fixed charges, as below .......................... 

Tota l  earnings. as def ined 

Fixed charges. as def ined: 
I n t e r e s t  charges ...................................... 
Rental i n t e r e s t  f . . . . . . . . .  
Fixed charges inc luded i n  nuclear f u e l  Cost . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .  

Tota l  f i x e d  charges, as defined 

NOn-tax deduct ib le  p re fe r red  stock dividends .................... 
Rat io  o f  income before income taxes t o  n e t  income . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .  
Preferred stock div idends before income taxes 

combined f i x e d  charges and p re fe r red  stock dividends 

Rat io  of earnings t o  combined f i xed  charges 
and pre fer red  stack div idends . . . . . . . . . . .  

I 591 
324 

174 
1l989 

I 163 
3 

8 
174 

3 

23 
L_19z 

3 

15 

I 631 
349 

209 

u-189 

$ 196 
4 
9 
209 

1.55 
23 

15 

2 

I 627 
321 

240 

211188 

I 227 
4 
9 
240 

19 
1.51 
29 
L252 

492 

$ 615 
322 

262 

u 
I 246 

5 
11 
L a 2  

I 615 
322 

262 

u-199 

$ 246 
5 

11 
262 

1.52 
36 
L298 

3 

24 

1995 

I 611 
342 

286 
L a 2  

I 270 
5 

2 

11286 
3 

I 611 
342 

286 

LLLB 

$ 270 
5 

11 
286 

43 
1.56 
68 
L i s 3  



EXHIBIT 21 

SUBSIDIARIES OF FPL GROUP, INC. 

state  or  ~ u r i s d i c t i o n  
a b s i d i a r v  O f  InCorooratlo" 

1 .  F lor ida  Power & Light Company (lOG?-wvned) ............................................. Flor ida 

2. say ~ o a n  and Investment sank (a) ....................................................... nhode Is land 

3.  palms ~nsurance company, Limited (a) ................................................... 
(a) 

cayman Islands 

lOO%-wned subsidiary of FPL Gmup Capital Inc 

EXHIBIT 23 

INDEPENDENT AUDITORS CONSENT 

We consent to the incorporation by reference in Registration Statement No. 33-56869 on Form 5-3; Registration Statement 
No. 33-57673 on Form S-8; Post-Effedive Amendment No. 2 to Registration Statement No. 33-31487 on Form S-8; Post- 
Effective Amendment No. 2 to Registration Statement No. 33-33215 on Form S-8; Registration Statement No. 33-1 1631 on 
Form S-8; Post-Effective Amendment No. 1 to Registration Statement No. 33-39306 on Form S-3; Registration Statement 
No. 33-57470 on Form S-3; Post-Effective Amendment No. 6 to Registration Statement No. 33-18669 on Form S-8; 
Registration Statement No. 333-27079 on Form S-8; Registration Statement No. 333-30695 on Form S-8; Registration 
Statement No. 333-30697 on Form S-8; Registration Statement No. 333-87869 on Form S-8; Registration Statement No. 333- 
87941 on Form S-3; Registration Statement No. 333-88067 on Form S-8 and Post-Effective Amendment No. 1 to Registration 
Statement No. 333-79305 on Form S-8 of FPL Group, Inc.. of our report dated February 11. 2000 appearing in this Annual 
Report on Form 10-K of FPL Group, Inc. for the year ended December 31,1999. 

We a h  consent to the incorporation by reference in Registration Statement No. 33-40123 on Form S-3: Post-Effective 
Amendment No. 1 to Registration Statement No. 3346076 on Form S-3; Registration Statement No. 333-53053 on Form S-3 
and Registration Statement No. 333-84005 of Florida Power 8 Light Company, of our report dated February 11, 2000 
appearing in this Annual Report on Form 10-K of Florida Power 8 Light Company for the year ended December 31,1999. 

We also consent to the incorporation by reference on Form 5-3: Registration Statement No. 333-87941-01 on Form S-3 of 
FPL Group Capital Inc, of our report dated February 11, 2000 appearing in this Annual Report on Form 10-K of FPL Group, 
Inc.. for the year ended December 31,1999. 

DELOITTE 8 TOUCHE LLP 

Miami, Florida 
March 1,2000 
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UNITED STATES SECURITIES AND EXCHANGE COMMISSION 

Washington, D. C. 20549 

FORM 8-K 

CURRENT REPORT 

PURSUANT TO SECTION 13 OR 15(d) 

OF THE SECURITIES EXCHANGE ACT OF 1934 

Date of earliest event reported: March 16,1999 

Exact name o f  Registrants as specified i n  the i r  
charters, addresses of privci a1 executive 
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FPL GROUP, INC. 
FLORIDA POWER 8 LIGHT COMPANY 

700 Universe Boulevard 
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W Item 5. Other Events W 

Reference is made to Item 1. Business - FPL Operations - Retail Ratemaking and Item 7. Management's Discussion and 
Analysis of Financial Condaion and Results of Operations - Results of Operations in the 1998 Form 10-K for FPC Group. Inc. 
and Florida Power 8 Light Company (FPL). 

On March 16. 1999. the Florida Public Service Commission (FPSC) approved an agreement between FPL, the State of 
Florida's Office of Public Counsel (Public Counsel), The Florida Industrial Power Users Group (FIPUG) and The CoaUtion for 
Equitable Rates (Coalition) regarding FPL's retail base rates, authorized regulatoty retum on equity (ROE), capital m d u r e  
and other matters. As a result of the approval of this agreement. all matters raised in Public Counsel's petition to me FPSC to 
conduct a full rate proceeding are resolved. The agreement has a threeyear term, beginning thirty days following me date of 
FPSC approval. 

The agreement provides for a $350 million reduction in annual retail base rate revenues allocated to all customers on a c8nts- 
per-kilowatt-hour basis. Additionally, the agreement sets forth a revenue sharing mechanism for each of the thm yean 
covered by the agreement, whereby retail base rate revenues in excess of a stated threshold will be shared with customem 
on the basis of two-thirds refunded to customers and onethird retained by FPL. Retail base rate revenues in exmsa of a 
second threshold will be refunded 100% to customers. 

The thresholds for the three years are as follows: 

First Second mini 
Twelve Twelve Twelve 
MonthJ MonthJ Months 

(Millions of Dollars) 

Threshold to refund 66 2/3% to customers $3.400 $3.450 $3.500 
Threshold to refund 100% to customers $3,556 $3.606 $3,656 

In addaion to the revenue reductions, the agreement lowers FPCs authorized ROE range to 10% to 12% (down from the 
cunent 11% to 13%). During the term of the agreement, the achieved ROE may. f" time to time. be outside the authotized 
range and the sharing mechanism dewibed above is intended to be the appropriate and exclusive mechanism to address 
that circumstance. The agreement establishes a cap on FPL's adjusted equlty ratio of 55.83%. The adjusted WIIitY ratio 
reflects a discounted amount for off-balance sheet obligations under certain long-term purchase power contracts. The 
agreement also indudes an allowance for special depreciation of up to $100 million at FPCs discretion, in each year of the 
three-year agreement period to be applied to nudear end fossil generating assets. The current special amoltization Program 
will be terminated when the new agreement becomes effective. Finally, induded in the agreement are provisions which limit 
depreciation rates and accruals for nudear decommissioning and fossil dismantlement costs to currently approved I d 5  and 
limit amounts recoverable under the environmental cost recovery clause during the three-year term of the ag"?t. 

The agreement states that Public Counsel. FIPUG and Coalition will neither seek nor suppolt any additional base rate 
reductions during the three-year term of the agreement unless such reduction is initiated by FPL. Further. FPL agreed to not 
petition for any base rate increases that would take effect during the three-year term of the agreement. 

SIGNATURES 

Pmuant to the requirements of the Securities Exchange A d  of 1934, the registrants have duly caused this re@ to be .iened On 
their behalf by the undersigned thereunto duly authorized. 

FPL Group, Inc 
florida Power & Light Company 

(Registrants) 

Date: March 17, 1999 K. MICHAEL DAVIS 
K. Michael Davis 

Controller and Chief Accounting Officer of FPL Group, Inc. 
Vice President, Accounting. Controller and 

Chief Accounting Officer of Florida Power 8 Light Company 





Conmission 
F i l e  Numb= 

1-3545 

UNITED STATES SECURITIES AND EXCHANGE COMMISSION 

Washington, D. C. 20549 

FORM 8-K 

CURRENT REPORT 
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OF THE SECURITIES EXCHANGE ACT OF 1934 
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700 Universe Boulevard 
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Item 5. Other Events 

Following is summarized financial information for Florida Power 8 Light Company: 

Three months ended March 31. 

(in millions) 
1990 

Operating revenues $1,359 $1,295 
Net income $108 $1 07 
Net income available to FPL Group, Inc. $1 04 $103 

- 1999 

SIGNATURES 

Pursuant to the requirements of the Securities Exchange Act of 1934, the registrant has duly caused this report to be signed on 
its behalf by the undersigned thereunto duly authorized. 

Florida Power 8 Light Company 
(Registrant) 

Date: April 16, 1999 K. MICHAEL DAVIS 
K. Michael Davis 

Vice President, Accounting. Controller and 
Chief Accounting Officer of Florida Power 8 Light Company 
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Florida Power 8 Light Company 
and Subsidiaries 

Consolidated Statement of Capitalization 
Millions of Dollars 

Common Stock (No par value) 
Retained Earnings and other shareholdefs equity 

Total Common Shareholder's Equity 

Preferred Stock without sinking fund requirements 

Long-Term Debt (1) 

Total Capitalization 

Short Term Borrowing 

As of 
December 31, 1999 

$ 1,373 
3,420 

4,793 

226 

2,079 

$ 7,098 

$ 94 

(1) Excludes current maturities 





Florida Power 8 Light Company 
and Subsidiaries 

Computation of Ratio of Earnings to Fixed Charges 
Millions of Dollars 

Twelve Months Ended 
December 31, 1999 

Earnings, as Defined: 
Net Income 
Income Taxes 
Fixed Charges, as below 

Total Earnings, as Defined 

Fixed Charges, as Defined: 
Interest Charges 
Rental Interest Factor 
Fixed Charges included in nuclear fuel cost 

Total Fixed Charges, as Defined 

$ 591 
324 
174 

$ 1,089 

$ 163 
3 
8 

Ratio of Earnings to Fixed Charges 





n 



3. Within om hour afta the Pricing Time, Ncw York time, FPL aeccpt at its option the proposal 
that providcs it with the low& effedivc in- & M may rejsCt all proposals. Tho effective in- cost will be 
dacnined 81 wt forth in the Lc&er. This proposal shall bo deemed mjcded by FPL if it shall not hove becn Pcccpcod 
by FPL OM hour afkr the Pricing Time, New York time, and FPL reserves the right in itll role discretion to reject any 
and dl propopsb. 

In caw two or mom popoaplr provide the identical effMh'e in- eOq FPL (unleu it 
rejects all p m s )  will give ths bidders of such identical proporalr an oppMtunity to impmve UMu proposals. If no 
impoved plopoaals shall bo made by such bidden withiin the time sp&ificd by FPL, or if upon the submission of such 
revised propowlr, two 01 mom of such pmposplr provide FPL with the identical lowat efWive intacrt cost, FPL may 
acccp my one of such identical proposalc at its d d o n .  FPL -es the right in its role diranion to reject any and 
all pmpossls. 

4. l lw validity and intuprctntion of this proposal shall be govemed by the laws of the Statc of New 
YON. 

5. Each of the Prospcaive PurchaKn acknowledges receipt of a copy of the Letter. the Form of 
Prospectus Supplement (dnR of A N 3  1999). the Form of Pmppecbu ( d d t  of A p r i l 2  1999). the Underwriting 
Agrwnml, FPL's Current Repon on Form 8-K, filed with the Securities and @xchnngc Commission April 16,1999, 
and the Prospective Purcharn's QUCS~~OM~~R. 

6. The undasigncd statc t h q  if this proposal is acccpbed, the ex- initial offering price to the 
publii ofthe First Mortgage Bonds shall not exceed the purchase price to be paid to FPL pursuant to ppngrpph 1 above 
(excluding aarued interat) plus a/. of the principal amount of such First Mortgage Bonds. 

7. The delivery of the First Mortgage Bo& and payment therefor will be made at 900 a.m., Ncw 
York timc, on April& 1999, at the officw of nKim Reid & Priest UP, 40 West 57th S b a f  New York, New York 
10019 or at such other time and place as may be agreed upon by FPL and the Prospective Purchasers. 

very truly yours, 
FM Themselves and as RepruentatjVe(S) 

This proposal for the purchase of $225 million principal amount ofFirst Mortgage Bonds is accepted as of the date wt 
forth below: 

FLORIDA POWER & LIGHT COMPANY 

By: 
Dilek S m i l  

Thia Form of Propossl mult be aomplcted, signed and submitted with the attached Schedule A compktcd. A copy of 
tho RWWth'C Fhurcher's Questionruim, llctsohcd hemto 8s Exhibit A, muct bo pmvided to FPL do Thclen Reid & 
P k t  LLP by each Prospective Purchez at k.pc one-half hour before he Pricing Time. 
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EXHIBIT A 

FLORIDA POWER & LIGHT COMPANY 

PROSPECTIVE PURCHASER'S QUESTIONNAIRE 

(To be delivered in triplicate one-half hour before the Pricing Time, 
New York time, on the day of submission of proposals) 

Florida Power & Light Company 
do Thelen Reid & Priest LLP 
40 West 57h Street 
New York, New York 10019 

Attention: Mr. Robert J. Reger, Jr. 

Dear Mr. Reger: 

In connection with the proposed offering of First Mortgage Bonds of Florida Power & 
Light Company CFPL"), and for use in a Prospectus Supplement relating to the First 
Mortgage Bonds to be purchased by us, the undersigned, as a prospective purchaser, 
furnishes the following information: 

Our name, as it should appear in the Prospectus Supplement relating to the First 
Mortgage Bonds to be purchased by us, and our address are as follows: 

The undersigned is a (check one): corporation e 
partnership 0 

The representative or representatives (the "Representative") authorized to act on our 
behalf in all matters relating to the purchase and offering of the First Mortgage Bonds, 
including authority to execute a proposal for the First Mortgage Bonds, is as follows: 

or, if no proposal is made by the Representative acting on our behalf, such other person 
or persons as represent that it or they have been authorized by us to act as 
Representative on our behalf. 

Except as indicated below, (a) we propose to make a public offering of the First 
Mortgage Bonds purchased by us: (b) neither FPL nor its parent, FPL Group, Inc., has, 
or has had during the preceding twelve calendar months, as an officer or director any 



officer, director, partner, appointee or representative (including a designated 
representative) of ours or of any corporation a majority of the voting stock of which is 
owned by us and neither we nor any of our directors, officers or partners have any other 
material relationship with FPL; (c) other than as stated in. or to be determined pursuant 
to the agreement among underwriters, the selling group agreement (if any) or any similar 
agreement or agreements, and as you may be advised with respect thereto by the 
Representative, we do not know of any arrangements for stabilizing or otherwise 
artificially affecting the market for the First Mortgage Bonds to be purchased by us, or of 
any discounts or commissions to be allowed or paid to dealers in connection with the 
public offering or distribution of the First Mortgage Bonds to be purchased by us; (d) we 
are not an affiliate, as defined under the Trust Indenture Act of 1939, as amended, of 
Bankers Trust Company, and neither of said corporation nor any of its directors or 
executive officers is a director, officer. partner, employee, appointee or representative of 
ours; (e) we (if a corporation) do not have outstanding nor have we assumed or 
guaranteed any securities issued otherwise than in our present corporate name; (9 we 
are not a "holding company". a 'subsidiary company" of a 'holding company" or an 
"affiliate" of a 'public-utility company" or of a "holding company^, each as defined in the 
Public Utility Holding Company Act of 1935; (9) our commitment to purchase the First 
Mortgage Bonds will not result in a violation of the financial responsibility requirements of 
Rule 15c3-1 under the Securities Exchange Act of 1934; (h) we will not submit or 
participate, directly or through any affiliate, in more than one proposal for the purchase 
of the First Mortgage Bonds; and (i) we have not prepared any report or memorandum 
for external use in connection with the proposed offering. 

(State exceptions, if any) 

We will notify you promptly in the event of any development before the date of the 
Prospectus Supplement relating to the First Mortgage Bonds to be purchased by us, 
which makes untrue or incomplete any of the above statements as of such date. We 
agree to comply with such prospectus delivery requirements of rule 15c2-8 under the 
Securities Exchange Act of 1934 as may be applicable to us, to make a record of any 
distribution by us of any information with respect to the First Mortgage Bonds and, to the 
extent required by the Securities and Exchange Commission, to bring all subsequent 
changes and amendments to the attention of any person to whom such information is 
given. 

Very truly yours, 

or Partnership 

WL#? 
Officer or Partner ' 



EXHIBIT A 

FLORIDA POWER & LIGHT COMPANY 

PROSPECTM PURCHASER’S QUE8TlO”AlRE 

(To be ddivered in triplicate one-half hour before the Pricing Time, 
New York time, on the day of submission of proposals) 

FbMa Power & UgM Company 
d o  Thekn Reid & P r i d  LLP 
40 West 5p sttdct 
New Yorlc, New York 10019 

Attention: Mr. Robert .I. Reger, Jr. 

Dear Mr. Reger: 

In connection with the proposed offering of First Mortgage Bonds of Florida Power & 
WgM Company (“FPL“), and for use in a Prospedus Supplement reiatlng to the Flnt 
Mortgage Bonds to be purchased by us, the undmlgnd. as a prospective purchaser, 
furnishes the following information: 

Our name, as it should appear in the Prospectus Supplement relating to the First 
Mortgage Bonds to be purchased by us. and our address are as follows: 

The undersigned is a (check one): corporation 
partnership 0 

The representative or representatives (the ’Representative”) authorized to act on our 
behatf in all matters relating to the purchaae and offering of the First Mortgage Bonda, 
including authority to execute a proposal for the First Mortgage Bonds. is 86 follows: 

b & b a ~ W - d q  d - w p u J &  

or, if no proposal is made by the Representative acting on our behalf, such other person 
or persons as represent that it or they have teen authorized by us to act a6 
Representative on our behatf. 

Except as indicated below, (a) we propose to make a public offering of the Fir& 
Mortgage Bonds purchased by ua; (b) neither FPL nor its parent, FPL Group, Inc., has, 
or has had during the preceding twelve calendar months, as an officer or director any 



FLORIDA POWER & LIGHT COMPANY 

First Mortgage Bonds 

Underwriting Agreement 

April 20.1999 

AGREEMENT between FLORIDA POWER & LIGHT COMPANY, a Florida corporation ("FPL"), and the 
several Underwriters, or the Underwriter, as the case may be, named in Schedule A to the Form of FTopoaI (the 
"Proposal") to which this underwriting agreement is attached (the underwriting a p m e n t .  together with the 
Proposal. are referred to jointly herein as "this agreement' or the "Underwriting Agreeme") relating to the 
issuance and sale by FPL of its First Mortgage Bonds of the series designation. with the term and in the principal 
amount as set folth in this agreemen (the "BoMls"). 

The term "Underwriters" as used herein shall be deemed to mean the firm or corporation or the several 
fm or corporatiom named in Schedule A to the Ropwal and any underwriter substiNtcd as provided in Seaion 
4 hereof and the term "Underwriter" shall he deemed to mean one of such Underwriters. The term 
"Representatives." as used herein, shall be deemed to mean the representative or represCnratives, if any, named in 
the questionnaire beretofore submitted to FPL by each of the Underwriters, who by signing the Proposal rep" 
that it or they have been authorized by each Underwriter to sign such Proposal and enter into this agreement on 
behalf of such Underwriter and to act for it in the " e r  herein provided. AU obligations of the Underwriters 
hereunder are several and not joint. If more than one firm is named in Schedule A to the Proposal, any action 
under or in respect of this agreement may he taken by such f m  jointly as the Representatives or by ow of the 
firms acting on behalf of the Representatives and such action will be binding upon all the Underwriters. 

The Bonds will be a series of Fust Mortgage Bonds ("First Mortgage Bonds") issued by FPL under its 
Mortgage and Deed of Trust, dated as of January 1, 1944, to Bankers Trust Company, as Trustee (the "Mortgage 
Trustee"), and The Florida National Bank of Jacksonville (now resigned), as heretofore supplemented and as it 
will be further supplemented by a supplemental indenture relating to the Bonds ("Supplemental Indentnre") in 
substantially the form heretofore delivered to the Representatives. Such Mortgage and Deed of Trust as it has 
been and will be so supplemented is hereinafter called the "Mortgage". 

FPL has fded with the Securities and Exchange Commission (the "Commission") a registration statement 
on Form S-3, including a prospectus ("registration statement No. 33-61390"). for the regisration of 
$1,220,300,000 aggregate principal amount of its First Mortgage Bonds under the Securities Act of 1933, as 
amended (the "Securities Act"), which registration statement has heen declared effective by the CommisSiOn. 
FPL also fded with the Cornmission a regisaation statement on Form S-3, including a p r o s p e c h l s  ("re@ation 
statement No. 333-53053") for the registration of $21O,ooO,ooO of its Fust Mortgage Bonds, which registration 
statement has been declared effective by the Commission. All but $9O,ooO,ooO principal amount of First 
Mortgage Bonds registered with the Commission under the Securities Act pursuant to registration staremem No. 
33-61390, as amended, have been previously issued. References herein to the term "Registration Statement" as of 
any given date shall mean registration statement No. 333-53053 and registration statement No. 33-61390, each as 
amended or supplemented to such date, including all documents incorporated by reference therein as of such date 
pursuant to Item 12 of Form S-3 ("1ncoq"ed Documents'). References herein to the term "Prwpcctus" as 
of any given date shall mean the prospectus forming a part of registration statement NO. 333-53053, as 
supplemented by a prospectus supplement relaring to the Bonds proposed to be filed purSUaUt to Rule 424 of the 
general rules and regulations under the Securities Act ("Rule 424"), and as further amended or supplemented as of 
such date (other than amendments or supplements relating to First Mortgage Bonds other than the Bonds or, when 
referring to the Prospectus relating to a particular offering of the Bonds, Bonds other than the Bonds being offered 
on such date), including all Incorporated Documents. References herein to the term "Effective Date" shall be 
deemed to refer to the later of the time and date that registration statement No. 333-53053 was declared effective 



and of the fcmg of FPL's most ~eCCnt Annual Repon on Form IO-K if such Wig is made prior to the Closing 
Date (as hercaftrr defined). Prior to the termioatiW of the offering of the Bonds. FPL will not file any 
amendment to the Registration Statement or any amendment Or SUppk"t to the Prospectus without prior nMia 
to the Reprcsentatives and to Winthrop. Stimson, Pumam & Robens, who am acting as counsel on behalf of the 
several Underwriters ("Counsel for the.Underwritm"). or any such amendment or supplement to which the 
Reprrsentatives shall reasonably object in writing, or which shall be unsatisfactory to Counsel for the 
UndelWIiterS. 

SECTION 1. Representations and Warranties of FPL. FPL represents and warrants to the smral 
UndenVriterS that: 

(a) The RegiSaation Statement at the Effective Date fully complied, and the prospeaua 
both on the date it is filed with, or transmitted for filing to, the CommisSiOn pursuant to Rule 424 (& 
datc, the "424 Date") and at the Closing Date (as hereinafter defined). and the Registration Statement and 
the Mortgage at the Closing Date, will fully comply, in all material respccts with the applicable provisions 
of the Securities Act and the Trust Indenture Act of 1939, as amended (the " 1939 Act"), as applicable awl. 
in each case, the applicable instructions, rules and regulations of the Commission with res- thcmo: at 
the Effective Date. the Registration Statement did not, and at the Closing Date, the Registration Statcmnt 
will not, contain an untrue statement of a material fact, or omit to state a material fact required to be stated 
therein or necessary to make the statements therein not misleading; the Prospectus, at the 424 Date and at 
the Closing Date, will not include an untrue statement of a material fact or omit to state a material fact 
naessary in order to make the statements contained thenin, in the light of the cinvmstances uudcr which 
they were made, not misleading; and the Incorporated Documents, when filed with the Commission. fuUy 
complied or will fully comply in all material rcspects with the applicable provisions of the Saraities 
Exchange Act of 1934. as amended (the "Exchange Act"), and the applicable iosrmaionS, ruler and 
regulations of the Commission thereunder; provided, that the foregoing representations and warrandes in 
this subsection (a) shall not apply to statements or omissions made in r e l i  upon and in conformity with 
i n f m o n  furnished in writing to FPL by or on behalf of any Underwriter for use in conuection with the 
preparation of the Registration Statement or the Prospectus, or to any statements in or omissions from any 
Statement of Eligibility and Qualification on Form T-1, or amendments thereto, of the Mortgage Tnuta. 

@) "he f m c i a l  statements included as part of or incorporated by ref- in the 
Prospectus present fairly the finaocial condition and operations of FPL at the respective dates or for the 
respective periods to which they apply; such financial statements have been prepared in each case in 
accordance with generally accepted accounting principles consistently applied throughout the periods 
involved except as otherwise indicated in the Registration Statement; and Deloine & Touche Up, who 
have audited the audited finaocial statements, am independeat public accountauts as requkcd by the 
Securities Act and the Exchange Act and the rules and regulations of the Commission thereunder. 

(C) Except as reflected in or contemplated by the Registration Statement and the F'mpemn, 
since the respective most recent dates as of which information is given in the Registration Statemmt and 
prospecnu. there has not been any material adverse change in the buskss. properties or fharckl 
condition of FPL nor has any material transaction been entered into by FPL other than changes and 
transactions contemplated by the Registration Statement and Prospectus, and transactions in the ordinvy 
course of business. FPL has no material contingent obligation which is not disclosed in the Registratioa 
Statement and Prospectus. 

(d) The consummation of the traasactions herein contemplated and the fulfill" of the 
terms hereof on the part of FPL to be fulfilled have been duly authorized by all necessary corporate action 
of FPL in accordance with the provisions of its Restated Articles of Incorporation, as amcndcQ (the 
"Charter"), by-laws and applicable law, and the Bonds when issued and delivered as provided herein will 
constitute legal, valid and binding obligations of FPL in accordance with their terms, except as limited by 
bankmptcy, insolveucy or other laws affecting mortgagees' and other creditors' rights gemally and 
equitable limitations on the enforceability of specific remedies. 
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(e) Tbe wnsummatim of the mausactim herein contemplated and the fulftllmnn of the 
terms hereof and the compliaw by FPL with all the trims and provisions of the Mortgage will not mulr 
in a breach of any of the terms or provisions of, or consfitute a default under, FPL's Charter, by-lam or 
any indennur, mortgage. deed of trust or other agreement or instrument to which FPL is now a party, or 
violate any law or any order, de .  decree or regulation applicable to FPL of any Federal or state COM, 
regulatory board or body or administrative agency having jurisdiction over FPL or any of its propaty. 
except where such breach, default or violation would not have a material adverse effect on the b u s i i .  
properties or financial condition of FPL. 

(0 All the property to be subjected to the lien of the Mortgage will be adequately desaibcd 
therein. 

SECTION 2. purchase and Sale. On the basis of the rcpresentationr and warranties herein COntpiDcd 
and subject to the terms and conditions in this agree" set forh, FPL a m  to sell to the rrspmive 
Underwriters named in Schedule A to the Proposal, severally and riot jointly. and the rrspcctive Undawriten 
agree, severally and not jointly. to purchase from FPL, the respective principal amounts of Bonds sct forth 
opposite their respective names in Schedule A to the Proposal at the purchase price set forth in the Proposll. 

SECTION 3. Public Offering. The Underwriters propose to make a bona fide public off- of tk 
Bonds as set forth in the prosPeCnur, such public offering to be made as so00 after the execution of this agrrcmnt 
as practicable, subject, however, to the terms and conditions of this agrecmcnt. 

SECTION4. Time and Place of Closing, Default of Underwriter. Delivery of the Bandr ad 
payment therefor by certified or official bank check or checks, payable to the order of FPL in New York cluring 
House or similar next day funds or by win transfer in federal funds (or in such other manner as may be sct forh 
in the Proposal). shall be made at the time, date and place set forth in the Proposal, or at such other time. dam or 
place as shall be agreed upon in writing by FPL and the Representatives. The hour and date of such delivery ad 
payment arc herein called the "Closing Date". 

The Bonds shall be delivered to the Representatives for the m&ve accounts of the Underwmar ' i n  
fully registered form in such authorized denominations and registered in such names as the Represematives may 
reasonably request in writing not later than 1230 p.m., New York City time, on the third business day prior to 
the Closing Date, or to the extent not so requested, registered in the names of the respective Underwriters in such 
authorized denominatiOnS as FPL shall determine. For the purpose of expediting the checking of the Bonds by tk 
Representatives on behalf of the Underwriters, FPL agrees to make such Bonds available to the Rep- 
for such purpose at the office of Thelen Reid & Priest LLP, 40 West 57th Street, New York, New York 10019 
not later than 2:M) p.m., New York City time, on the business day preceding the Closing Date, or at such otha 
time and place as may be agrecd upon by FPL and the Representatives. 

If any Underwriter shall fail to purchase and pay for the princiial amount of the Bonds which swh 
Underwriter has a p e d  to purchase and pay for hereunder (othenvk than by reason of any failure on the p t  of 
FPL to comply with any of the provisions contained herein), the non-defaulting Underwriters shall be obligated to 
take up and pay for ( i  addition tn the respective principal amount of the Bonds set forth opposite their rcspdvc 
names in Schedule A to the Proposal) the principal amount of the Bonds which such defaulting Undcrwrim or 
Underwriters failed to take up and pay for, up to a principal amount thereof equal to, in the case of each SUJl 
remaining Underwriter, ten percent (10%) of the principal amount of the Bonds set forth opposite the name of 
such remaining Underwriter in said Schedule A to the Proposal, and such remaining Underwriters shall have tk 
right, within 24 hours of receipt of such notice, either to take up and pay for (m such proportion as m y  be agreed 
upon among them), or to substitute another Underwriter or Underwriters, satisfactory to FPL, to take up a d  pay 
for, the remaining principal amount of the Bonds which the defaulting Underwriter or Underwriters a& but 
failed to purchase. If any unpurchaxd Bonds still remain, then FPL shall be entitled to a funher pcnd of 24 
hours within which to procure another party or other parties, members of the National Association of sennitks 
Dealers, Inc. (or. if not members of such Association, who are not eligible for membership in said Association 
and who a g m  (i) to make no sales within the United States, its temtnrics or its possessions or to persons Who M 
citizens thereof or residents therein and (ii) in making sales to comply with said Association's Conduct RUlCS) and 
sarisfactory to the Representatives to purchase such Bonds on the terms set forth in this agmment. In thc CVeDt 
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that, within the respective prescribed periods. the non-defaulting Underwriten notify FPL that they have a"@ 
for the purchase of such Bonds, or FPL notifies the nondefaultiug Underwriters that it has arranged for the 
purchase of such Bonds, the non-defaulhg Underwriters or FPL shall have the right to postpone the Closing Date 
for a period of not more than thm full business days beyond the expiration of the rrSpative prescribed prriods in 
oder  to effect whatever changes may thus be made necessary in the Registration Statement or the Rospenus or in 
any other documents or arrangements. In the event that neither the non-defaulting Underwriters nor FPL har 
-ged for the purchase of such Bonds by another party or patties as above provided, then this agrcemm shall 
terminate without any liability on the part of FPL or any Underwriter (other than an Underwriter which shall have 
failed or refused. otherwise than for some r e m  sufficient to justify, in accordance with the terms hf, thc 
Cancellation or termination of its obligations hemmder, to purchase and pay for the Bonds which such 
Underwriter has agreed to puKhase as provided in Section 2 hereof), except as otherwise provided in su- 
(c) and (e) of Section 5 hereof. 

SECTION 5. Covenanu of FPL. FPL agrees that: 

( 3  It will promptly transmit copies of the Prospectus to the Commission for filing pursuam 
to Rule 424. 

(b) It will deliver to the Representatives and to Counsel for the Underwriters ow si@ 
copy of the Registration Statement or, if a signed copy is not available, one conformed copy of the 
Registration Statement c d e d  by an officer of FPL to be in the form as originally filed, including all 
Incorporated Documuu~ and all exhibits except those incorporated by reference, which relate to the 
Bonds, including a signed or conformed copy of each consent and cenificate included therein or filed Y 
exhibit thereto. FPL will deliver to the Underwriters through the Representatives as soon as p&c&le 
aftn the date of this agreement as many copies of the Prospectus as the Representatives may reawn&@ 
rqucs for the purposes contemplated by the Securities Act. FPL will promptly advise thc 
Representatives of the issuance of any stop order under the Secnrities Act with respect to the R e g i s "  
Statement or the institution of any proceedings therefor of which FPL shall have received notice prior to 
the termination of the offering of the Bonds hereunder. FPL will use its best efforts to p m  the 
issuamx of any such stop order and to secw the prompt removal thereof, if issued. 

(C) It will pay all expenses in connection with (i) the preparation and fcing by it of the 
Registration Statement and F'rospectus, (ii) the issuance and delivery of the Bonds as provided in scaioll4 
hmof, (i) the preparation, execution, f h g  and recording of the Supplemental Indenture. and (iv) the 
printing and delivery to the Representatives for the account of the Underwriters. in reasonable quantib, 
of copies of the Registration Statement and the Prospectus and the Supplemental Indenture and will pay all 
taxes, if any (but not including any transfer taxes), on the issuance of the Bonds and the recordation of the 
Supplemental Iodauure. FPL shall not, however, be required to pay any amount for any expenses of the 
Representatives or any of the Underwriters, except as provided in Sections 6 and 7 hereof and excep that 
if h i 8  agreement shall be terminated in accordance with the provisions of Section 6. 7 or 9 hereof. FpL 
will pay the f e u  and disbursemems of Counscl for the Underwriters, whose fees and d i s b u r s e "  the 
Underwriters agnc to pay in any other went. FPL shall not in any event be liable to any of the sevmt 
Underwriters for damages on accounf of loss of anticipated profits. 

(4 During a period of nine months after the date of this agreement, if any event relating to 
or affecting FPL or of which FPL shall be advised in writing by the Representatives shall occur which, in 
FPL's opinion, should be set fonh in a supplement to or an amendment of the Prospectus in order to make 
the Prospectus not misleading in light of the circumstances whm it is delivered to a purchaser, FPL will 
forthwith at its expense prepare and furnish to the Representatives a reasonable number of copia of a 
supplement or supplements or an amendment or amendments to the Prospeclus which will supplement or 
amend the Prospectus so that as supplemented or amended it will not include any unme statement of a 
material fact or omit to state any material fact necessiuy in order to make the statements therein, in the 
light of the circumstances when the Prospectus is delivered to a purchaser, not misleading; provided that 
should such event relate solely to activities of any of the Underwriters, then the Underwriters shall assume 
the expense of preparing and furnishing copies of any such amendment or supplement. in case any 
Underwnter is required to deliver a Prospectus after the expiration of nine months after the date of this 
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a g r e e " ,  FPL upon the request of the Reprrsentadves will furnish to the Representatives, at the expmsc 
of such Underwriter, a reasonable quantity of a supplemented or amended ProJPectus or supple" or 
a " m t s  to the Prospecnu complying with Section 10 of the Securities Act. 

(e) It will furnish such proper infomation as may be lawfully required and othawiK 
coopcrate in qualifying the Bonds for offer and sale under the blue sky laws of such jurisdictiom as thc 
R ~ t i v c s  may designate and will pay tiling fees in the aggregate not exceeding $7.500, provided 
that FPL shall not be requued to qualify as a foreign cOrp0l;ltion or dealer in securities. or to file any 
consents to service of process under the laws of any jurisdiction. or to meet other requirements deemed by 
FPL to be unduly burdensome. 

(0 It will make generally available to its &ty holders, as soon as practicable. an 
earnings statement (which need not be audited, unless required SO to be under Section ll(a) of the 
Securities Act) in reasonable detail covering the 12 months beginning not latcr than the tirst day of the 
puurrr next s" . g the month in which occurmi the effective date of the Registration S l a f c "  as 
&tined in Rule 158 under the Securities Act. 

(a On or before the Closing Date., it will, if applicable, c a w  (i) at least one comerpart of 
the Supplemental Indenture to be duly recorded in the Statu of Florida or Georgia and (u) all intangible 
and documcnrary stamp faxes due in connection with the issuance of the Bonds and the recording of the 
Supplemental Indenture to be paid. Within 30 days foUowing the Closing Date, FPL will. if applicable. 
cause the Supplemental lndennue to be duly recorded in all other counties in which property of FPL is 
lout#l. 

SECnON 6. Conditions of Underwriters' Oblipations. The several obligations of the Underwriters 
to purchaJe and pay for the Bonds shall be subject to the accuracy of, and compliance with, the r- 
and warranties of FPL contained herein on the Closing Date, to the performance by FPL of its obligations to be 
performed h e m "  on or prior to the Closing Date and to the following conditions: 

(a) No stop order suspending the effectiveness of the Registration Statement shall be in 
effect on the Closing Date, no order of the Commission directed to the adequacy of any donrmmt 
incorporated by reference shall have been issued; no prcceedings for either such purpose shall be pending 
before, or threatened by. the Commission on such date: and the Representatives shall have received, prior 
to p a y "  for the Bonds, a certificate of FPL dated the Closing Date to the effect that. to the best of its 
howledge, no such order is in effect and no proceedings for such purpose are pending before, or to the 
howledge of FPL threatened by, the Commission. 

(a) On the Closing Date, there shall be in full force and effect an authorization of the 
Florida Public Service Commission with respect to the issuance and sale of the Bonds on the tenus herria 
stated or contemplated, and containing no provision unaacpfable to the Representatives by reason of the 
fact that it is materially adverse to FPL, it being understood that no authorization provided to C o d  for 
the Underwriters and in effect at the date of this agreement contains any such unacceptable provision. 

(C) At the Closing Date, the ReprrxntatiVes shall have received from Steel Hsun & Davis 
LLP. counsel to FPL. a favorable opinion (with a copy thereof for each of the Underwriters). which 
opinion will not pass upon compliance with provisions of the blue sky laws of any jurisdiction, in form 
ami substance satisfactory to Counsel for the Underwriters, to the effect that: 

(i) FPL is a validly organized and existing corporation and is in good standing 
under the laws of the State of Florida, and is doing business in that State, and has valid franchises, 
licenses and permits adeqnate for the conduct of its business; 

(ii) FPL is a corporation duly authorized by its Charter to conduct the b u s i i  
which it is MW conducting as set forth in the Prospectus; FPL is subject. as to retail rata and 
services, issuance of securities. accounting and cenaiu other matters, to the jurisdiction of the 
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Florida Public Service Commission; and FPL is subject, as to wholesale rates, accambg and 
certain other matten, to the jurisdiction of the Federal Energy Regulatory Commission; 

(iu) the Mortgage has been duly and validly authorized by all nccesspy corpornte 
action, has been duly and validly executed and delivered, aad is a valid and binding in”t 
enforceable in accordance with its terms, except as l i t e d  or a f f d  by bankruptcy, inso lwa~~.  
rmpanization. receivership. moratorium or other laws affecting mortgagees’ and otber crcdi&” 
righu and remedies generally and general principles of equity; 

(iv) the Bonds are valid and binding obligatim of FPL in accordance with their 
terms, except as t i t e d  or affected by bankruptcy, insOlvency. reorganization. w, 
moratokm or other laws affecting mortgagees’ and otlur creditors’ rights and remedies g e m d y -  
aad general principles of equity, and are entitled to the benefit of the security afforded by the 
Mortgage; 

(v) the Registration Statement, at the Effective Date, and the Prospc*us. at tbe 424 
Date (except as to the fiaaocial statements and other finaofial or statistical data COntaiDcd or 
incorporated by reference therein, upon which such opinion need Mt pass and except for those 
parts of the Registration Statement that constitute the Statement of Eligibility and Q” on 
Form T-I, upon which such opinion need not pass), complied as to form in al l  mafniai rrsp&rr 
with the applicable requirements of the Securifin Act and the applicable instructions, rules and 
regulations of the Commission thereunder and the Inwrporated Documents (except as to the 
f m a d i  statemem and other financiaI or statistical data contained or incorporated by refcrrocc 
therein, upon which such opinion need not pass), at the lime they were filed with the CommisSiOn, 
complied as to form in all material respects with the applicable reqnixements of the Exchange Act 
and the applicable insrmctions, rules and regulations of the Commission theretnxkr. The 
R e w o n  Statement has become, and is, at the Closing Date, effective under the S d t k  Act. 
and to the best of the knowledge of said counsel, no proceedings for a stop order with respect 
thereto a n  pending or threatened under Section 8 of the Securities Act; 

(vi) the consummation of the transactions herein contemplated and the NfiU” of 
the terms hereof and the compliance by FPL with all the term and provisions of the Mortgage will 
not result in a breach of any of the terms or provisions of, or ComtiMe a default under. the 
Charter or by-laws of FPL or any indentwe, mortgage, dad of trust or other agrremcat or 
insment the terms of which are known to such counsel to which FPL is now a party, except 
where such breach or default would not have a material adverse effect on the business, propcnieS 
or financial condition of FPL: 

(vii) nothing has come to the attention of said counsel that would lead them to klhve 
that the Registration Statement (except as to ftnaacial statements and other financial or statirtical 
data contained or incoprated by reference therein, upon which such opinion need not patr & 
except for those pans of the Registration Statement that constitUte the Statement of Eligibility ~IXI 
Qualificadon on Form T-1. upon which sueh opiaion need not pass), at the Effective Dstc. 
contaimd any untrue staummt of a material fact or omitted IO state a material fact requkcd to k 
stated therein or necessary to make the statements therein not misleading or that the prospCemr, at 
the 424 Date, and at the Closing Date (exccpt as aforrsaid) included or includes, any uatmc 
statement of a material fact or omitted or omits to state a material fact necessary in order to make 
the statements therein, in the light of the circumstances under which they were madc. not 
misleading, provided that such counsel may sfate that their belief is based upon their panieipatioll 
in the preparation of the Registration Statement and the Prospectus and any supplemcno and 
amendments thereto and review and discussion of the contents thereof. but is without iodcpmdmt 
check or verification except as specified; 

(viii) the Bonds are being issued and sold pursuant to the authority contained in ordcn 
of the Florida Public Service Commission, which authority is adequate to permit the i.5” and 
sale of the Bands. To the best of the knowledge of said counsel. said authorization is still in full 
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fora  and effect, and no funher approval, authorization, consent or order of any public board or 
body (other than in connection or in compliance with the provisions of the blue sky laws of any 
jurisdiction) is legally required for the authorization of the issoancc and sale of the Bonds, 

(i) the Bonds conform, as to legal matters, with the statements concerning them 
made under the headings "Description of New Bonds" and "Certain Terms of the Offered Bonds' 
in the Prospectus: 

(x) 

(xi) 

the Mortgage is duly qualified under the 1939 Act: 

this agreement has been duly and validly authorized, executed and delivered by 
FPL; 

(xii) if Bonds are to be sold pursuant to this a p e "  on the Closing Date, as to &e 
Mortgaged and Pledged Properly, as defined in the Mortgage. FF'L has satisfactov title to any 
easements and personal prolxrties. and good and marketable or insurable title in fee simple 10 any 
other real propertiu (except as FPL's interest is stated to be otherwise), subject only to Excepted 
Encumbrances, as defined in the Mortgage, to any lien, if any, existing or placed t h e r m  at the 
time of acquisition thereof by FF'L, to minor defects and encumbrances customarily found in the 
case of properties of like size and character and which. in the opinion of said counsel, would not 
impair the use thereof by FPL (aU of which title exceptions, encumbrances, liens and defects are 
hereinafter referred to as "Exc+ptions"). and to the lien of the Mortgage; the Mortgage consthues 
a valid, d m t ,  and f m  mortgage lien upon the Mortgaged and Pledged Property now o d  by 
FPL, subject, howem, to the Exceptions and as set f o d  in the last sentence of this paragraph; 
and the description of propetties in the Mortgage is adeqatc tn Constitute the Mortgage a lien on 
Mortgaged and Pledged Property hereafter acquired by FPL. subject, however, to the Excqxkm 
and except as limited by baakruptcy, insolvency or other laws affectbg mortgagees' and other 
crediton' rights generally and equitable litations on the enforceability of specific re&. Thc 
Supplemental Indenture is in proper form for recording in all p k  required; and upon such 
recording, the Supplemental Indenture will constitute adequate record notice to perfect the lien of 
the Mortgage as to all Mortgaged and Pledged Property acquire-d by FPL subsequent to the 
recording of the Ninery-eigbth Supplemental Indenture and prior to the recording of the 
Supplemental Indenture: 

(xiii) except as stated or referred to in the Prospectus, there are no material peading 
legal procndings to which FPL is a pany or of which property of FPL is the subject which if 
determined adversely would have a material adverse effect on FPL. and, to the best of the 
knowledge of said counsel, no such proceeding is known to be contemplated by g o v e m " a l  
authorities; and 

(xiv) the information contained in the Prospectus, which is stated therein to have been 
made in reliance upon the autAonty of said counsel or is specifically amibuted to them, has been 
reviewed by them and is correct. 

In said opinion such counsel may rely as to all matters of New York law on an opinion 
of Thelen Reid & Priest LLP and as to matters relating to Mortgaged and Pledged Property louted 
in the State of Georgia on (i) prior opinions provided to FPL on matters of Georgia law and (iu) a 
current opinion from Georgia counsel. 

(d) At the Closing Date, the Representatives shall have received from Thelen Reid & Priest 
LLP, counsel to FPL, a favorable opinion (with a copy thereof for each of the Underwriters), which 
opinion will not pass upon compliance with provisions of the blue sky laws of any jurisdiction, in form 
and substance satisfactory to Counsel for the Underwriters, to the same effect with respec1 to mattas 
enumerated in paragraphs (iii) through (xi) in subsection (c) of this Section 6. In said opinion such 
Counsel may rely as to all matters of Florida law on the opinion of Steel Hector & Davis LLP. 



(e) At the Closing Date, the Reprrsenratives shall have received from Counsel for the 
Underwriters a favorable opinion (with a copy thereof for each of the Underwriters) to the same effect 
with respect to the matters enumerated in ( i )  - (v) and (vii) - (xi) of subsection (c) of this Section 6 as the 
opinion required by said subsection (c). In said opinion such counsel may rely as to all matters of Florida 
law on the opinion of Steel Hector & Davis U, and will not pass upon the incorporation of FPL, titles 
to Property. - ’ or the lien of the Mortgage. 

(0 At the Closing Date, the Representatives shall have received from Deloitte & Touchc 
LLP a letter (with copiw thereof for each of the Underwriters) to the effect that (i) they are indcpmdmt 
public acunmtams with respeft to FPL within thc meaning of the Securities Act and the Exchange Act and 
the applicable p u b l i  rules and regulations thereu&r; (i) in their opinion. the consolidattd finrocial 
statements audited by them and incorporated by reference in the Prospectus comply as to form m all 
mated reJpca with the applicable ac”t ing rcqubmcnts of the Securities Act and the Exchange Act 
and the published rules and regulations themmdcr; (iii) on the basis of a reading of the ramiitnl 
condmsed consolidated financial statemenu of FPL incorporated by reference in the Rospecms. the latat 
available interim unaudited coasolidated haucial state- of FPL since the close of FPL‘s most ramu 
audited fiscal year, the minutes and consents of the Board of D-ors, the Finance Comminee of the 
Board of D m r s ,  the Stock Issuance Comminee of the Board of Direnors, and the Shareholder of FPL 
shce the end of the most recent audited t i s d  year, and inquiries of offcials of FPL who have 
responsibility for tinsrrial and acmting maum (it b t i g  understcod that the foregoing procedmu do 
not constitute an audit made in accordance with gemrally accepted auditing standards and they wonid not 
necessarily reveal manen of significance with respect to the comments made in such letter. and 
accordingly that Deloitte & Touche LLP maLC no q ” i o n  as to the sufficiency of such pro” 
for the several Underwriters’ purposes), nothing has come to their attention which caused them to believe 
that (a) the unaudited condensed consolidated financial statements of FPL incorporated by reference in thc 

requirements of the Securities Act and the Exchange Act and the published d e s  and regulations 
thereunder and (2) except as disclosed in the Rwpectus are not in conformity with generally acccpred 
accoUnting principles applied on a basis substantiaUy consistent with that of the audited consolidated 
financial statements of FPL incorporated by reference in the Prospectus, (b) at the date of the latest 
available interim balance sheet read by them and at a specified date not more than five days prior to the 
Closing Date there was any change in the common stock or additional paid-in capital, increase in thc 
preferred stock or long-term debt of FPL and its Jubsidiaries, or decrease in their net assets, in each case 
as compared with amounts shown in the mMt recent consolidated balance sheet incorporated by reference 
in the Rospecms, except in all instances for changes, increases or decreases which the Rospecms 
discloses have occumd or may occur, or as occasioned by the declaration, provision for. or payment of 
dividends, or which are described in such letter, or (c) for the period from the date of the most recem 
consolidated balance sheet incorporated by reference in the Prospectus to the latest available intaim 
balance sheet read by them and for the period from the date of the latest available interim balance ShM 
read by them to a specified date not more than five days prior to the Closing Date, there were any 
de-creases. as compared with the comspoadiag period in the preceding year, in total consolidated 
operating revenues or in net income or net income available to FPL Group, Inc., except in all h t a r c u  
for decreases which thc Prospectus discloses have occurred or may occur, or which are described in such 
letter; and (iv) they have carried out certain procedum and made certain findings. as specified in such 
letter, with respect to certain amounts included in the Prospectus and Exhibit 12 to the Registration 
Statement and such other items as the Representatives may reasonably request. 

Prospenus (1) do not comply as to form in all material respects with the applicable accolt~~ ’ g  

(a Since the respective most recent dates as of which information is given in the 
Registration Statemem and Prospectus and up to the Closing Date, there shall have been IIO material 
adverse change in the business, properties or f m c i a l  condition of FPL, except as reflected in or 
contemplated by the Registration Statement and hospectus, and since such dates and up to the Closing 
Date, there shall have been no material transaction entered into by FPL other than transactions disclosed 
by the Registration Statement and the hospcftu~ and tramactiom in the ordinary course of and 
at the Closing Date, the Representatives shall have received a certificate to such effect, signed by FPL. 
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0 Au legai proceedings to be taken in connection with the issuance and sale of the Bondr 
shall have bcen satisfactory in form and substance to Counsel for the Undmniters. 

In case any of the conditions specified above in this Section 6 shall not have been fulfilled, this a g r e e "  
may be terminated by the Reprrsentativcs. upon mailing or delivering wrincn notice thereof to FPL. Any Soch 
termination shall be without liability of any party to any other party except as othenvk provided in subscctiom 
(e) and (e) of Section 5 hereof and except that in the event of such termination by the Representatives, FF'L shall 
reimbnrse the Underwriters for out-of-pocket expenses reasonably incurred by them in connection with the 
transactions contemplated by this agreement, not in excess, however, of an aggregate of $5,000. 

SECTION 7. Conditions of FF'L's Obligations. The obligation of FF'L to deliver the Bondr shall be 
subject to the following conditions: 

(a) No stop order suspending the effectiveness of the Re&Mon Statement, and no orda 
dirr*ed tn the adequacy of any document inwrporated by reference, shall be in effect at the Closing Due. 
and no proccedigs for either such purpose shall be peuding before, or threatened by, the Corn" 011 
such date. 

(b) On the Closing Date there shall be in full force and effect an authorization of the 
Florida Public Service Commission with respect to the issuance and sale of the Bonds on the terms hercin 
stated or contemplated, and containing no provision unacceptable to FPL by reason of the fact that it is 
materially adverse to FPL, it being understood that no authorization in effect at the date of this a g r e e "  
contains any such unacceptable provision. 

In case any of the conditions specified in this Section 7 shall not have been fulfilled, this agreement may 
be terminated by FPL upon mailing or delivering written notice thereof to the Representatives. Any such 
termination shall be without liability of any party to any other party, except as otherwise provided in suboenionr 
(c) and (e) of Section 5 hereof and except that in the event of such terminafiw by FPL, FPL shall reimbune the 
Underwriters for out-of-pocket expenses reasonably incurred by them in COnnectiOOIl With the transactions 
contemplated by this agreement, not in excess, however, of an aggregate of $5,000. 

SECTION 8. Indemnification. 

(a) FPL agrees to indemnify and hold harmless each Underwriter and each person who 
controls any Underwriter within the meaning of Section 15 of the Securities Act against any and aII Iwses. 
claims, damages or Liabilities, joint or several, to which it or any of them may become subject under the 
Securities Act or any other statnte or common law, and to reimburse each such Undcrwrita atxi 
conaollmg person for any legal or other expenses (including. to the extent hereinaftcr provided, 
reasonable counsel fees) incurred by them in connection with investigating any such losses, clainu, 
damages or liabilities or in connection with defending any actions, insofar as such IOJSU. claimr, 
damages, liabilities, expnseJ or actions arise out of or are based upon any untrue statement or alleged 
untrue statement of a material fact contained in any p r e l i i  prospectus (if used prior to the Efkctive 
Date), including all Incorporated Documents, or in the Registration Statement or the prospaaU, or the 
omission or alleged omission to state therein a material fact required to be stated therein or necessuy fo 
make the statements therein not misleading; provided, however, that the indemnity agreement contained in 
this paragraph shall not apply to any such losses, claims, damages, liabilities, expenses or actions arising 
out of, or based upon, any such untrue statement or alleged untrue statement, or any such omission or 
alleged omission, if such statement or omission was made in reliance upon and in confodly with 
information furnished herein or to FPL in writing by or on behalf of any Underwriter, thrmrgh the 
Representatives or otherwise, for use in connection with the preparation of the Registration Statement or 
the Prospectus or any amendment or supplement to either themf. or arising out of, or based upon, 
statements in or omissions from the Statement of Eligibility and Qualication on Form T-1 of the 
Mongage Trustee and provided, further, that the indemnity agreement contained in this paragraph in 
respect of any preliminary prospectus shall not inure to the benefit of any Underwriter (or of any pmon 
controlling such Underwriter) on account of any such losses, claims, damages, liabilities, e x p n s a  or 
actions arising from the sale of the Bonds to any person if such Underwriter shall have failed to send or 
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give to such person (i) with or prior to the written c o d i t i o n  of such sale, a wpy of the Prospanu or 
the prospanU as amended or supplemented, if any amadmcnU or supplemats them0 shall have bcm 
furnished at or prior to the time of written confinnation of the sale involved, but exclusive of any 
Incorporated Documents unless, with respect to the delivery of any amendment or supplement, the allcgcd 
omission or alleged untrue statement is not corrected in such amendment or supplement at the time of 
confirmaion, or (ii) with or prior to the delivery of such Bonds to such person. a copy of any a"mt 
or supplement to the Prospecnu which shall have been furnished subsequent to such written confirmation 
and prior to the delivery of such Bonds to such person, exclusive of any incorporated Documemr unless, 
with respect to the delivery of any amendment or supplement, the alleged omission or alleged untrue 
statement was not corrected in such amendment or supplement at the time of such delivery. The 
indemnity agreement of FPL contained in this paragraph and the reprrXntations and warrantia of FPL 
contained in Section 1 hereof shall remain operative and in full force and effect, regardless of any 
investigation madc by or on behalf of any Underwriter or any such conaollig person, and shall survive 
the delivery of the Bonds. The Underwriters agree promptly to wafy FPL, and each other Urd-, 
of the c o m m " c n t  of any litigation or prouedings against them or any of them or any such wnuolling 
person in conaection with the issuance and sale of the Bonds. 

(b) Each Underwriter agrees to indemnify and hold M e s s  FPL, its officers and 
dinctors, and each person who controls any thereof within the meaning of Section 15 of the Securities Act 
against any and all losses, claims, damages or liabilities, joint or several, to which they or any of them 
may become subject under the Securities Act or other staNte or common law, and to reimburse each of 
them for any legal or other expenses (including. to the extent hereinafter provided, reasonable ~o~tllsel 
fees) incurred by them in conuection with investigating any such losses, claims, damages or liabilities, or 
in connection with defending any actions, insofar as such losses, claims, damages, liabilities, expcmes or 
actions arix out of or arc based upon any unuue statement or alleged untrue statement of a material fact 
contained in the Registration Statement or Prospectus or the omission or alleged omission to statc thercm a 
material fact required to be stated therein or necessary to make the statements therein not misleading if 
such statement or omission was made in reliance upon and in conformity with information fumis&d 
herein or to FPL in writing by or on behalf of such Underwriter, through the Represematives or 
otherwise. for use in connection with the preparation of the Registration Statement or the Prospecnu or 
any amendment or supplement to either thereof. 7hc indemnity agreemexu of the respective U n d "  
contained in this paragraph shall re& operative and in full force and effect, regardless of any 
investigation madc by or on behalf of FPL or any of its officers or directors or any such other Underwriter 
or any such controlling person, and shall survive the delivery of the Bonds. FPL a g m s  promptly to 
notify the Representatives of the commencement of any litigation or proceedings against FPL (or any 
controlling person thereof) or any of its officers or directors in connection with the issuance and sale of 
the Bonds. 

(C) FPL and the several Underwriters each agree that, upon the receipt of notice of the 
commencement of any action against it. its officers and directors, or any person controlling it as aforesaid, 
in respect of which indemnity may be sought on account of any indemnity agreement contained herein, it 
wiU promptly give written notice of the commencement thereof to the party or parties against whom 
indemnity shall be sought thereunder, but the omission so to notify such indemnirying party or panier of 
any such action shall not relieve such indemnifying party or parties from any liability which it or they may 
have to the indemnified party otherwise than on accouIlt of such indemnity agreement. In case such notice 
of any such action shall be so given, such indemnifying pany shall be entitled to participate at its OWD 
expense in the defense or. if it so elects, to assume (in conjunction with any other indemnifying paa*s) 
the defense of such action, in which event such defense shall be conducted by wunsel chosen by such 
indemnifying party or parties and satisfactory to the indemnified party or parties who shall be defendam or 
defendants in such action, and such defendant or defendants shall bear the fees and expensea of any 
additional counsel retained by them; but if the indemnifying pany shall elect not to assume the defense of 
such action. such indemnifying pany will reimbunc such indemnified pany or parties for the " a b l e  
fees and expenses of any counscl retained by them: provided, however. if the defendants in any such 
action include both the indemnified party and the indemnifying party and counsel for the indemnifying 
pany shall have reasonably concluded that there may be a conflict of interest involved in the r e p r e d o n  
by such counsel of both the indemnifying pany and the indemnified party, the indemnified party or paniU 
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shall have the right to select separate counsel, satj,¶factoly to the indemnifying parry, to p a r t i c i i  in the 
defense of such action on behalf of such indemnifed pany or partic! (it Wig Undentood, however, Ihat 
the indemnifying party shall not be liable for the expnwes of more than one separate counsel rcpmaK@ 
the indemnified partic! who are parties to such action). 

SECTION 9. Termination. This agreement may be terminatcd by the RcprrscntativCs by delivering 
written notice thereof to FPL. at any ‘ h e  prior to the Closing Date if (a) a h  the datc hereof and at or prior to 
the Closing Date then shall have occnrred any general suspmsion of trading in seclnities on the New York Stock 
Exchange, Inc. or rhcrc shall have betn established by the New York Stock Exchange. Inc. or by thc Conmish 
or by any federa! or state agency or by the decision of any court any limitation on prices for such trading or any 
rc!uictioas on thc distribution of SrmritieJ. or a general banking m o r a ”  declared by New York or fedarl 
authorities, or @) then shaU have occurred auy new wtbrcak of hodtilities iadnding. but not limited to. an 

or crisii, the effect of any such event specified in (a) or (b) above on the financial maha of thc United states 
shall be such as tomakc it impracticable for the Undenvrim toenforcs Mntracw for thc sale of the Bo&. ’Ihir 
agncment may also be terminatcd at any b e  prior to the Closing Date if in the judgmmt of the Rcprcsmtprner 
tht subject matter of any amendment or supplement to the Registration Statement or prapc*us prrparcd d 
furnished by FPL refleca a material advem change in the business, properties or fiaancial wndition of FPL 
which rmdcra it either inadvisable to proceed with such offering, if any, or inadvisable to proceed with thc 
delivery of the Bonds to be purchased hereunder. Any termination of this agreement pursuant to this seetion 9 
shall be without liability of any pany IO any other pany except as otherwise provided in subsections (c) and (e) of 
Section 5 h m f .  

escalation of hostilities which existed prior to the date of this agrecmmt or 0th- national or intcrnatl ’onal calrmity 

SECTION 10. Miscellaaeous. ‘Ihe validity and interpretation of this agreement shall be governcd by‘ 
the law of the State of New York. This agreement shall inure to the benefit of FPL, the several 
and, with respea to the provisions of Section 8 hereof, each connotlig person referred to in said Section 8, and 
their rUpative successors. Nothing in this agreement is intended or shall be construed to give to any otbcr 
person, firm or corporation any legal or equitable right. remedy or claim under or in respect of this a g r e e ”  oc 
any provision herein contained. The term ‘successors“ as used in this agreement shall not include any purcber, 
as such purchaser, of any Bonds from any of the several Underwriters. 

SECTION 11. e. All communications hereunder shall be in writing or by telegram and, if to thc 
Underwriters, shall be mailed or delivered to the Representatives at the address set fonh in the Roposal hmto. or 
if to FPL, shall be mailed or delivered to it at 700 Universe Boulevard, luno Beach, Ronda 33408. anention: 
Treasurer. 
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